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Corporate Information (Continued)

NREHR (F)
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

ANNUAL RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) amounted to
RMB1,836 million, representing an increase of 5.2% as
compared with last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the gross profit of
the Group amounted to RMB307 million and the gross profit
margin of the Group was 16.7%, representing a decrease of
3.5% and 1.5 percentage points as compared with last year,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the net profit of the
Group amounted to RMB183 million. Excluding the gain from
change in fair value of convertible ordinary shares for 2018,
the net profit of the Group for 2019 would have decreased
RMB76 million as compared to 2018, representing a decrease
of 29.3%, mainly attributable to (i) the decrease in gross profit
of the environmental protection facilities engineering and
O&M sectors; (ii) the decrease in foreign exchange gains as
compared to the same period last year; and (iii) the increase
in R&D expenses as compared to the same period last year.

As of 31 December 2019, the newly signed contracts of the
Group amounted to RMB1,624 million, of which the total value
of contracts entered for environmental protection facilities
engineering projects (including desulfurization, denitrification
and dust removal projects) was RMB525 million.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had 19 O&M projects
under operation and has successfully expanded its O&M
business to the steel, coking and industrial sewage sectors;
and cumulatively undertook 9 concession operation projects
and all of which have been under operation smoothly.

In 2019, the Group acquired a sewage treatment center
in Shanxi Lubao Industrial Park at a cash consideration of
RMB300 million.

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company recommend the payment of HK$0.0315 per ordinary
share as final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: HK$0.09).

MBRREERE

FEXERE

HZE2019F12A31H EFE - AEE K HHTB
ARl ([ZFEH]) kI AEARE18366 ST
BERFERES 2% °

HZE2019F12A31BLFE  AEENEF A
ARBIOTEETRAEEHNEFN K E16.7% -
BEEDRIHMA3.5% K 1.5EEDE -

HE2019F12A31AILFE - AEEMNEF A
ARKEABIEE T © IHR2018F AR LB A
A BEZEBHUE  2019F £2018F F FF O
R AL76EETT - WAP29.3% c EEHM()VERR
B TARFE/ TR ER BRI ¢ (i)E K
WSt EFERIEIRAD ¢« R(ii)FERY &R - F R
#hn o

R2019F12A31H » REBFHITH AR 624
BB HPRRXBEIEEE (BERG - B
WMEKREER) NANBEABARKSSHETT °

MR20195F 124310 - AEEFB19EKRENELH
HE UK B E#EBTREME - £ ET
F5KEE : REHTMERTLEIEE - U
JEFII&E o

20198 - AEBWERILAERE TERS/KEE
AL REREABARKI0BET °

ARREE ([BEE)) 2 (B8] EERER
HZE2019F12A31B L FE 2 RBEREFR L
MBA%0.0315/8 7T (20184 : 0.09/7T) ©
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)
BBREERE (&)

The following table sets forth the Company’s consolidated TFER&5F/REEARRNGEEER
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income  Uiz53K :

BX
e
s
=
Hp
=

for the periods indicated:

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31ALLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2019% 20185 0175 20165 2015%
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue g 1,836,496 1,744,998 1,329,078 1,352,955 1,351,416
Cost of sales and services SHE R (1,529,974) (1,427,140) (1,031,836) (1,099,309) (1,105,660)
Gross profit e 306,522 317,858 297,242 253,646 245,756
Other income expense and EHMA - B R

other gains and losses EHlERER 25,436 117,456 26,017 28,397 (5,495)
Selling and distribution HERAERR

expenses (29,295) (26,170) (18,318) (15,859) (11,376)
Administrative expenses TR (88,776) (98,485) (80,688) (68,449) (57,424)
Research and RERS

development expenses (24,256) (10,618) (8,204) (3,927) (5,465)
Reversal of impairment losses PREERGNEERN

on financial assets and HERERE

contract assets (10,928) (3,816) 10,158 - -
Share of profit of an associate HMEEE R FERN 34,541 27,963 31,694 14,833 16,042
Finance costs BHRA (4,177) (5,900) (5,333) (6,043) (7,087)
Change in fair value of ERERRY

convertible ordinary shares NrEEE - 133 541 (233,228) = =
Listing expenses Iaiil5T - (3,319) (14,114) (9,141) S
Profit before tax BB A 209,067 448,510 5,226 193,457 174,951
Income tax expense FEHRZ (26,453) (55,691) (42,255) (41,416) (36,781)
Profit for the year EREH 182,614 392,819 (37,029) 152,041 138,170
Other comprehensive (expense) EREMEE (FX)

income for the year: Wi
ltems that will not be TRENHEZE

reclassified to profit or loss: EntyEl -
Fair value losses on investments in BARBENALL

equity instrument at fair value PEYENRAIARE

through other comprehensive income  #)/A % EfEEE (2,374) (5,460) 5 = =
Income tax relating to investments in -~ BERALBEGAL

equity instrument at fair value HEERENRATA

through other comprehensive income & KFTER 1 819 - - -

(2,203) (4,641) - - -
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)
MBREERE (F)

Year ended 31 December

BE12R3ALEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2019% 2018F 2017F 2016%F 2015%
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Total comprehensive income ER2EMA/
(expense) for the year (F%) &% 180,411 388,178 (31,080) 148 981 140,074
Profit (loss) for the year DTEBER
attributable to: il / (Bi8) -
Owners of the Company RRAEEA 182,537 394,359 (36,418) 152,041 137,585
Non-controlling interests SRR R 1 (1,540) (611) - 585
182,614 392,819 (37,029) 152,041 138,170
Total comprehensive income DT ERER
(expense) for the year 2EUA/
attributable to: (Fi%) % -
Owners of the Company KARERA 180,334 389,718 (30,469) 148,981 139,489
Non-controlling interests FiERER 7 (1,540) (611) = 585
180,411 388,178 (31,080) 148,981 140,074
Earnings (loss) per share BRET /(5B
- Basic (RMB) - &K (AR¥) 0.18 0.44 (0.08) 0.25 0.23
- Diluted (RMB) -85 (AR%) 0.18 0.27 (0.08) 0.25 N/ATE R
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)
BBREERE (&)

The following table sets forth selected items from the TRHEZINHT R BEAR LGRS T BER R RAE
Company’s consolidated statements of financial position as at FIEH :
the dates indicated:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20195 20184 20175 20165 20154

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NSagd A RBTT ARETT  ARETT  ARETR

ASSETS EE

Total non-current assets FREEERR 1,774,408 1,253,016 1,148,815 706,450 484,626
Total current assets MENEERE 2,222,644 2,277,234 1,695,867 1,635,406 1,683,298
Total assets BERE 3,997,052 3,530,250 2,844,682 2,341,856 2,167,924
LIABILITIES AND BERESR

EQUITY

Total current liabilities mEEEeR 1,711,841 1,337,058 1,309,524 1,277,711 1,021,386
Total non-current liabilities FRBEERR 11,053 20,018 782,129 47,000 67,000
Total equity EREE 2,274,158 2,173,174 753,029 1,017,145 1,079,538
Total liabilities and equity BEMERRAT 3,997,052 3,530,250 2,844,682 2,341,856 2,167,924

Note: There is no restatement of prior years financial information — [t © R20194E 1514 FEF BB 76 3R 22 R £ 165E

upon application of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 as at 1 January 2018 R R20184F 1,5 1 H JE& FH B BX 51 75 # & £ Al 9
and IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019. PR BB B 752 & 2R E 15950 - B AT
FEPHEER -
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)
MBREERE (F)

The following table sets forth a summary of the consolidated T&RHI|FRBAHGESHESRERME
statements of cash flows for the periods indicated:

At 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 20174 20164 20155

L ERGIIGHS  RMB million - RMB million  RMB million  RMB million
INGEER VAl ARSEET ARBBET AR¥BET AREBER

Net cash from operating RETEBFT(S
activities ReFH 123 265 110 m
Net cash (used in) from REEE (FTA)
investing activities IR EFE (439) 38 (318) (35)
Net cash (used in) from BMEES (FTA)
financing activities FIBREFE (15) 58 28 (139)
Annual Report 2019 & 9
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Dear Shareholders,

The year of 2019 saw a slowdown in the global economic
growth, when the international trade tensions continued and
trade volumes among the world’s major economies declined.
Against this backdrop, the downward pressure on China’s
economic growth has increased and the capital market has
undergone reform and opening up. Nevertheless, China’s
economy has generally maintained a steady and progressive
growth trend. Celebrating its 70th anniversary in 2019 after
70 years of vicissitudes and changes, the People’s Republic
of China has become the world’s second largest economy. Its
comprehensive national strength and international influence
have both reached an unprecedented level.

With the continuous improvement of the country’s economic
level, there has been a rising concern on the environmental
protection industry by the state and the public. The
government has implemented a number of favorable policies
and positioned the environmental protection industry as a
strategic emerging industry. In 2019, the state’s environmental
protection efforts continued unabated and the environmental
protection industry has been gradually picking up. With the
support of the state’s policies, the financing stress faced by
environmental protection enterprises has been alleviated to
a certain extent and the investment in the industry will further
increase in the future.

2019 is a year of aggressive and proactive transformation for
the Group. The Group has newly acquired flue gas treatment
projects in the steel, industrial furnace and coking sectors,
continued to expand the flue gas treatment business in the
non-electricity sectors and has also acquired a sewage
treatment center in Shanxi Lubao Industrial Park at a cash
consideration of RMB300 million, laying a foundation for the
development of new business of industrial sewage treatment
in the future. The Group has also actively developed its solid
waste treatment business, so as to maintain a sustainable
and long-term development of the Group. In 2019, the Group
achieved an operating income of RMB1,836 million and a net
profit of RMB183 million. The Group has a stable financial
position with sufficient cash flow, while its various business
segments are reasonably deployed and undergoing a
sustainable development.

WA EALR

2019F 2 BIL RN - BN ZE S REFER
R HREFBLERNBIARTRE - TUES
T - PRGBGSR NTEAMA - BEARTISZET
WERK - BRBRETEE BPAENRES -
019F EEHHFEKZ7T0BF AREE L+
B PREKAMAE-REER  SRERSME
BEENERFELEEY

BEEREIFKFOTEHRST  BRMEEAR
HRFRITENBIZEER  BAERLEZE
PR - XA R AREE 5 0E 3 4 B 1 5 B =
¥ o 2019FERRRNEFEDR - RRITER
PO ERENIFT  REREERERRD
BRBE—EREWER  KRRITERERKBE
—H1RT

C019F EARKEEEHEN - MHEAMN—F - K
SEFGHE c TXEZE - SEESERGER
B BEEAFEESERAEEY  BURS
REARBI00E & TWEILERE TERSK
BRIERL  BERRERTESKERTHALGN
A WEGEREFEREER  REEEFE
RABRE - 20195 BERE X WA ARK1,8368
B BRFABARK1SEE L £EYB
RRIBE - RERTHW  SEBRRHGBEE -
FHERE -
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After much twists and turns in the environmental protection
industry in 2020, the industry is bound to weather difficult
times and ushers in a bright prospect. The industrial
development is becoming increasingly mature and a large-
scale regulation regime on water, soil, solid waste and gas
has basically taken shape. Facing the end of the “Thirteenth
Five-Year Plan” in 2020, the demand for environmental
governance is still strong, thus forming a huge driving force
for the environmental protection industry. The Group will
continue to take the responsibility of environmental protection,
actively explore business opportunities and strive to promote
the mutual development of its core and new businesses so as
to achieve a substantial growth.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to sincerely
thank our shareholders, customers and business partners for
their continuous support to the Group, and also express my
sincere gratitude to all the management and employees for
their dedicated hard work.

Cheng Liquan Richard
Chairman
27 April 2020

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FEHESE (B

2020 F RIRTTREL T 2R - BBREHE
RISHK - EXBRBARKA - KTEBERHK
EEMBRDEREK  2020FEHE [t=H1 K
e REFAEFRENER - ERERET
EERERNER ) - ARBEGEENRRRE
R BEBERR  BHESETLXBENEE
HAER  BERBEBAER -

ANERREZSH - EXHAKBENRR - &
F - &ERH 84— EAKENLEFHTEMNS
N EBEERE N8 TBUARORHE

BE2
FE
2020F4 A27H
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
THHEBHREE

Dear Shareholders,

Everything survives in harmony with each other and thrives
with its own support. Bearing this law of nature in mind, the
Chinese government regards the construction of ecological
civilization as an important part of its “13th Five-Year Plan”.
Under the guidance of relevant national industrial policies, the
policies for environmental protection industry have shifted from
entirety to refining over the years and the general regulatory
pattern in respect of water, soil, solid waste and flue gas has
been gradually formed. As the environmental protection market
has become increasingly mature, the industry has completed
the point-line-plane evolution process and entered the
development process from quantitative change to qualitative
change. Against this backdrop, the Group has continued to
grasp the new trends in the environmental protection market
and strategically focused on the environmental protection
sub-sectors based on its own corporate characteristics.
In 2019, the Group reshaped its positioning and make
deployments in the fields of flue gas treatment, industrial
sewage treatment and hazardous and solid waste treatment/
disposal in non-electricity sectors. As such, the Group will
continue to provide comprehensive one-stop environmental
governance services to industrial customers and strive
to become a platform-based intelligent “environmental
housekeeper” for customers.

BN EARR

[(BYEEEMNALE  S/EBUKR]  FEEL
REXAERERIT=0] REANNEEARSR -
ZEREBRAREXRRNSIET  RREX
ERBRRBESCEADNZENBRRMER
Kot B BROAEERREEHXT - R
RMGHEDEAR CETK T K —HD
REBRRE EANEZNEENERER - Flt
BERT  AREFELEERARDSHPE - &6
BH EESHEEBERFRAD EE - 2019 -
SEEREMN  BERARIFERLNEREZE -
TESKEEREEEREREEE &AL
ERFPRHE2FUN—WNIRBLEEGERE -
YENBRMTERSEPHFEILEREN
[RRER] °
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement (Continued)

Looking back on the year, the Group’s flue gas treatment
business continued to develop robustly, and orders for
the flue gas treatment market in non-electricity sectors
increased steadily. After successfully expanding into the
steel, petrochemical and electrolytic aluminum markets, our
environmental protection facility engineering business unit has
also opened a new market for the industrial furnace and kiln
flue gas treatment sub-sector, and successfully entered into
a lime kiln project with Hebei Jinxi Africa Metal Mine Industry
Co., Ltd. In the meantime, the Group successfully embedded
the service concept of “EPC+O&M” (environmental protection
facility engineering + operation and maintenance) into the
services for customers in non-electricity sectors, and actively
promoted the “intelligent O&M” full-process operation and
maintenance service system, which has greatly enhanced the
turnover rate of long-term customers in the steel and coking
industries. The above strategies have not only improved the
business capability of the Group’s O&M team, but also created
a stable and continuous revenue source for the Group and
helped to drive its sustainable development.

During the year under review, the Group entered into a
contract on the flue gas desulfurization and denitrification
project for the LUCKY 1 x 660MW coal-fired power station in
Pakistan, which was the Group’s another breakthrough in the
overseas market in response to China’'s “Belt and Road” and
“China-Pakistan Economic Corridor” policy initiatives. As of 31
December 2019, the Group’s overseas desulfurization units
have accumulated a capacity of 5,710MW.

THHERREE (&)

CEAFEE AEEERLABEXBHTEREE
& FEERBERAE TS EREL M - RIR
R T2 KA RIS - A MEMRIAT
Big - XITR T IXRBEEERGEMAD BEAF
M5 KRBALEAFCEBRTIXARAA
AXREIEREE - B £EK [EPC+0&M] GRIR
R LIZ+HETHRE) MIRBESKRIIBRAIFER
HEFPHREA  BEELE[E2EE] 2RiE
BITHEIRGER - RXIEMN T MEMELET
ERMZPOE(LE  TERNTEEEEBK
EBREIIKF - BARERIE T RERE K
PNEBERHEERRE -

CIEAFE  SEHRLOTEEHELUCKY 1x
BE0MWIR K B UEER AL AEIRE - EAE
BEERR—F - BIMPELHEER] K
R EBIITHEISH X —RE - BE2019F
12A310 - "EEBIINRREETE RFTED
5,710MW -
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement (Continued)

ITHHERREE (&)

On the other hand, the Group successfully acquired the assets
of a sewage treatment center in Shanxi Lubao Industrial Park
in the year and practically entered a new business field. Using
this as an entry point, the Group has quickly cultivated an
elite team of environmental protection services in the field of
industrial sewage treatment, thus opening a new chapter of
the Group’s strategic development. Meanwhile, the Group
has continued to increase investment in technology research
and development and actively pursued cooperation with
strategic partners in the industry who shares our vision, in
order to supplement the Group’s technology industry chain,
continuously enhance its core competitiveness and increase
its technique and technology reserves.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to expand its
market share in flue gas treatment in non-electricity sectors
such as steel, petrochemical and electrolytic aluminum, and
continue to increase its investment in technology research and
development in multiple business areas including “industrial
sewage treatment”, “hazardous and solid waste treatment/
disposal” and “VOC treatment”. The Group will also optimize
its resource allocation, strengthen its management, reduce
redundancy and improve efficiency, not only aiming to become
an all-round service provider of intelligent green housekeeping
in multiple fields, but also striving to create a professional,
leading and sustainable world class comprehensive
environmental industry group.

Zeng Zhijun
Chief Executive Officer

27 April 2020

14 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.
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The Group is a leading enterprise in the ecological and
environmental governance industry in China and was
successfully listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on 16 March 2018 (stock code:
2377). The Group provides environmental protection and
energy conservation solutions to its customers, mainly
engaging in controlling air pollution in traditional electricity
and non-electricity sectors and providing comprehensive air
pollution prevention services such as flue gas desulfurization,
denitrification, dust removal and integrated flue gas treatment
services. The Group commenced the flue gas treatment
business in 2003 and is among the first participants in the flue
gas treatment industry in China. In 2019, the Group continued
to expand its flue gas treatment market in non-electricity
industries such as steel, petrochemicals and electrolytic
aluminum and successfully developed its industrial sewage
treatment business, as well as actively participated in solid
waste treatment business. Leveraging on its solid experience
and professional capabilities in R&D and design, construction
and implementation, operation and management, the Group
has helped its clients to greatly reduce pollutant emissions
and effectively improve their production efficiency, making
remarkable contributions to the improvement of air quality
and environment quality, development of green economy
and sustainability. The Group is committed to becoming
a world-class comprehensive group in the environmental
protection industry and a service provider of intelligent green
housekeeping, thus actively contributing to environmental
protection and ecological civilization construction in China as
well as the world.

The projects of the Group have a broad geographic coverage,
covering almost 30 provinces, municipalities and autonomous
regions in China. Furthermore, the Group started to expand its
business into the overseas markets in 2007, ahead of most of
our competitors. In particular, the Group has undertaken more
than 10 quality desulfurization and denitrification projects in
Europe, South Asia, Latin America, Africa and Southeast Asia,
and is one of the few PRC companies having successfully
completed thermal power environmental protection projects
in overseas markets. Besides, the Group has advanced
R&D equipment and facilities and has also established
a professional R&D team. The Group has established an
enterprise technology center which was accredited by the
Beijing Municipality Commission of Economic and Information
Technology and a post-doctoral research station with Nankai
University. In recent years, the Group has established strategic
partnerships with world-renowned multinational companies and
has entered into extensive science and research cooperation
with domestic and overseas research institutes for proactively
seeking technology development.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEkEREERE

DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of eight Directors, comprising
two executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The following table
sets forth information regarding the Directors.

BE=E

RERENER -

EXeREA/\NEF  BEMUATES =
FRTEZTR=MBIIFRTES - TREAIE

Date of Appointment

Name Age Position as Director

H"E Fie B EZERESHH

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (22 2) 54 Chairman and executive Director 30 January 2015

RESEE BEERENTES 20151 A30H

Mr. Zeng Zhijun (& 2 &) 49 Vice Chairman, executive Director, 30 January 2015
chief executive officer

BokEsE BESER  MITEFRITHRER 2015%1A30H

Non-executive Directors

FHTES

Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo (£54R) 51 Non-executive Director 30 January 2015

Ik FNTES 2015%1A30H

Mr. Zhu Weihang (FK1&#) 33 Non-executive Director 9 January 2017

REMEE FHTEF 201741 H9H

Mr. Chen Xue (fRE) 53 Non-executive Director 9 January 2017

REBKHE FNTESF 201741 H9H

Independent non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Liu Genyu (2IR4E) 56 Independent non-executive Director 28 February 2018

IR E BUIERTES 201852 A28H

Dr. Xie Guozhong (#{E1 ) 59 Independent non-executive Director 28 February 2018

HEBE L BUIFNTES 201842 H28H

Mr. Lu Zhifang (EE£5) 66 Independent non-executive Director 28 February 2018

BEEF KL BYFWITES 20182 H28H
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (2£%) (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 54,
is the chairman of the Board, an executive Director and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Cheng is primarily responsible for the overall strategic
planning and direction of the Group. Mr. Cheng was appointed
to the Board on 30 January 2015.

Mr. Cheng joined the Group serving as a director of Beijing
Bogqi Electric Power SCI-TECH Co., Ltd.* (At RIEFHFE LRI A
R A R]) (“Beijing Bogi"), the major operating subsidiary of the
Group, on 15 June 2005. Mr. Cheng became the chairman of
the board of Beijing Bogi in December 2007 and then served
as its chief executive officer from December 2009 to February
2017. Mr. Cheng currently serves as the general manager
of Beijing Boqi, a director of Beijing Shengyi Tiancheng
Environmental SCI-TECH Co., Ltd.* (Jt REE KKIBFRIE
BRAT]) (“Beijing Shengyi”), Zhejiang Boqi Electric Power
SCI-TECH Co., Ltd.* (W TEFENHEIFARAQFR) (“Zhejiang
Bogi”) and Anhui Nengda Fuel Co., Ltd* (Z#EBEEME AR A
A]) (“Anhui Nengda”). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng
held various positions at Bit Technology Holding Co., Ltd*
(BRI IR AR (D BBRAF]), a company that was principally
engaged in the wholesale of spare parts for power plants, from
April 2000 to March 2003, including deputy manager, general
manager, the chairman of the board and a director. Mr. Cheng
has been a director of Ningbo Bonded Area Jiujiu Leasing
Co. Ltd.* (BRRHEAAHMESGRAF]) (previously known as
Ningbo Huaneng Leasing Co. Ltd.* (BREEBEGRRQA))
(“Ningbo Leasing”) from 2004 to 2007.

Mr. Cheng graduated from Fudan University with a bachelor’s
degree in political economy in July 1987.

EEREREEE (B)

HITESE

BE2%4E ([BELE)]) 545 BARAGESS
TFE WITEENREREZECETR - BALEETE
BEANEEERREREINS|E - BEER2015
F1AHEZEIMAEZESES -

BEER2005F6 A15HIMAARER  EEAE
EXZEENBARILLREBTENREARAA
([JEREa]) BESE - 1254 K2007F12H 5K
RIIFETNESEEE - BERBE2009F12A %
017F2AMMEFIL RETNITREH - Bt
A BRI EAILRETNALE EREEKK
REEEAERAR ([{EREB]) - WIBFE
REAERAR (DIEH]) kB EnsE
RAR ([ZREEE]) MEE - MAKXEEA -
294 B2000F 4 8 £2003F3A R EB /=t
BEBMAE TR AL FERHIERRG B R AR
ETZERY  2EKE B8 E2gF
FEREE - 124 B20044F £20074F A E IR R
MEAABREERAA ([FEHAE]  AIEERE
ELEMERRAR) WESE -

B EM87TF7T AEBERREBBAEEE L

B -
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EEREREERE (H)

From June 2010 to September 2014, Mr. Cheng served as a
director of Wuhan Boch Jaco Environmental Co., Ltd* (%
BEEFRERMDABRAT) (National Equities Exchange and
Quotations Stock Code: 831100). From August 2011 to March
2017, Mr. Cheng was a director of Shanghai ZJ Bio-Tech
Co., Ltd* (B2 ITEMEERMNBRAT) (National Equities
Exchange and Quotations Stock Code: 834839). Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Cheng did not hold directorships in any
listed public companies in the last three years.

Mr. Zeng Zhijun (€ 2) (“Mr. Zeng”), aged 49, is the vice
chairman, an executive Director, the chief executive officer
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. Zeng is responsible for the overall management
and operation of the Group. Mr. Zeng was appointed to the
Board on 30 January 2015. Mr. Zeng joined the Group in June
2004 serving as a director of Beijing Boqgi and became the
vice chairman of Beijing Bogi in June 2007. Mr. Zeng currently
serves as the vice chairman and the chief executive officer
of Beijing Boqgi. Mr. Zeng served as the chairman of Beijing
Horizon Media Group Inc.* (JtREZRFFAREBRAF) from
December 2002 to October 2004. Since April 2016, Mr. Zeng
has served as a director of Wuxi Zhonggan Microelectronics
Co., Ltd. (EHHRMEFRHBER LD F]).

Mr. Zeng graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology (1t &
BT KE) with a bachelor's degree in computer science and
engineering in July 1992. Mr. Zeng received a master’s degree
in business administration from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology in June 2001. Mr. Zeng was awarded the degree
of Doctor of Management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University on 3 November 2010.

Since February 2005, Mr. Zeng has served as a director
of Richinfo Technology Co., Ltd.* (¥R KM B R A7)
(formerly known as Shenzhen Richinfo Technology Co., Ltd.*
CRIT AR AR A A)) (a listed company on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange since 23 March 2018, stock code: 300634.
SZ), a company that provides mobile Internet technology
services in the PRC. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Zeng did
not hold directorships in any public listed companies in the
last three years.

MR2010F6 H £201459H F BAEER RN EEB ST
EFRRBRMDABRAR (Z2EPNEERMDERE
RGERD IS - 831100) EEES - H20114F8
ARE2017F38  BAAE A LB ZTEMBE
BRHDBERAR (ZEP/NEEROERZFRD
SRH%5 0 834839) WES - R EXFTHEEI - 12
FETERE=FUERNTAN LT ARETESR
ﬁ% °
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo (Z #i) (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 51, is a
non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr. Zheng also served as a director of Beijing
Bogi. Mr. Zheng was appointed to the Board on 30 January
2015.

From May 2011 to August 2016, Mr. Zheng served as a
director of CITIC Securities International Asset Management
Limited (FEAEABIREEEREER AR, a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong. In 2008, Mr. Zheng established
MTP Capital Limited, a company that provides investment
related consulting services, where he is mainly responsible for
the overall management and operation of the company. From
September 2000 to March 2010, Mr. Zheng was a director
of Compass Venture (China) Limited, a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong.

Mr. Zheng received a bachelor's degree in science from
McMaster University in Canada in June 1992.

Mr. Zheng did not hold directorships in any public listed
companies in the last three years.

Mr. Zhu Weihang (R {&#7) (“Mr. Zhu”), aged 33, is a non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Zhu was appointed to the Board
on 9 January 2017. Mr. Zhu also served as a director of
Beijing Boagi.

EEREREEE (B)

FHTES
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREEE (B)

Mr. Zhu is currently the chairman of Guangdong Pearl River
(BRI ERMD AR AR, where he is
fully responsible for the company’s strategic planning, major

Investment Co., Ltd.*

investment and production management. Mr. Zhu has been
working at Guangdong Pearl River Investment Co., Ltd.* (&
R IREBROBERA
has held various positions in its different branch companies.
From September 2008 to September 2011, Mr. Zhu worked
at the Guangdong Pearl River Investment Co., Ltd. Finance
Management Center* (BRI IIZRERGBRARIMEEEF
L) where he held positions as a financing chief executive,
assistant to the director, deputy director and director. From
October 2011 to September 2012, Mr. Zhu worked at the North
China branch office of Guangdong Pearl River Investment
Co., Ltd. (BERKIKRERMNDARRL

manager and the standing deputy general manager.

7]) since September 2008, where he

Al) as the deputy general

Mr. Zhu graduated from Sun Yat-sen University (3 LLIAER) with
a bachelor’'s degree in finance in June 2012.

Mr. Zhu did not hold directorships in any public listed
companies in the last three years.

Mr. Chen Xue (BR£8) (“Mr. Chen”), aged 53, is a non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Chen was appointed to the
Board on 9 January 2017. Mr. Chen also served as a director
of Beijing Boqi.

20 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Chen has served as deputy general manager of the
finance department of Sinopec Group (FEAM{LTEER
7)) since December 2019. From January 2018 to December
2019, Mr. Chen was the deputy head of the capital operation
department of Sinopec Group (¥ Bf#{t T&E A F]) and
deputy general manager of Asset Operation and Management
Company Limited (B E & <% & &2 B R 2 7l) under Sinopec
Group. From March 2001 to January 2018, Mr. Chen was
the deputy division chief and division chief of various
departments and divisions of Sinopec Group (% BlAm{t T
&/~ F]) including the restructuring department, department
of enterprise reform, operation management department
of refining and chemical enterprises, capital operation
department and the asset management company. Mr. Chen
worked at China Sinopec Great Wall Lubricating Oil Limited
(FEIAEEMEERAE]) (an integrated lubricating oil service
provider in the PRC) from July 1989 to March 2001. In 2013,
Mr. Chen was recognized as professor-level senior economist
by the Senior Professional Technical Qualification Appraisal
Committee of Sinopec Group (F Bl A M TEE R F). In
January 2018, Mr. Chen was the deputy head of the capital
operation department of Sinopec Group (FFEAM{IEITEE
27]) and deputy general manager of Asset Operation and
Management Company Limited (EEKLLEIEGRARF]). He
was mainly responsible for the capital operation, safety and
environmental protection management.

Mr. Chen received his bachelor’'s degree in petroleum
processing from East China College of Chemistry and
Technology (¥ % 1t T £ [z) (now known as East China
University of Science and Technology (¥R T AEZ)) in July
1989. Mr. Chen received his master’s degree in management
from Renmin University of China (F B AR KE) in June 2001.

Mr. Chen did not hold directorships in any listed public
companies in the last three years.

EEREREEE (B)
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EEREREERE (H)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Genyu (2|18 $E) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 56, is an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee of the Company. He was
appointed to the Board on 28 February 2018. Mr. Liu does not
hold any other position with the members of the Group.

Mr. Liu is currently a non-executive director of Huazhong
In-vehicle Holdings Company Limited GEREH LK AR A
Al), a Stock Exchange listed company (stock code: 6830)
manufactures and sells internal and external decorative
and structural automobile parts, molds and tooling, casing
and liquid tank of air conditioning or heater units and other
non-automobile products. Mr. Liu currently serves as an
executive director and vice chairman of China Nuclear Energy
Technology Corporation Limited (FFEZAERHREBBRAR]),
a listed company on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 611)
engages in EPC operations and consulting services, solar
power generation operations and financing operations.

Mr. Liu has extensive experience in project development,
commercial negotiation and operational management in the
electric power industry. During the period from May 2007 to
December 2012, Mr. Liu was the chief executive officer as well
as an executive director, a member of the executive committee
and the authorized representative of China Power New Energy
Development Company Limited (FEIE e RERBR A
A]), a Stock Exchange listed company (stock code: 735) that
engages in developing, constructing, owning, operating and
managing clean energy power plants. Prior to that, Mr. Liu
served as the vice president of Chongqging Jiulong Electric
Power Co., Ltd* (EE NLEE N KR % B R 2 7)) (principally
engaged in electric power production), a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600292), and he
was mainly responsible for construction projects and market
management.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Liu received his bachelor’s degree in industrial electric
automation from Harbin Institute of Technology in June 1991.
Mr. Liu was awarded an executive master’'s degree in business
administration (EMBA) from Tsinghua University in July 2005.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold directorships in
any listed public companies in the last three years.

Dr. Xie Guozhong (#El£) (“Dr. Xie”), aged 59, is an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
He was appointed to the Board on 28 February 2018. Dr.
Xie does not hold any other position with the members of the
Group.

Dr. Xie is an independent economist based in the PRC and
is a columnist for publications including South China Morning
Post, The New Century Weekly (renamed as Caixin) and
Bloomberg where he published his articles analyzing and
consulting on global economics and financial markets. Dr.
Xie was named as one of the “50 most influential persons in
finance” by Bloomberg in 2013. Dr. Xie has 20 years expertise
in financial services and has extensive financial management
experience in the fields of corporate finance. From December
2007 to December 2010, Dr. Xie served as an independent
non-executive director of Shenzhen Development Bank Co.,
Ltd* OFIYIZERBITIRMB BR A R]), which was listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000001). Dr. Xie
worked for Morgan Stanley from July 1997 to September 2006
and held the role of managing director. He was working in the
capacity of a managing director in the research division of
Morgan Stanley in Hong Kong before his departure. Prior to
joining Morgan Stanley, Dr. Xie worked for Macquarie Bank in
Singapore as an associate director from 1995 to 1997.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EEREREERE (H)

Dr. Xie received his master’s degree of science in
transportation and a PhD in Philosophy (in the field of
economics) from Massachusetts Institute of Technology in
September 1987 and June 1990, respectively.

Dr. Xie did not hold directorships in any listed public
companies in the last three years.

Mr. Lu Zhifang (FEE53) (“Mr. Lu”), aged 66, is an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed to the Board on 28 February
2018. Mr. Lu does not hold any other position with the
members of the Group.

Mr. Lu is a registered lawyer in China, and is currently a senior
partner of East & Concord Partners (1t 7K E S MERDEFEFT).
Mr. Lu was a senior partner of Haiwen Law Firm (&RI2AE
T5FT) from 1994 to 2008 and a partner of Beijing Hylands Law
Firm (GEFUEREFMEENERFT) from 2009 to 2014. Mr. Lu also
has more than 20 years experience in international commercial
arbitration, which, among others, he served as an arbitrator
of China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission. From 1991 to 1994, Mr. Lu worked at the law
school of University of International Business and Economics
as an associate professor, and served as deputy director of
the International Economic Law Department of University of
International Business and Economics from 1986 to 1994.

Mr. Lu graduated from Beijing University of International
Business and Economics (It ¥ 7MNE 5 20) with a diploma in
English in January 1978, and received his master’s degree in
laws from the University of California in December 1983.

Mr. Lu did not hold directorships in any listed public
companies in the last three years.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EEREREERE (F)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREERE

The following table presents certain information concerning TXRE2IEBEAEESREEEAENE T
the senior management of our Group. B o

Name Age Year Joined Position

®E Fir MAEH Bz

Ms. Cao Xiaoping (E &%) 66 2008 Vice president and chief financial officer
BEEY 2+ 20084 Bl A

Mr. Zhang Kongyu (58 fLE)) 58 2010 Vice president and chief technology officer
RAIEE 2010%F BB R RE

Mr. Yan Bingli (Z&/E 7)) 56 2004 Vice president

BRFIL A 20044 EIECES

Mr. Ma Xuexiang (55 2%) 65 2012 Vice president

BEHEE 20124 Bl

Ms. Qian Xiaoning ($$BE%) 46 2007 Vice president, Board secretary and joint company secretary
BREL L 20074 Blia%  EFSUERBRELRANE

Mr. Liu Qingbo (215 K) 46 2004 Vice president

BB REE 20044 s

Mr. Lu Jing (BE&) 58 2011 Vice president

BERtE 20114 EECES

Ms. Ma Zhuo (F ) 45 2006 Vice president

BEXZL 20065 2lmE

Ms. Yan Zhilian (B2 &) 61 2004 Vice president

BeELt 20044 BlEE

Mr. Tu Yazhou 48 2019 Vice president

Bt 20194 Bl

Ms. Cao Xiaoping (EE3) (“Ms. Cao”), aged 66, is the vice BBzt ([ELtl) 665 AKNAFRIAEE
president and chief financial officer of the Company. Ms. Cao  FREf IS4 ES - B2z £ 2008F6 A MMAAREE -
joined the Group in June 2008. Ms. Cao was appointed as the 72010938 @ BEx+ER (T ANEB R KLAE -
chief financial officer of the Group in March 2010.

Ms. Cao is primarily responsible for finance and accounting, ®XZ+txZEHEAEEB KL e BEHT
budget and investment related matters of the Group. Ms. Cao RIEEHBEEE - X T MEMLITAFM LIE
also serves as the chairman of Jiangxi Jinggangshan Boqgi #FERMAMEARAE ([HEILER]) 2TE
Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* (IFHMLEFREEE WABERSEREXEREER 2 ([1LFAHE
AR AT (“Jinggangshan Bogi”), a director of Shanxi Bo Yuan JR)) 2EERIRBTREEERBEERATZ
Qi Cheng Environmental Equipment Service Co., Ltd.* (lUFd  EE °

BERTERRZERSBRAAF) (“Shanxi Bo Yuan’) and the

chairman of Beijing Bogi Environmental Remediation Tech Co.

Ltd* (jtﬁTﬁ%ﬁfﬁiﬁﬂg?§$ﬁﬁﬁBEZ\\E)
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Ms. Cao has over 30 years of experience in accounting
and financial management. Prior to joining the Group, Ms.
Cao served as the chief accountant of Angang Construction
Consortium Co., Ltd (8:#iEFEEBRAA]) from November
2000 to June 2008. Ms. Cao was the deputy section chief (&l
%) of the finance department of Ansteel Group Corporation
(823 £ B]) and later served as the deputy director and director
from February 1985 to November 2000.

Ms. Cao graduated from Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics (b B £&& X ) with a master’s degree in
accounting in March 1999. She became a qualified senior
accountant in the PRC in December 1997.

Ms. Cao did not hold directorship in any listed public company
in the last three years.

Mr. Zhang Kongyu (5&7LHI) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 58, is the
vice president and chief technology officer of the Company
and joined the Group in March 2010. Mr. Zhang started as the
vice chief engineer with Beijing Boqgi and later was appointed
as the vice president and a technical director, the general
manager of department of research and development and the
general manager of department of production and technology
of Beijing Boqi. Mr. Zhang is mainly responsible for technology
development, introduction and technology cooperation and
responsible for overall technology strategy the Company.
For positions with other members of the Group, Mr. Zhang
serves as the general manager of Beijing Shengyi and as the
supervisor of Beijing Bogi and Zhejiang Boqi.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang was the chief engineer
of Shanghai Nature Power Technology Co. Ltd (/B4R E 7
R AR AE]) from January 2004 to February 2010. During
the period from July 2000 to June 2003, Mr. Zhang was the
technical director of SEC-IHI Power Generation Environment
Protection Engineering Co., Ltd* (E/8AJIISEHE A ).
Mr. Zhang served as director of design of Shanghai Future
Environment Engineering Co., Ltd.* (EERFIRETIRERA
a]) from January 1995 to July 2000. Mr. Zhang served as the
design engineer of Shanghai Metallurgy Mining Machinery
Factory* (/@A &M ILEME) from 1989 to 1995. Mr. Zhang
also served as a technician of Shanghai Petrochemical
General Factory* (/&AM T4 ) from 1987 to 1989.
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Mr. Zhang graduated from Shanghai University of Technology
with a bachelor’'s degree in mechanical manufacturing in 1983.

Mr. Zhang did not hold directorships in any listed public
companies in the last three years.

Mr. Zhang has resigned as effective from 31 July 2019.

Mr. Yan Bingli (B8/& ) (“Mr. Yan”), aged 56, is the vice
president of the Company and joined the Group in October
2004. Since joining the Group, Mr. Yan has held various
positions including the engineer of department of engineering
and the general manager of Yangcheng project, a project
director, the general manager of department of operation and
maintenance, the general manager of department of sales
and marketing and the general manager of department of
operational planning and information management of Beijing
Bogi. Mr. Yan is primarily responsible for operational planning,
information management and internal control of the Company.
Mr. Yan does not hold any other position with the members of
the Group.

Mr. Yan obtained the diploma in power engineering
management in Northeast Dianli University (R1tE HE63) in
April 1998.

Mr. Yan did not hold directorships in any listed public
companies in the last three years.

Mr. Ma Xuexiang (F2%) (“Mr. Ma”), aged 65, is the vice
president of the Company and joined the Group in August
2012. Mr. Ma is primarily responsible for overseeing project
construction and managing quality and safety. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Ma was the chief operation officer, the
assistant general manager and minister of the department of
engineering of Angang Steel Construction Group Company
Ltd. (#ZMEBREEAGR2AA]), from November 2000 to August
2012, where he was mainly responsible for managing project
construction and managing project quality and safety. Mr. Ma
joined Angang Group (No. 2) Construction Corporation* (#
MEEBEE — £ T A]) in May 1983, and has held various
positions including technician, team leader and assistant
manager and general manager between 1983 and 2000. Mr.
Ma has also served as a technician of People’s Liberation
Army Corps of Engineers infrastructure 002 troops (4 B A Rf#
MEEE T Z002E6k%) since December 1972.
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Mr. Ma obtained the diploma in cogenerating from the
Changchun Metallurgical Construction School* (E&FA&ESE
2H2) in September 1977.

Mr. Ma did not hold directorships in any listed public
companies in the last three years.

Ms. Qian Xiaoning (£#2) (“Ms. Qian”), aged 46, is the
vice president, Board secretary and joint company secretary
of the Company and joined the Group in February 2007. Ms.
Qian is primarily responsible for managing human resources,
legal compliance issues, administration and Board matters.
Since joined the Group, Ms. Qian has held various positions
including general manager of legal department, general
manager of business department of the Board, general
manager of human resource department, Board secretary and
vice president of Beijing Bogi. Ms. Qian is also a director of
Beijing Bosheng Environmental SCI-TECH Co., Ltd.* (LR 1#
BEIRREHE AR AR, the supervisor of Shanxi Puzhou Bogi
Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* (LL7EEMEFIRREL
BBRAF]) (“Puzhou Bogi”), Shanxi Hejin Bogi Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd.* (IWFMEEFREBEEBRAE]) (“Hejin
Bogi”), Anhui Nengda and Jinggangshan Bogi and the general
manager of Shanxi Bo Yuan.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Qian was a securities
transaction representative (F#E#%LF&K) of Yongyou Network
Technology Co., Ltd. (AAMB#&EHIZDBER AT (previously
known as AR EHRMHDBERAF], a listed company on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600588), an enterprise
management software and cloud service provider in the PRC,
from 2001 to February 2007. During the time from July 1996
to August 1997, Ms. Qian worked at the legal department of
CITIC Group (previously known as China International Trust
Investment Corporation).

Ms. Qian graduated from China University of Political Science
and Law in July 1996 with a bachelor's degree in economic
law. Ms. Qian obtained a master’s degree in economic law
from China University of Political Science and Law in June
2006 and a master’'s degree in business administration from
Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 2010.
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Ms. Qian did not hold directorships in any listed public
companies in the last three years.

Mr. Liu Qingbo (2/F %) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 46, is the vice
president of the Company and joined the Group in April
2004. Since joining the Group, Mr. Liu has held various
positions including the engineer of Environmental Technology
Development Center, the debugging manager, a manager
of customer training, the minister of department of operation
and maintenance project management, the deputy general
manager of operation and maintenance center, the general
manager of operation and maintenance center and an
assistant of president of Beijing Bogi. Mr. Liu is mainly
responsible for overseeing the operation and maintenance of
projects of the Company. Mr. Liu also serves as a director of
Hejin Bogi, Puzhou Bogi and Changjizhou Bogi Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd.* (B EFMEFREREHEBR A A).

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu was the design engineer
of electric control department of Tongfang Shareholding
Co., Ltd.*
consulting solutions in the areas of fuel gas desulfurization,
denitrification and dedusting, from July 2001 to April 2004,
where Mr. Liu was responsible for designing solutions in

(R AR BB AR]), a provider of environmental

relation to fuel gas treatment by way of desulfurization and
denitrification.

Mr. Liu graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s
degree in thermal energy and power engineering in June
1998, and obtained a master’'s degree in thermal engineering
from Tsinghua University in June 2001.

Mr. Liu did not hold directorships in any listed public
companies in the last three years.

Mr. Lu Jing (F£8) (“Mr. Lu”), aged 58, is the vice president
of the Company and joined the Group in March 2011. Since
joining the Group, Mr. Lu has held various positions including
an assistant for the president and the general manager of
department of information, the general manager of Jianan
subcontracting department (E% % & #6), the vice president
and the general manager of marketing and sales center of
Beijing Boqgi. Mr. Lu is primarily responsible for marketing
development and sales. Mr. Lu does not hold any other
position with the members of the Group.
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Prior to joining the Group, for the period from November 2004
to June 2010, Mr. Lu served as an assistant manager of Great
Wall Computer Software & Systems Inc* (RIkatE#E(FE X
#AEBR /AT, a company mainly engaged in information safety
business. Mr. Lu also served at the computer room of 57th
Institute of the General Staff Council of People’s Liberation
Army (BB2ER+HWRAEMZ) from July 1983.

Mr. Lu obtained a bachelor's degree in applied computer
science from PLA Engineering Technology College (AR
FETRREMER) in July 1983.

Mr. Lu did not hold directorships in any listed public
companies in the last three years.

Ms. Ma Zhuo (5 %) (“Ms. Ma”), aged 45, vice president of
the Company, joined the Group in March 2006. Since she
joined the Group, Ms. Ma served several positions in the
Company, such as the general manager of the Operating
Planning Department, general manager of the Financial
Management Center, deputy director of the tender and
supervision committee, general manager of the internal
control department, general manager of the President’s Office,
general manager of the Information Management Department,
assistant to the president and vice president. Ms. Ma is
primarily responsible for marketing strategy and promotion,
brand management and client servicing of the Company. Ms.
Ma does not hold any other positions in other members of the
Group.
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Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Ma worked at the Electricity
Business Quality Management Center under the State
Electricity Regulatory Commission (X EHEEZESE
X EEEEHR D) responsible for the financial auditing of
power plants from October 2005 to March 2006. During the
period from August 2004 to September 2005, Ms. Ma served
as the chief financial officer of Xuji Lianhua International
Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd. (RFEBERERIRETRES
fR/AF]), being responsible for finance, taxation, investment
and financing analysis and application for recognition as a
High and New Technology Enterprise of the Company. During
the period from July 1998 to July 2004, Ms. Ma worked at
Beijing Sifang Automation Co., Ltd. (JbLFRPUF 4R B B1LAHS
BRAF]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601126) mainly engaging in development
and research, production, sales and technical service of
products for automation of power station, relaying protection,
automation of power plants. Ms. Ma served as the senior
manager of the finance department, business manager of the
market department and general manager of the credit control
department respectively, in charge of finance accounting and
taxation, regional agents and large customers and contract
risks control.

Ms. Ma graduated from North China Electric Power University
(4LE ) KE) with a bachelor’'s degree in accounting in July
1998. Ms. Ma obtained a Master Degree of Executive Master
of Business Management of Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business in September 2010.

Ms. Ma did not hold any other directorships in any listed
public companies in the last three years.

Ms. Yan Zhilian (B ) (“Ms. Yan”), aged 61, vice president
of the Company, joined the Group in 2004. Since she joined
the Group, Ms. Yan served several positions in Beijing Boqi
Electric Power SCITECH Co., Ltd. Gt REFEHREERA
A]), such as the technical director, business manager, general
manager of the cost actuary department, general manager
of the technical department and assistant to the president.
Ms. Yan is primarily responsible for estimation and control of
project costs and matters related to project settlement of the
Company.
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Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Yan was the department
head of the construction cost department in Liaoning Tianyi
Accounting Firm* (EZEXEZFTENSEHFAT) from October 1999
to October 2004, the department head of civil engineering
projects of Liaoyang Petrochemical Fiber Company* (& 5
Aim{e# A R]) from December 1985 to October 1999, and a
technician of the Third Construction Company of Liaoning
Province* (E B4 % = & % 2 7)) from December 1977 to

December 1985.

Ms. Yan obtained a bachelor’s degree in industrial engineering
from Fushun Petroleum Institute* (#EJIE/G M EFT) in July 1983.

Ms. Yan did not hold any other directorships in any listed
companies the last three years.

Mr. Tu Yazhou (“Mr. Tu”), aged 48, vice president of the
Company, joined the Group in January 2019. Mr. Tu is
mainly responsible for the safety and quality management,
engineering construction project tendering and bulk materials
and equipment procurement management of the Company.
Mr. Tu does not hold any other positions in other members of
the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tu served as the deputy general
manager of Tongxing Environmental Protection Technology
Co., Ltd. from February to December 2018. Mr. Tu was the
deputy general manager of Jiangsu Heyichang Environmental
Protection Company from May 2011 to January 2018. Mr. Tu
was the manager of the engineering department of Xutang
Power Generation Co., Ltd.* (2 EZXEBERAEEA T
October 1990 to February 2009.

a]) from

Mr. Tu graduated from Nanjing School of Power Engineering*
(MRENER) in 1990 and obtained a bachelor’s degree
in civil engineering from Southwest University* (Fi@A£2) in
2016.

Mr. Tu did not hold any other directorships in any listed
companies in the last three years.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Qian Xiaoning (8 2), aged 46, is a joint company
secretary of our Company. She was appointed as the joint
company secretary of the Company on 13 February 2017.
Ms. Qian’s biographical details are set forth in the paragraph
headed “Senior Management” above.

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (E£1) (“Ms. Wong?), is a joint company
secretary of our Company. She was appointed as the joint
company secretary of the Company on 13 February 2017.

Ms. Wong has over 13 years of experience in providing
company secretarial services in Hong Kong. Ms. Wong
currently is a vice president of SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for assisting
listed companies in professional company secretarial work.
Prior to joining SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited, she worked as the secretarial officer of KCS Hong
Kong Limited, a corporate service provider, from May 2008
to February 2011. During the period from July 2003 to May
2008, Ms. Wong worked at Grant Thornton (an international
accounting firm). Ms. Wong was admitted as associate of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and was elected
as association of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom in July 2013.

Ms. Wong was awarded a bachelor’'s degree of Arts in
Marketing and Public Relations from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (B8 E T AE) in October 2007, and
obtained a master degree of Corporate Governance degree
from The Open University of Hong Kong (B8 AR KXE) in
December 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED T

The Group has been committed to the development of the
environmental protection industry. As an independent flue gas
treatment integrated services provider, the Group is principally
engaged in the flue gas treatment business, which comprises
three segments, namely flue gas desulfurization, flue gas
denitrification and dust removal. The Group also provides a
full range of comprehensive environmental protection services
to various industry enterprises, such as existing coal-fired
power plants and enterprises in steel, petrochemical, coking
and electrolytic aluminum sectors through various business
models including environmental protection facility engineering
(“EPC"), operation and maintenance (“O&M”) and concession
operations.

According to the statistics from the National Energy
Administration, the industrial power generated by power plants
above-scale in the PRC increased by 3.5% year-on-year in
2019, which was much lower than the growth rate in 2018, of
which thermal power only increased by 1.9% Therefore, the
Group has been vigorously exploring its flue gas treatment
business in the non-electricity sectors and tailoring the
services of “EPC+0O&M” to the actual needs of customers,
so as to further expand its market shares in non-electricity
sectors such as steel, coking and electrolytic aluminum.
Meanwhile, the Group has successfully developed industrial
sewage treatment business and actively explored its business
in the hazardous and solid waste treatment/disposal sector.

1. INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2019, the environmental protection industry
experienced a new situation, with environmental
protection policies announced intensively by the central
government and local authorities. Efforts on environment
protection were further stepped up and a large-scale
regulation regime on water, soil, solid waste and gas
was basically formed, under which the market forces of
third-party governance on pollution were fully mobilized.
With the support of national policies, the environmental
protection industry will have a further growth in output
scale.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

On 28 April 2019, five government ministries of China,
including the Ministry of Ecology and Environment
of PRC and the National Development and Reform
Commission of PRC, jointly issued the Opinions on
Promoting the Implementation of Ultra-low Emissions
in the Steel Industry (<8 M # & e il &= 77 2 &8 K BE
BMEER)), proposing to enhance policy support in,
among other things, taxation, capital, price, finance
and environmental protection for enterprises in the steel
industry that have completed the transformation for
ultra-low emissions, strengthen corporate responsibility,
adopt strict evaluation and management, and
strengthen supervision and enforcement. By the end
of 2020, the key areas shall have made significant
progress in the transformation of steel enterprises for
ultra-low emissions, and shall strive to complete the
transformation of about 60% of the production capacity;
by the end of 2025, the key areas should have basically
completed the transformation, and the country shall
strive to complete more than 80% of the production
capacity.

On 17 June 2019, the General Office of the Central
Committee of the Communist Party of China (“CPC”)
and the General Office of the State Council of PRC
issued the Regulations on the Central Government's
Supervision of the Ecological Environmental Protection
((PRAERRRFREESES LHEHRTE)) aiming to
standardize the supervision of ecological environmental
protection, strictly fulfill the responsibility of ecological
environmental protection, promote the construction
of ecological civilization and build a beautiful
China. Around the corner of the second round of
Central Government’s Supervision of the Ecological
Environmental Protection, the issue of such regulations
further demonstrated the determination of the CPC
Central Committee and the State Council of the PRC to
strengthen the construction of an ecological civilization
and enhance ecological environmental protection
efforts. Enterprises in China shall strengthen their
governance on various aspects, such as air, water
and solid waste, to meet emission standards, further
heightening the market demand for the environmental
protection industry.

EEENRED T (&)

2019F4 H28H - Bl AREIRIFEHS - HE
ERERMUEZESETHAIAMIEEE
AR EEEREETEBRERNE
R RS TR EBE R SCER 1T
EhE - MATK - - B B 28
BREFTHABRZFNE - #bhEEE
B BRETESRE b EBHE - 5
20204 [ A - 5 B[ 1o S0 8 1> SRR K BRI
BUSEUSBABBER © NF60%LAERT
LS - 2025 K AT - E R A AT
X 2B F80%A L ERE TR B -

2019F6A17H - FBIREEPREZE S
AR PRIEEET AR (R4
RIRBREBEIERE) HENRER
THEEERBREESTIIE  BEERE
RBRERT  HEARETHRR 2R
EBFE - FE_HPRELIRRERA
SREN 2B - ZAREMEEE —SEESP
B E AR - RSB nRERESCRARERR N
SRAREIRIBRERRL - SHEEEEKR
oK BESSFEMEAIENEE
EHEMENR  BROTEMBHERKBE—F
TR o

Annual Report 2019 %3 35



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENRED T (&)

36

On 1 July 2019, the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC issued the Comprehensive Air
Pollution Control Plan for Industrial Furnaces and Kilns
((ITEBEERTSAGEARERLR)), stating that while
industrial furnaces and kilns are widely used in various
industries such as steel, coking, nonferrous metal,
building material, petrochemical, chemical engineering
and machinery manufacturing and play a important
supporting role in industrial development, they are
also the main sources of air pollution in the industrial
field. The plan requires Chinese local governments to
achieve the following targets by 2020: (i) improve the
comprehensive control and management system for air
pollution from industrial furnaces and kilns; (ii) ensure
the industrial furnaces and kilns are fully in compliance
with emission standards; (iii) significantly enhance
the standard of the related equipment and pollution
governance on industrial furnaces and kilns in key
areas of air pollution control such as Beijing, Tianjin,
Hebei, the Yangtze River Delta and Fenhe and Weihe
River Plains; (iv) further reduce the emissions of sulfur
dioxide, nitrogen oxides, particulate matter and other
pollutants in various industries; (v) facilitate the effective
control of the aggregate carbon dioxide emissions from
key industries such as steel and building materials;
and (vi) promote the continuous improvement of
environmental air quality and the high-quality industrial
development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group commenced its flue gas treatment business
in 2003 and is among the first independent participants
in the flue gas treatment industry in China. The services
of the Group cover the entire industry-chain of the flue
gas treatment industry, from project design, equipment
procurement and facilities construction to operation
and maintenance and concession operation of flue
gas treatment facilities. In 2019, the Group acquired
a sewage treatment center of Shanxi Lubao Industrial
Park in China (“Lubao Sewage Treatment Center”) and
shall successfully begin its industrial sewage treatment
business. We are gradually transforming our role from a
coordinated flue gas solution provider to the intelligent
environmental protection housekeeper in relation to
the comprehensive service of flue gas treatment,
industrial sewage treatment, hazardous and solid waste
treatment/disposal. Moreover, the Group’s business
has a broad geographic coverage, reaching nearly
30 provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions
in China. Furthermore, the Group has been striving to
expand its business overseas, including in Europe,
South Asia, Latin America, Africa and Southeast Asia.
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The following map shows the distribution of the projects T B %) R 201912 A31H » AN&EE £
of the Group within the PRC as of 31 December 2019: FREREARIEE D1
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had also executed,
or had been implementing, over ten projects in regions
outside the PRC, such as Europe, South Asia, Latin
America, Africa and Southeast Asia. As of 31 December
2019, the Group’s overseas desulfurization units have
accumulated a capacity of 5,710MW.

The following map shows the distribution of the projects
of the Group outside the PRC as of 31 December 2019:

As an integrated environmental protection services
provider, the Group also provides its services through
various business models including EPC, Q&M and
concession operations (including “Build-Operate-
Transfer” or “BOT”, and “Build-Own-Operate” or
‘BO0O”).

EEENRED T (&)
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EPC

A typical EPC business model involves project design,
procurement of equipment and materials, project
construction and equipment installment services
in relation to SO, or NO_ emission control and dust
removal primarily for power plants, aluminum factories,
steel factories and chemical plants. The Group acts
as the main contractor and is responsible for the
design of the project; procurement and selection
of various environmentally-friendly materials and
equipment from domestic and overseas suppliers;
construction subcontracting and supervision of the
project construction and equipment installment; testing,
inspection and trial operation of the facilities; and
delivery of a project to the customer upon its completion
and inspection by the competent government authority
or independent third parties or customers.

In 2019, the Group further expanded its market share
in steel flue gas treatment by entering into contracts
in relation to the flue gas treatment project for 350m?
sintering machine of Tianjin Iron Factory and the flue
gas treatment project for 90m? sintering machine with
Jinyuan Industrial Co., Ltd.. As such, the Group’s
flue gas treatment performance in the steel industry
continued to grow steadily. In the meantime, the Group
entered into a contract for the 4 x 600 t/d lime double-
hearth kiln flue gas SCR (selective catalytic reduction)
denitrification project with Hebei Jinxi Africa Metal
Mine Industry Co., Ltd., which is the Group’s first time
participating in the industrial kiln flue gas treatment,
thus further expanding into the new non-electricity flue
gas treatment market for the Group.

In 2019, the Group entered into a contract on the flue
gas desulfurization and denitrification project for the
LUCKY 1 x 660MW coal-fired power station in Pakistan,
which was the Group’s another breakthrough in the
overseas market in response to China’'s “Belt and
Road” and “China-Pakistan Economic Corridor” policy
initiatives.

EPC
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In 2019, the Group entered into an EPC project which
is of the high-voltage electrode boiler heating and
thermal storage load shifting auxiliary service project
of the State Power Investment Fushun Thermal Power
Company. As such, the business scope of the Group
has been expanded.

In 2019, the total contract value of new EPC projects
(including desulfurization, denitrification and dust
removal projects) of the Group in operation amounted to
RMB486 million, of which the contract value of new EPC
projects in steel industry was RMB226 million.

The following table sets forth the status of the EPC
projects under construction as of 31 December 2019:

EEENRED T (&)

R2019%F - AEERFERERMIERE
73R A = JBE T A SR R R A A S 5 B AR
BIEBEPCHEABIRR - MR T EBEME
R, -

20195 » REBFEI AT INITEPCIER
(BHER - BMEERREEE) e N8
BERARKIGEE T - B - f#1T3
EPCIEEFEARBARK226E&E T °

T &R 3R MN2019F12A310 £ BEPCIE
BERWT :

Environmental protection facility Newly built/ Aggregate
No. engineering projects under construction Type of project upgraded Date of contract contract value
F¥  EERRREIEER BEERY HB/ME  AREITRE ARE
(Month/Year) (RMB million)
(£/R) (AR¥EER)
1, Shentou Electric Power Phase |l Desulfurization and dust Newly built December 2014 354
Desulfurization System and WESP Project removal i 20145124
BERE BN ARG LA EREER BmRkirE
2. Beihai Desulfurization Project Desulfurization Newly built November 2015 150
tEHEIER B ifd 20155117
3. Shouyang Green Island Project Green Island Newly built December 2015 288
SHRREER RRE i) 20156128
4, Shangaiu Desulfurization Project Desulfurization Newly built June 2016 86
AERIER ik iy 2016567
51 Phase Il Desulfurization EP Project in Serbia Desulfurization Newly built September 2016 90
ER G HHREPER ki ifd 2016597
6. Seawater Desulfurization System and Desulfurization Newly built November 2016 91
Equipment Supply Project in Pakistan ki i3 20165118
EEEEaKRERARRBRERER
7. Xinjiang New Energy #1-2 Unit Desulfurization Newly built December 2016 72
Desulfurization Project ik i 20165124
ME- R RANRIER
8. Gaogiao Denitrification System Supplies Denitrification Upgraded April 2017 17
Procurement Project iR i 2017%54A
EENEERNEREER
9. Nanyang Desulfurization Project Desulfurization Newly built March 2017 168
HEHREER ki ifd 2017434
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Environmental protection facility Newly built/ Aggregate
No. engineering projects under construction Type of project upgraded Date of contract contract value
F$  ERRRREIRER HERR HE/MWE  ARETRE ARE
(Month/Year) (RMB million)
(/A) (AR¥EETR)
10. Jinxi Wanton 14, 2#, 3# Sintering Machines Green Island Upgraded May 2018 216
Flue-gas Ultra-low Emission Project RIRE i 2018454
ERERM 2 MELRER
BEHRIER
1. Jingneng Gao'antun Gas-fired Denitrification Upgraded June 2018 24
Thermal Power Co., Ltd Waster Heat Boiler i K 2018464
Denitrification Upgrade Project
RERTIMAREAREALA
BEBEREREEE
12. Shandong Haihua Thermal Power Company Desulfurization and Expansion and July 2018 50
Third Power Plant Desulfurization, dust removal upgraded 201857 A
Dust Removal Expansion and Upgrade Project i JefR E BRYE
WREABRA=EHMRGRE
EEYERR
13. Jingxi Gas Thermal Power Denitrification Upgraded August 2018 17
Plant #1, #3 Boiler Denitrification System iy i 2018%F8 A
Technical Upgrade Project
REMRAT! SR BERHES
RiiuE T
14. Zhongke Joint Venture Guangdong Refining and  Denitrification Newly built September 2018 25
Chemical Integration Project ke i3 2018597
Denitrification Project
RREERRRI — B EEREER
15. Chuanwei Denitrification, Desulfurization and Green Island Upgraded September 2018 206
Dust Removal Ultra Low Emissions BRE K 2018597
Upgrade Project
IR - WA RS BB E S E R R
16. Weigiao Group Aluminium Power One, Two, Desulfurization Upgraded November 2018 156
Three, Four, Five, Yangxin and ik Mg 2018511
Beihai Electrolytic Aluminum Flue Gas
Desulfurization Project
nEEEEE-— - @1
B tERREREERNTIER
17. Tianjin Iron Factory 350m? Sintering Desulfurization,denitrification Upgraded March 2019 164
Machines Flue Gas Treatment Project and dust removal i 2019F3A
REER350T EERERELR MR E
42  China Bogqi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. HEEFRE (ER) BRAF



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEmE

a2 (&)

Environmental protection facility Newly built/ Aggregate
No. engineering projects under construction Type of project upgraded Date of contract contract value
F$  ERRRREIRER HERR HE/MWE  ARETRE ARE
(Month/Year) (RMB million)
(/A) (AR¥EER)
18. POWER CHINA Lucky 660MW Coal-fired Power ~ Desulfurization Newly built April 2019 132
Plant Desulfurization Equipment Procurement  Fi i 2019%4A
Project in Pakistan
hEZ M EALucky 660MW
MEBUNRREREER
19. Jinyuan Industrial Co., Ltd. 90m? Sintering Desulfurization,denitrification Newly built April 2019 62
Machines Flue Gas Treatment Project and dust removal g3 2019544
BREZERAR0MEERER M ERRE
REIR
20. EPC project of the high-voltage electrode boiler  Heating and thermal storage Newly built August 2019 101
heating and thermal storage load shifting load shifting auxiliary service ~ #2 201984
auxiliary service project of the State Power HAEAREHHRE
Investment Fushun Thermal Power Company
BXEREERES R AR ESHRHAE
HRERACHYREEREPCEAD
21. 4X600 t/d lime double-hearth kiln flue gas SCR Denitrification Newly built December 2019 27
denitrification project of Hebei Jinxi Africa ik if 20195128

Metal Mine Industry Co., Ltd.
it RFE e BRI EARRE4X600 td
RREEEERSCRIHIEEE
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O&M

The provision of O&M services mainly includes
operation services and regular maintenance services
for desulfurization and denitrification facilities owned
by the customers. The Group acts as a contractor to
provide desulfurization, denitrification and dust removal
operation services. The scope of work involves the full
operation, repair, upgrade and maintenance of flue gas
treatment system/facilities of coal-fired power plants.
Under the O&M projects, our customers are either
charged service fees for the O&M services based on
the total amount of on-grid electricity generated during
the service period, or a price predetermined at the
commencement of the project based on the pre-agreed
scope of work. Revenues from the O&M business can
be a recurring one, generating stable cash flow for the
Group.

In 2019, the Group acted as a contractor under
the O&M projects to provide operation services in
desulfurization, denitrification, dust removal and
industrial sewage treatment. Regular maintenance
services included a provision of technical support,
facilities testing, maintenance services and spare parts
replacement. Prior to 2019, the Group’s O&M customers
were mainly concentrated in the thermal power sector.
In 2019, the Group successfully expanded its O&M
business to the steel, coking and industrial sewage
sectors, and the O&M services for the Lubao Sewage
Treatment Center in China which was acquired in the
same year, and have been undertaken by the Group
independently. As of 31 December 2019, the Group had
a total of 19 O&M projects under operation, which have
operated consistently with their emissions in compliance
with required standards and shall provide a stable
source of business growth of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The following table sets forth the installed capacities
and status of the O&M projects of the Group under
operation as of 31 December 2019:

EEEWE

a2 (&)

R2019%F12A31H  AEBNKREESE

HENKKAERRABBERAT :

Starting date Expiring date of
No. Project name Type of project of service service contract Installed capacity
F¥  EREW BERER R¥EH B REANEREH RHRE
(Month/Year) (Month/Year)
(%/R) (%/R)
1, Yangcheng #1-6 Unit Flue Gas Desulfurization July 2018 August 2020 6x350MW
Desulfurization O&M Project i 2018%7A 2020%8A
Bi1-65E AR E R FT g A B
2. Yangcheng #7-8 Unit Flue Gas Desulfurization June 2018 August 2020 2x600MW
Desulfurization O&M Project B 2018%6A 2020%8A
Fi7-8Si AR ITERIAR
3. Yangcheng #7-8 Unit Slag Removal Slag removal June 2018 August 2020 2x600MW
O&M Project R 2018464 2020%8A
Fa7-eR AR EERIAR
4. Bulian Flue Gas Desulfurization O&M Project Desulfurization April 2013 June 2019 2x660MW
hERRMTERAR ot 20134A 2019567
5 Qinzhou Desulfurization Q&M Project Desulfurization July 2015 June 2021 2x630MW+
Mg R R ki 201557A 2021567 2x1,000MW
6. Jingjiang Flue Gas Desulfurization and Desulfurization and March 2016 March 2020 2x660MW
Dust Removal O&M Project dust removal 2016E3A 2020%3R
BIERRGERREERER gt R
7. Tianjin SDIC Jinneng Power Plant Desulfurization August 2016 December 2020 4x1,000MW
Desulfurization, WESP and Water Intake ik 201658 A 2020512
System Operation and Cleaning Project
REER T RBIUKET RRZER
8. Yangxi Flue Gas Desulfurization and Desulfurization and January 2017 December 2025 2x660MW+2x600MW
Denitrification &M Project denitrification 2017E1A 202512
BREERM N EEER e B2 i B8
9. Chengde Desulfurization O&M Project Desulfurization May 2017 September 2019 2x350MW
AR TERER B 201745R 201959
10. Shouguang Auxiliary Ashing and Desulfurization May 2018 May 2021 2x1,000WM
Sulfurization Control System Entrusted B 2018F5 202155
Operation Project
SARBBEZRELETER
11. Shanyin Phase I Environmental Protection O&M  Denitrification, June 2018 May 2021 2x350MW
e —HBRxERER desulfurization and 2018561 202165R

slag removal

TR L ER B P
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Starting date Expiring date of
No. Project name Type of project of service service contract Installed capacity
F¥ EEER BEEER R A & PR & KER A & EHAE
(Month/Year) (Month/Year)
(%/R) (%/R)
12. Jiantou Zunhua Auxiliary System Entrusted Desulfurization August 2018 July 2019 2x350MW
Operation Project B 2018F8 7 20197
BRE(BHARETIEER
13. Xilinhaote Desulfurization and Desulfurization and December 2019 December 2020 2x660MW
Denitrification O&M Project denitrification 2019F12 2020F12
HinEER N EERER kbR
14. Jinxi Iron and Steel O&M Project Denitrification, March 2019 February 2022 265m? sintering
EFEEELER desulfurization and 2019437 202227 machines
dust removal 265m2E L 14
BB R PR
15. Jinxi Special Steel &M Project Denitrification, March 2019 February 2022 2x210m?2+1x265m?
AARIERER desulfurization and 2019F37 2022527 sintering machines
dust removal 2x210m?+1x265m?
HEknkkz it
16. Denitrification, Desulfurization and Dust Denitrification, November 2019 November 2022 350m?sintering
Removal O&M Project on 350m? desulfurization and 2019F11 A 2022%11R machines
Sintering Machines of Tianjin Iron Plant dust removal 350m? A5
REERI50T KBS MEMmERE
HHIERB %R
17. Denitrification O&M Project on 360m? Denitrification December 2019 November 2022 360m? sintering
Sintering Machines of Tianjin Iron Plant Fim 2019%12R 2022F11 A machines
REEBO0TFkEEH 360m? b
MhERER
18. Flue Gas Denitrification, Desulfurization and Denitrification, December 2019 November 2024 4765 hole 6-05m
Dust Removal O&M Project on 465 Hole desulfurization and 2019F12 2024F11 A stamp charging
6.05m Stamp Charging Coke Qven of dust removal coke oven
Shanxi Lubao Group's Jingang Zhaofeng B HRE 4°65£16-057K
Coal Chemical Company BREERE
WERESEE MK SR T4X65716.06K
BEEBERMTNHREERER
19. Flue Gas Denitrification, Desulfurization Denitrification, December 2019 November 2024 4x75 1/
and Dust Removal O&M Project on desulfurization and 2019F12 2024F11 A
4x75 t/h Facilities of Shanxi Lubao Group’s dust removal
Shanxi Jintao Lubao Chemical Co., Ltd. B HRE
WEREEBIRRERECITERETLR
475 YhiRER AR - BB - REREEEER
46  China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. HEEFRE (ER) BRAF



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Concession Operation Business

Under the concession operation business model, the
Group is responsible for the financing, investment,
construction and upgrading of a project according to
its concession contracts with its customers. In general,
the concession projects are funded by the Group’s
internal funds or borrowings from local banks. Upon the
completion of construction, the Group owns the project
assets and operates the project for a period specified
in the concession agreement, which is typically 15 to
20 years, and the Group is entitled to collect revenues
generated from the project during the term of the
contract. Revenues generated from the concession
operation business during the operation phase of the
relevant projects are calculated based on the on-grid
power generation of the customer during the operation
phase multiplied by the unit price specified in the
concession contract, which is generally settled every
calendar month. Further, the Group also generates
revenues from the sales of by-products during the
operation of the environmental protection facilities.
The fees that the Group receives for the provision of
concession services under concession agreement
typically include service fees based on a guaranteed
minimum flue gas treatment volume multiplied by a fixed
unit price (pre-determined at the time the concession
agreement is entered into with the customer) and such
fees are subject to adjustment by certain variable costs
the Group incurred.

In 2019, the Group continued to carry out its concession
operation business, including desulfurization,
denitrification and green island (which is an integrated
flue gas treatment system to treat synergistically the
flue gas pollutants produced by the boilers of coal-fired
power plants, including denitrification, desulfurization,
dust removal, induced drafted fan system, reheating
system). As of 31 December 2019, the Group has
accumulated nine concession operation projects and
all of which have been under operation smoothly, laying
a strong foundation for us to operate continuously and
develop steadily.

EEENRED T (&)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The following table sets forth details of the concession R2019F 12 A31H & A& B KR E /) B aF
operation projects of the Group under operation as of at IRETEE FIET

31 December 2019:

Installed  Type of Newly built/ Total Date of signing Ending date of
No. Project name capacity project upgraded investment  contract concession period
RBHEEnR
R EAER kKRE HARR HE/ wiE RESBE AREITAY ERAS
RMB million  (Year/Month) (Year/Month)
AE%EER (£/5) (%/R)
1. Jiangxi Jinggangshan 2x300MW  Desulfurization ~ Newly built 224 January 2008 (for Phase I)  July 2030 (for Phase 1)
BOT Project +2x660MW B e August 2008 (for Phase 1)  December 2030
LEHMIIBOTIER 2008514 (—H) (for Phase I1)
2008584 (=H) 2030574 (—#)
20305 12R (ZH)
2, Shanxi Hejin BOT Project 2x350MW  Denitrification ~ Newly built 90 June 2012 September 2033
WA 2BOTER ik i 201256 (for Unit #1)
May 2033 (for Unit #2)
2033594 (15K4)
2033F5A (2584
3. Shanxi Puzhou 2x300MW  Denitrification ~ Newly built 84 June 2012 January 2034 (for Unit #1)
Phase | BOT Project it g 2012664 May 2033 (for Unit #2)
W EM—HBOTIER 034F18 (154
2033557 (25 KAE)
4, Shanxi Puzhou Phase I 2x350MW  Denitrification ~ Newly built 112 May 2014 End of 2037
BOT Project fidie g 2014%5R 2037FE
WEHM = #BOTIER
5" Shanxi Yuguang BOT Project ~ 2x300MW  Greenlsland  Upgraded 82  May 2015 February 2036 (for Unit #1)
I EHKBOTIEE FRE Y& 2015%5A May 2035 (for Unit #2)
2036528 (15K4)
2035557 (24
6. Xinjiang Shenhuo BOT Project ~ 4x350MW  Green Island  Upgraded 490 June 2017 End of 2032
BB ABOTER BRE ik 201756A 20325
. Huainan Gugiao BOT Project ~ 2x330MW  Green Island ~ Upgraded 173 May 2018 End of 2033
ERERBOTER BRE Bk 201851 2033FE
8. Xinjiang Guotai Xinhua 2x350MW  Green Island  Upgraded 150 July 2018 June 2028
BOT Project BRE HiE 2018%7A 20286
HERRHEBOTER
9. Guangxi Laibin BOO Project 2x300MW  GreenIsland  Upgraded 281 December 2018 End of 2033
ERRENTHERE RRE ik 2018512 20335
BOOER
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Industrial Sewage Treatment Business

In 2019, the Group acquired the Lubao Sewage
Treatment Center at a cash consideration of RMB300
million. The designed capacity of the wastewater
(sewage) biological treatment unit, the wastewater
(sewage) advanced treatment and recycling unit, and
the reclaimed water and sewage recycling unit is 560m?/
h, 560m%h and 400m?%h, respectively. The operation
of Lubao Sewage Treatment Center applies advanced
technologies, including ultrafiltration, nanofiltration,
reverse osmosis and other processes. With wastewater
biochemical treatment, wastewater advanced recycling
equipment and reclaimed water and sewage recycling,
it operates throughout the business chain.

The industrial sewage treatment business is one of the
new directions for the Group’s future development.
Through the acquisition of Lubao Sewage Treatment
Center, the Group has successfully explored a new
sector in the environmental protection market, which
will bring continuous and stable benefits to the Group’s
performance. The Group regards Lubao Sewage
Treatment Center as a demonstration project for such
industry and intends to train a team of technology
and operating professionals in industrial wastewater
treatment, so as to lay a solid foundation for the
development of the sewage treatment market of
chemical parks in China.

EEENRED T (&)

THSKEEER

2019%F - AEBEWRERE)S/KEEHL
ReRE/ARKEI00EET - BE (05) K
W) BRI B TR R AT LR B560m/h ~ BE
(7)) RRE IR EI A ETH R RIER
18 /3560m?/h ~ fRER/KEES /K@ A B TTH
& 5T BRI AR AR /3400m3/h © BB )5 KR IR
hPLoREES  BRERE - AR k2
BETE  BARKELRE  BKRE
BIREEARBRKESKER - X/

RTEEE °

TRSKEEXRBEARERKEBE RO
ARz —  BEERBERESKEEDL
R RBREMIGH AL - RRSEEE
BERISERENKE - AEERARE
HKRDMERZ AR RBIAR - BB
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AR REERBETE(C TERERS/KEE
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Annual Report 2019 3 49

%)



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEFNWED T (&)

FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATING
RESULTS

In 2019, the development of the global economy was
stagnant, while the economy of mainland China was
growing steadily under the influence of the complex
landscape both domestically and abroad and has
experienced an economic slowdown. Against the
backdrop of the relatively weak market demand and the
escalation of Sino-US trade disputes, the production
of industrial enterprises has continued to slow and the
operating structure has been undergoing adjustment.
The environmental protection industry has ushered in
a new round of competition and challenges, which has
heightened requirements for the enterprises’ ability on
cost control and financing.

In 2019, the Group continued to maintain a sound
business strategy, actively make deployments on
new business sectors and make new breakthroughs
in industrial sewage treatment projects. Besides, the
Group expanded its flue gas treatment business in non-
electricity sectors and increased its market shares in
steel, petrochemical, electrolytic aluminum sectors.
In additional, the Group’s main business continued to
develop steadily, with optimized operating structure,
excellent asset quality, abundant cash flow and bank
facilities, as well as continued to maintain a relatively
low gearing ratio.

Revenue

In the 2019 Financial Year, the Group’s total revenue
increased by 5.2% to RMB1,836 million as compared
with RMB1,745 million for the 2018 Financial Year,
mainly attributable to the growth in the revenue of the
Group’s new business during the reporting period.

BAESAR I R AR SR AR

20194 - AL EEEEABEABH - F
B BEERANIMERE R AT E TBHRK
# o OIEURAE - TS T KA R B A
ZEFFRALBE T TELELER
BINGE  SEBEBAR IRRITEDRT
— R A RE - HR R IE S R
BMERENRETESHESR -

20195 AREHRERFREOELER
B - BB ERE - TEITKERE
HEBRGHRE  EBAFEARERAE
X5 #E - A ERBRERBMSHE
I TREBRERERR K248
BELL EERMEER  REMMRITR
Erm  EEABRFREERFTBIEKF -

L'ON

REBHWARBR2019FRFEAAR
#1,836E BT 2018 BFEMAR
k1,745 B BT R5.2% © T EHRAE
EREBANTEBBRABER -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Group generates revenues primarily from three
major operating segments: (i) the EPC business, (ii)
the O&M business, and (iii) concession operation
business. The following table sets forth a breakdown of
the revenue of the Group by segment for the periods

EEENRED T (&)

AEBTER=—FELEDBMBMIULA - (i)
EPCET : (i)E#H X+ R(i)fFar&eE
5% o PRFIIAKERARHBZRD B

20 W A BRA -

stated.
Segment revenue
2 EBA
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
SEPILES HZE2018%F
12A31H 12H31H
LFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFTT
EPC EPC 730,628 722,117
Operation and Maintenance JEak 380,317 415,113
Concession Operation R 700,489 580,051
Of which: Operation Hrh B2 524,068 369,880
Construction e 176,421 210,171
Others EAb 25,062 27,717
Total g 1,836,496 1,744,998

Revenue generated from the EPC business for the
2019 Financial Year amounted to RMB731 million,
representing a slight increase as compared with
the 2018 Financial Year, mainly attributable to some
contracted projects suffered postponement or delays
in construction due to economic downturn, and no
corresponding income was recognized during the
reporting period.

The revenue generated from the O&M business for the
2019 Financial Year decreased by 8.4% to RMB380
million as compared with RMB415 million for the 2018
Financial Year, mainly attributable to the changes
in the service specification of the large-scale power
generation O&M project undertaken by the Group, the
maintenance downtime and the reduction of power
generation.

EPCEH A B20108 R EE ) AR
731HBE I B2018H M FER A K
FTEHRBOENBEZLETITRED
WTTITHTERRERBR  AERSHA
TEREEWA -

BREBHWRABR018HBEENARE
A5BHETTR A E201900 EE M AR
380E BT HP8.4% c TEHRALEE
FENALEEELEBERBEANDEE
ERERRIEZEEERD
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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52

Revenue from concession operation business for the
2019 Financial Year increased by 20.7% to RMB700
million as compared with RMB580 million for the 2018
Financial Year, mainly attributable to the increase
of operating income resulting from the beginning of
operation of the new concession operation projects in
flue gas treatment sectors during the reporting period.

Cost of Sales and Services

The Group’s cost of sales and services for the 2019
Financial Year increased by 7.2% to RMB1,530 million
as compared with RMB1,427 million for the 2018
Financial Year, mainly attributable to the increase in
the cost of raw materials and labor after the Group’s
newly added concession operation project was put into
operation during the reporting period.

Cost of sales and services for the Group’s EPC
business consists primarily of technology and design
costs, equipment procurement cost, construction and
installation costs. The cost of sales and services for the
EPC business for the 2019 Financial Year amounted
to RMB701 million, representing a slight increase of
5.3% as compared with RMB666 million for the 2018
Financial Year, mainly attributable to the slight increase
of revenue as compared to the same period of last year.

Cost of sales and services for the O&M service consists
of raw materials costs, labor costs and inspection and
repair costs. The cost of sales and services for the
O&M service for the 2019 Financial Year increased by
2.7% to RMB299 million as compared with RMB291
million for the 2018 Financial Year, mainly attributable
to the decrease in revenue from O&M services and the
increase of raw material prices.

B B E BRI A R2018H BUF E /A
R#¥5808 B LR E20190 BFEE A
R#7008 &7T - B &K20.7% c EEHRN
ANEE B R RS B E R TR B 18 3T 1 A9 R
SIS TE B IRIBEFT A R E E AIE AN o

8 E N RIS R A

REBRHEE RIREK A B2018H K FE
WARK,427E BLE RE20198 BUF
EMARKIG30EE T EK7.2% - £
EHRAEBRES ARSI LEEE
BBEM A R A TRCAIE N -

EPCEBRHERBRENATERRE &
MAMBEIAAR - BB REEA R EE A
TRKA - EPCEBRIIHE KRR K A B
2018B N FEM AR M6 E B TLIERE
20190 RFEMARKETOIBEE L - B K
5.3% c TEARBABESR EFRE -

BERRBHHEE KRB ABIE - RME
A~ NI RIS HER AR - BEHR
TEESHE MARTEA A R 20188 BN FE M A
R¥201H ETIEME201908 BFE KA
RUEEOQOE &L » 1B 12.7% - TEHRNE
HERRTE B R RHE A LR o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Cost of sales and services for the concession operation
business consists primarily of raw material costs, labor
costs, amortization and depreciation and construction
costs. The cost of sales and services for the concession
operation business for the 2019 Financial Year
increased by 13.3% to RMB528 million as compared
with RMB466 million for the 2018 Financial Year, mainly
attributable to the increase in the cost of raw materials
and labor resulting from the increase in the revenue of
the newly added concession operation project during
the reporting period

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit of the Group for the 2019 Financial Year
decreased by 3.5% to RMB307 million as compared
with RMB318 million for the 2018 Financial Year, while
the gross profit margin of the Group for the 2019
Financial Year deceased to 16.7% as compared with
18.2% for the 2018 Financial Year, mainly attributable
to the decrease in revenue from O&M business and the
increase in costs.

EEENRED T (&)

R EERHNEHEMBRERATER
& RMBIERA - AT ~ BT EM
BB o BT EBRHEE KRS
RE2018 B FEM AR EK466E BILig
RE2019 B FEMARKS28A & T
ER13.3% c T EHMNME BRIIEFET
L TE B W ASE DB BUR MR R A TR
#n o

EFNRERNER

REEEFH2018 HFER ARS8
BEITRL E201900 BUF E M AR K307
BE T B AP3.5%: FF K H20185
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEFNWED T (&)

The following table sets forth the Group’s gross profit TREHIANEBRATHI B S EBH 8
and gross profit margin for each of the business EFNREFIE o
segments for the periods stated.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
BZ2019%F BZ2018F
12A31BLEE 12A31BLEE
Gross Gross
Gross Profit Gross Profit
Profit Margin Profit Margin
EF EFIZE EF EFIZE
RMB’ 000 % RMB’ 000 %
AR®T % AR%TFR %
EPC EPC 29,344 4.0 56,523 7.8
O&M B 81,659 21.5 124,556 30.0
Concession Operation Eras e 172,257 24.6 114,042 19.7
Of which: Operation Hep @ 88 167,818 32.0 109,297 29.5
Construction s 4,439 2.5 4,745 2.3
Others HA 23,262 92.8 22,737 82.0
Total FEk) 306,522 16.7 317,858 18.2
The gross profit of the EPC business for the 2019 EPCEBHEFNB2018H HFEHARE
Financial Year decreased by 49.1% to RMB29 million S5TEB LD Z20190 FEEHARE
as compared with RMB57 million for the 2018 Financial 20B BT W A49.1% : EF K H2018
Year, while the gross profit margin for the 2019 Financial B R F B 7.8%8 2 220198 BL F [ 1Y
Year deceased to 4.0% as compared with 7.8% for the 40%  c TEARTHSRFERTEIETE
2018 Financial Year, mainly attributable to the decrease FITBEEATL - BMEKA Bk ©

of the gross profit of newly signed contracts resulting
from market competition and the increase in the raw
material costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The gross profit of the O&M business for the 2019
Financial Year decreased by 34.4% to RMB82 million as
compared with RMB125 million for the 2018 Financial
Year, while the gross profit margin decreased from
30.0% in the 2018 Financial Year to 21.5% for the 2019
Financial Year, mainly attributable to (i) the changes
in the service specification of the large-scale power
generation O&M project undertaken by the Group and
the decrease in revenue resulting from maintenance
downtime and the reduction of power generation; and
(ii) the increase of raw material prices in the O&M
business.

The gross profit of the concession operation business
for the 2019 Financial Year increased by 50.9% to
RMB172 million as compared with RMB114 million for
the 2018 Financial Year, while the gross profit margin
increased from 19.7% for the 2018 Financial Year to
24.6% for the 2019 Financial Year, mainly attributable to
(i) the increase of flue gas treatment operation projects;
(ii) the strengthening on cost control and the reduction
of raw material and energy consumption; and (iii) the
decrease of the proportion of construction revenue as
compared to the same period last year, which has a
lower gross profit margin during the construction stage.

Other Income and expenses and Other Gains and
Losses

Other income and expense and other gains and
losses consist primarily of government grants, foreign
exchange gains and losses, interest income etc.

The Group’s other income and expense and other gains
and losses for the 2019 Financial Year decreased by
78.6% to RMB25 million as compared with RMB117
million for the 2018 Financial Year. The decrease
was mainly attributable to (i) the decrease in foreign
exchange gains as compared to the same period last
year; (ii) the decrease in gains from extinguishment of
liabilities as compared to the same period last year; and
(iii) allowance of impairment losses of RMB15 million.

EEENRED T (&)

BHREBHNTEFNH018HREENARE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses
amounted to RMB29 million for the 2019 Financial Year,
as compared to RMB26 million for the same period
last year. The percentage of selling and distribution
expenses to revenue was 1.6%, up 0.1 percentage
point year-on-year, mainly attributable to the increase of
selling expenses due to the expansion of new business
in the industrial sewage treatment and hazardous and
solid waste treatment/disposal markets during the
reporting period.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses amounted to
RMB89 million for the 2019 Financial Year, as compared
to RMB98 million for the same period last year. The
percentage of administrative expenses to revenue
was 4.8% in 2019, representing a decrease of 0.8
percentage point as compared with the same period of
2018, mainly attributable to the strengthening of control
on costs and expenses.

Finance Costs

Finance costs consist of interest expense on bank
borrowings.

The Group’s finance costs for the 2019 Financial Year
amounted to RMB4 million, representing a decrease of
33.3% as compared with RMB6 million for 2018, mainly
attributable to the decrease of financing costs resulting
from the increase of the utilization of acceptance bills
for saving financial costs during the reporting period.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio is calculated as the percentage which
the Group’s total bank borrowings bears to the Group’s
total equity. The Group’s gearing ratio increased
from 3.0% as at 31 December 2018 to 4.7% as at 31
December 2019, mainly attributable to the increase
in notes payables and bank borrowings during the
reporting period.

HERD#HMAX

R2019 B E - AEBEHE RN HFAX
R/RARK20BET  MLEFAHMR26EE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Income Tax Expenses

The corporate income tax of the Group and its
subsidiaries includes the following taxation: 1) the
Company, which was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, is not subject to any Cayman lIslands taxation;
2) certain subsidiaries of the Company are entitled
to a preferential income tax rate of 15% as high-
end new technology enterprises; 3) some of the other
subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to a three-
year tax holiday followed by a three-year 50% tax rate
reduction as their operations comply with preferential
tax policies for environmental protection and energy
conservation industries; and 4) other subsidiaries are
subject to an income tax rate of 25%.

The income tax expenses of the Group for the 2019
Financial Year amounted to RMB26 million, representing
a decrease of 53.6% as compared with RMB56 million
for the same period last year, mainly attributable to
the decrease in profit before tax and newly added
preferential policies for concession operation projects.

Profit for the Year

The Group recorded a net profit of RMB183 million for
the 2019 Financial Year, as compared to a net profit of
RMB393 million for the 2018 Financial Year. Excluding
the gain from change in fair value of convertible
ordinary shares amounting to RMB134 million for
2018, the net profit of the Group for 2019 would have
decreased by RMB76 million as compared to 2018,
representing a decrease of 29.3%, mainly attributable
to (i) the decrease in gross profit of the environmental
protection facilities engineering and O&M sectors; (ii)
the decrease in foreign exchange gains as compared to
the same period last year; and (iii) the increase in R&D
expenses as compared to the same period last year.

EEENRED T (&)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Profit Attributable to the Owners of the Company

Profit attributable to the owners of the Group for the
2019 Financial Year was RMB183 million, while the
profit attributable to the owners of the Group for the
2018 Financial Year was RMB394 million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Taking into account the financial resources available
to the Group, including cash and cash equivalents on
hand, cash generated from operations and available
facilities of the Company and the net proceeds from
the Listing, and after diligent and careful analysis, the
Directors are of the view that the Group has sufficient
working capital required for the Group’s operations at
present and for the year ending 31 December 2020.

Cash Flows

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents decreased by
42.2% from RMB780 million as at 31 December 2018
to RMB451 million as at 31 December 2019, which is
mainly attributable to the expenses for the investments
and the merger and acquisition of industrial sewage
treatment and flue gas treatment concession operation
projects.

Capital Expenditure

The capital expenditure of the Group comprises
expenditures on the purchase of property, plant and
equipment and the construction of concession operation
projects. For the 2019 Financial Year, the total capital
expenditure of the Group was RMB317 million, and
mainly attributable to the investment in concession
operation projects, which have long operation periods,
high gross profit margins and stable cash flow, so as to
ensure the sustainable development of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

Pledge of the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had not pledged
any of its assets.

RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Risks on environmental protection and pollution
control policies

The Group provides substantially all of its environmental
protection services to customers in the PRC, and the
development of its businesses is greatly dependent
on the pollution preventive policies of the PRC.
Environmental protection industry is one of the major
industries that benefit from the constant support of
the PRC governments. The demand for the Group’s
environmental protection services and the revenue
generated therefrom are directly linked with the
environmental protection requirements imposed on
the current and potential customers of the Group.
However, there can be no assurance that the specific
favourable policies which are currently available
will continue to exist. In addition, these policies and
incentives may attract additional new market entrants
that can provide other products or services with
greater pollution control effects than the products and
services of the Group. Therefore, there is no assurance
that the Group will directly benefit from the changed
industry policies. However, as a large-scale brand
enterprise in the environmental protection industry, the
Group will capture new market opportunities in solid
waste treatment and sewage treatment on the basis
of its mature flue gas treatment business, and at the
same time ambitiously expand its business in the new
market of the non-electricity industries such as steel,
petrochemical and cement, with a view to achieving
the strategic objective of becoming a comprehensive
environmental protection industry group.
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Liquidity Risks

Although the Group recorded a positive operating cash
flow in the 2019 Financial Year, there is no guarantee
that the Group will have positive operating cash flows
in any future period. The Group’s ability to generate
adequate cash inflows from operating activities in
the future will depend on its overall annual fund
arrangement, its ability to recover receivables and
the credit terms it can obtain. If the Group is not able
to generate sufficient cash flows from its operations,
the Group’s operating position may be materially and
adversely affected. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity
risk management rests with the Directors, who have
established a rigid liquidity risk management regime for
the management of the Group’s liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by
various measures, such as maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and bank credit lines and
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.

Credit Risks

The credit risk primarily arises from trade and
notes receivables, receivables under concession
arrangement, bank balance and cash, pledged bank
deposit, contract assets, debt instrument at FVTOCI,
other receivables and amounts due from related parties.
Due to the nature of business of the Group, the Group
has significant concentration of credit risk on a small
number of customers and the financial guarantee
provided by the Group. As of 31 December 2019, the
aggregated amount of the Group’s trade and notes
receivables of the top five customers was RMB282
million, representing 47.7% of the total trade and notes
receivable. Besides, the receivables of the concession
operation projects amounted to RMB377 million as of
31 December 2019. The Group’s concentration of credit
risk by geographical locations is solely in the PRC, and
the Group has a credit policy in place and the exposure
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Foreign Exchange and Conversion Risks

Almost all of the Group’s operating activities are
carried out in the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated in RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange and conversion risks primarily through sales
and procurement that are denominated in currencies
other than RMB. In addition, RMB is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies and the conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to rules and
regulations of the foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC Government. The Group does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the Directors
will monitor the Group’s foreign exchange exposure
closely and may, depending on the circumstances and
trend of foreign currency, consider adopting significant
foreign currency hedging policy in the future.

OUTLOOK ON THE GROUP’S FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

With the changes in the market demand for
environmental governance, the requirements for
enterprises in the environmental protection industry
has been increasingly demanding and will bring about
a change in the industry structure. In the future, the
development of the environmental protection industry
will enter a new era characterized with intensive
pollution control, demutualized equities in enterprises,
diversified investment channels and personalized
service models.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENRED T (&)

62

In the future, the Group will continue to aim at
creating a comprehensive environmental protection
platform enterprise by adjusting its business structure,
optimizing resource allocation and expanding market
share. Besides, it will continue to expand its multiple
business areas comprising (i) flue gas governance, (ii)
industrial sewage treatment and (iii) hazardous and
solid waste treatment/disposal, striving to develop into
a world-class group in the environmental protection
industry. Looking ahead, the Group will carry out the
following key tasks:

(1) Maintain stable development of the Group’s
main business and continue to expand its
air pollution governance business in non-
electricity sectors

The Group will continue to promote smart and
intelligent O&M, provide all-round services and
vigorously build a “Bogi O&M” brand in the
industry, so as to expand its O&M project market
in the traditional flue gas governance field. The
Group will optimize the proportion between
its concession operations and O&M business
and improve the profitability of the Group.
While the current flue gas desulfurization and
denitrification business in the electricity sector
has entered a stage of in-depth governance, the
Group will seize opportunities brought about by
national policies and utilize its own technology
and extensive project experience to strive to
develop its business in non-electricity sectors.
The Group will fully tailor its one-stop service of
“EPC+0&M” to the actual needs of customers
in the steel industry, with a view to continuously
consolidating the foundation for the Group’s
sustainable development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Further establish market presence for
industrial wastewater treatment sector

The Group has actively responded to the
ecological and environmental protection
policies issued by national, ministerial and
local authorities. Leveraging on the opportunity
to improve water discharge standards, the
Group has pursued its strategic goals, actively
integrated its internal resources and acquired
Lubao Sewage Treatment Center in 2019,
successfully taking the first step of establishing
a market presence in the industrial sewage
treatment industry. In the future, the Group will
leverage on the industrial technology and project
experience of Lubao Sewage Treatment Center
to nurture a team of professional talents, enhance
technology reserves and further develop its
industrial treatment business.

Realizing the implementation of hazardous
and solid waste treatment/disposal projects

As the country has attached great importance
to the environmental protection industry and the
environmental protection awareness among the
public has been growing, coupled with the fact
that the outbreak of COVID-19 has intensified the
problem of the insufficiency of the capacity of
treatment facilities to cope with the production of
hazardous and solid waste and medical waste,
the hazardous and solid waste treatment industry
has gradually entered a rapid development
phrase and has a promising prospect of
industrial development. By seizing tightly the
market opportunities, the Group will combine
its actual needs and strategic positioning to
actively make deployments in the Beijing-Tianjin-
Tangshan regional market and roll out its specific
projects. In addition, the Group will also enter
new business areas through various forms of
technical cooperation, investment, mergers and
acquisitions.

(2)

(3)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 10 June 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of a
sewage treatment centre in Lubao Industrial Park, Lucheng
City, Shanxi Province of the PRC, for a total cash consideration
of RMB300 million.

Save for those disclosed above, the Group had no significant
investments held or material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies during the 2019
Financial Year.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 1,950 employees in
total (2018: 1,800 employees), substantially all of whom were
based in the PRC. The Group has established labor union
branches. Currently, the Group has entered into employment
contracts with all employees, in which the position, duties,
remuneration, employment benefits, training, confidentiality
obligations relating to trade secrets and grounds for
termination, among other things are specified pursuant to PRC
Labor Law and other relevant regulations.

The remuneration package of the employees includes salaries,
bonuses and allowances. Our employees also receive
supplemental medical provision, transportation allowances,
meal allowances and other benefits. The Company carries out
employee performance appraisals and establishes diversified
and dynamic appraisal mechanisms. The department heads’
salaries and remunerations will be adjusted corresponding
to the results of their performance appraisals. In compliance
with applicable PRC regulations, the Company has contributed
to social insurance funds, including pension plans, medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, unemployment
insurance and maternity insurance, and housing funds for all
its employees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

MAJOR SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 15 January 2020, Jiangxi Jinggangshan Boqi
Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* (I 78 3 ff 1L & & & (%
B ABR A7) (“Jinggangshan Bogqi’) as lessee and CITIC
Financial Leasing Co. Ltd.” (f{z&mHBEEARRAA]) (“CITIC
Leasing”) as lessor entered into a finance lease arrangement,
pursuant to which (i) CITIC Leasing agreed to purchase and
Jinggangshan Bogqi agreed to dispose certain desulfurization
and denitrification equipment at the consideration of
RMB90 million; and (ii) CITIC Leasing agreed to lease the
Jinggangshan Equipment to Jinggangshan Bogi for a term
of five years, at an estimated total amount of approximately
RMB108 million, being the sum of an one-off handling fee of
approximately RMB4 million, plus an estimated lease payment
of RMB104 million.

On the even date, Changjizhou Bogi Environmental
Ld* EaMETERBMEER QA
(“Changjizhou Bogi”) as lessee and CITIC Leasing (as lessor)

Technology Co.,

entered into a finance lease arrangement, pursuant to which
(i) CITIC Leasing agreed to purchase and Changjizhou Boqi
agreed to dispose certain desulfurization and denitrification
equipment at the consideration of RMB260 million; and (ii)
CITIC Leasing agreed to lease the Changjizhou Equipment to
Changjizhou Boqi for a term of five years, at an estimated total
amount of approximately RMB311 million, being the sum of an
one-off handling fee of RMB12 million, plus an estimated lease
payment of approximately RMB299 million.

Save as disclosed in this report, there are no major
subsequent events to 31 December 2019 which would
materially affect the Group’s operating and financial
performance as of the date of this report.

*  for identification purposes only
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Major Events for Boqi in 2019
2019 BH AR AER
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2019
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In March 2019, the Group signed
the first steel operation and

maintenance project, the Jinxi Iron
and Steel O&M Project.
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In April 2019, the Group

signed LUCKY 660MW flue gas

desulfurization project of coal-
fired power station in Pakistan.
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On 3 April 2019, to ensure the smooth HHA"M iﬂ = :;;,,ﬁm,W,HWMMv

progress of Guangxi Laibin BOO Project,
Laibin Bogi Environmental Protection
Technology Co., Ltd. (REBHFREREE
fR A &) was established.
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On 10 June 2019, the Company
entered into the asset acquisition
agreement of sewage treatment
center of Shanxi Lubao Industrial
Park, and successfully explored the
new business segment of the Group.
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On 24 June 2019, Changzhi Boqgi
Environmental Protection Technology Co.
Ltd. was incorporated, with an aim to
ensure the smooth operation of the Lubao
sewage treatment center and explore the
local environmental governance market.

Major Events for Boqi in 2019 (Continued)
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On 29 May 2019, the
Company held an annual
general meeting of
Shareholders.
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Major Events for Boqi in 2019 (Continued)
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On 21 November 2019, the Company
participated in the selection of the
top ten most influential flue gas
treatment enterprises in the “2019
North Star Cup” and was awarded
the “Top Ten Steel Desulfurization
Enterprise Award” and “Top Ten Steel
Denitrification Enterprise Award”.
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i ' In November 2019, Nanyang Project
EE)J% %EEF was accredited as the “First-Level

Engineering Construction Project

%ﬂ' l - for Power Construction Safety

Standardization”.
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In December 2019, Guangxi
Qinzhou Power Plant Phase Il
Expansion Project (2x1000 MW)
was awarded the 2018-2019 China
Quality Project Award.

Major Events for Boqi in 2019 (Continued)
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In December 2019, Shanxi Yongji
“Constructing Large Unite and
Restricting Small Ones” 2x350MW
Thermal Power Cogeneration Project
was awarded the 2018-2019 China
Quality Project Award.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREREE

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance
report in the annual report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company’s Shares have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 16 March 2018 (the “Listing Date”). The Company
is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and
to enhance corporate values and accountability. The Company
has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “Listing
Rules”). In addition, the Board unanimously approved on 20
December 2018 to adopt the Stock Exchange’s amendments
to the CG Code and the Listing Rules with effect from 1
January 2019 and implement its application.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company complied with the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the period
from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report (the
“Period”). The Company will continue to review and enhance
its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with
the CG Code.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its
code of conduct regarding dealings in the securities of the
Company. Having made specific enquiry to all the Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had strictly complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code during the
Reporting Period.

The Board has also adopted the Model Code to regulate all
dealings by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company in respect of
securities in the Company as referred to in code provision
A.6.4 of the CG Code. No incident of non-compliance with the
Model Code by the Company’s relevant employees was noted
during the Reporting Period after making reasonable enquiry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Group to the senior management of
the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established three Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
(together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated
to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all
times.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Liability Insurance
and Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group’s Directors and senior management for
their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance
coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard and Mr. Zeng Zhijun,
three non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo,
Mr. Zhu Weihang and Mr. Chen Xue and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Genyu, Dr. Xie
Guozhong and Mr. Lu Zhifang.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EEERRE (&)

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
Among the three independent non-executive Directors, Dr.
Xie Guozhong has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to the code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, listed
issuers are required to adopt a board diversity policy.
The policy specifies that in designing the composition the
Board, board diversity shall be considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. The appointment of Directors will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be evaluated against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity of the Board. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, culture, educational background, professional
experience, knowledge and skills.

The composition of the Board will be disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report every year and the Nomination
Committee will supervise the implementation of this policy.
The Nomination Committee will review the effectiveness of
this policy, as appropriate discuss any revisions that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

As at the date of this annual report, the diversity of the Board
is illustrated as below. Further details on the biographies and
experience of the Directors are set out on page 17 to page 24
of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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The Nomination Committee has reviewed the membership,
structure and composition of the Board, and is of the opinion
that the structure of the Board is reasonable, and the
experiences and skills of the Directors in various aspects and
fields can enable the Company to maintain high standard of
operation.

Independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non- executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. After the
Board reviews the written annual confirmation from of all
the non- executive Director of his independence, the Board
considers them to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules. The
Board is not aware of the occurrence of any events which
would cause it to believe that the independence of any of the
Independent non-Executive Directors has been impaired up to
the date of this annual report.

None of the Directors has any personal relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship), with any other Director.
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All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its
efficient and effective functioning. Independent non-executive
directors are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

In regard to the CG Code provision requiring directors to
disclose the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organizations and other significant commitments
as well as their identity and the time involved to the issuer,
Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to the
Company in a timely manner.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director has been provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that he has
a proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
businesses as well as his responsibilities under relevant
statues, laws, rules and regulations.

In this reporting period, all the Directors (Mr. Cheng Liquan
Richard, Mr. Zeng Zhijun, Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo, Mr. Zhu
Weihang, Mr. Chen Xue, Mr. Liu Genyu, Mr. Xie Guozhong and
Mr. Lu Zhifang) have attended the training courses conducted
by the legal adviser of the Company, William Ji & Co. LLP
(in Association with Tian Yuan Law Firm Hong Kong Office).
The content of such training related to the recent regulatory
policies for listed companies. According to it, all the Directors
have been updated with the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices. In addition, continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors will be
arranged whenever necessary.

2RES (BRBUFNATESR) HREFES®
KEEEHMNE B XGER - AMERBERE
EESHLEBIEF - BIUIFNTEFERK
REZZBES ¥FHZESRRERZEEN—

=
B o

REEEARATAEXTE  ESEFRBERAR L
AR SR IETRSHKE RMEE A REM
BARBBAE  ARBENBETAR TR S
DREE MEFERBBERAANDABRELR
T o

ARBIRFEERER

REBEEXEATANTAGXAGSG  2REF
RSEFERXER  UNBERLREFRENAE
Kicgt - L EREREHEZTSMEERAAE
K AR

SR ETESHDBIRHN B AR R
B BRI AR A TR R R AR
Bl EE - MAIRARMEAAEERENT
f# o

RARERR > 28EF (BE2ELE - B2’
A BRSEA - REMSEE - RBELE - BIR
FhE HEBEERELEF L) HELERH
ARBARBERCBEREMT (RITRMERH
BEDME AR RENFIIRE - MBEIAD
BROHETRARMNEERR - Bt - 2BES
EREBAELMRULEMERAEERENRAN
ZR BRETEAREMRESREHRIFEHE
ERTBROBR - I KARABHNEFERR
EETHREGBRIEERR -

74  China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. HEEFRE (ER) BRAF



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
performed by different individuals. The positions of chairman
and chief executive officer are held by Mr. Cheng and Mr.
Zeng, respectively. The chairman provides the overall strategic
planning and direction of the Group and is responsible for
the effective functioning and leadership of the Board. The
chief executive officer focuses on the Company’s business
development and the daily management and operations
generally.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 28 February 2018.

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors has signed an appointment letter with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 28
February 2018.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Company’s amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
Shareholders of the Company entitled to vote at the annual
general meeting for the election of Directors will elect a Board
consisting of at least the minimum number of Directors set
under the articles of association of the Company and all the
Directors shall cease to hold office immediately before such
election, but are eligible for re-election at such meeting.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are set out in the Company’s amended
and restate memorandum and articles of association. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, monitoring and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-election and succession
planning of Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer.

Board Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately
quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days are
given for all regular board meetings to provide all Directors
with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for a regular meeting. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. The agenda
and accompanying board papers are dispatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days before
the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review
the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings.
When directors or committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed
and given an opportunity to make their views known to the
Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept
by the Company with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and records.

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by
the Board and the committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each board meeting and committee meeting are sent to
the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
date on which the meeting is held. The minutes of the board
meetings are available for inspection by Directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, four board meetings
were held and the details are set out in the table below:
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Attendance/number
Directors of meetings held
BHERE,
5= BITEERHY
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard 4/4
BE2%LE
Mr. Zeng Zhijun 4/4
B2ERE
Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo 4/4
BT E
Mr. Zhu Weihang 4/4
KEMTE
Mr. Chen Xue 4/4
BRESF A&
Mr. Liu Genyu 4/4
2R £ 5 A4
Dr. Xie Guozhong 4/4
FHEBFLT
Mr. Lu Zhifang 4/4

EEFTRE

Apart from formal meetings, other matters subject to the
approval of the Board were handled in the form of written

resolutions.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves its decision for all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors could
have recourse to seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense and are
encouraged to consult with the Company’s senior management
independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
management.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees to
strengthen its functions and corporate governance practices,
namely, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. The Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
perform their specific roles in accordance with their respective
written terms of reference.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Dr.
Xie Guozhong (chairman), Mr. Liu Genyu and Mr. Zheng Tony
Tuo, all of them are non-executive Directors and the majority
are independent non-executive Directors. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee include examining independently the
financial positions of the Company, overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control system, the audit process and proposals of internal
management, communicating independently with, monitoring
and verifying the work of internal audit and external auditors.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, two meetings of the
Audit Committee was held and the details are as follows:
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Dr. Xie Guozhong (Chairman) 2/2
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Mr. Liu Genyu 2/2
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Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo 2/2
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The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting system,
compliance procedures, internal control (including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function), risk management systems
and processes and the reappointment of the external auditor
and fulfilled the aforementioned duties as required. The Board
had not deviated from any recommendation given by the
Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.

They also reviewed annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the fiscal year as well as the audit report
prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting issues
and major findings in course of audit. There are proper
arrangements for employees, in confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control and other matters. The written terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
members, namely Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (chairman), Dr.
Xie Guozhong and Mr. Lu Zhifang, the majority of them are
independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, to make recommendation to the Board
regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and/or
in the management, and to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or
incumbent on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and
ability to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and
responsibilities. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. Their
written terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held on 26 March 2019 to review
and approve the Group’s Board diversity policy; review and
evaluate the independence of the Group’s independent
non-executive Directors; review and approve the re-election of
relevant Directors at the annual general meeting. The details
of their attendance are as follows:

Directors
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Attendance/number
of meetings held
EBHERE
HOTGBRH™

Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (Chairman)
BER2EE (XE)

Dr. Xie Guozhong
HEBIELT

Mr. Lu Zhifang
EEF KL

The Nomination Committee assessed the independence
of independent non-executive Directors, considered the
re-appointment of the retiring Directors, reviewed the time
commitment required from the non-executive Director and
fulfilled duties as required aforesaid.
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The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules with
effect from 29 March 2018 which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against selection criteria, having regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based
on range of diversity perspectives, which would include but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Nomination Committee will monitor the
implementation of the Policy and will from time to time review
the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the
Policy.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely Mr. Lu Zhifang (chairman), Mr. Liu Genyu and
Mr. Zeng Zhijun, the majority of them are independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
recommend the Board on the Group’s remuneration policy
and structure for the Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy,
to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives, and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior
management.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held on 26 March 2019 to review
and approve the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, and the details are as follows:

Directors
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Attendance/number
of meetings held
CHERE
BITSBRH™

Mr. Zeng Zhijun
B2 ERE

Mr. Lu Zhifang (Chairman)
BEEFS A (EF)

Mr. Liu Genyu
2R &R 5 A4

The Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed the
remuneration policy for Directors and senior management of
the Company, made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management and fulfilled duties as required aforesaid.

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of senior
management of the Company, whose biographies are set
out on page 25 to page 33 of this annual report, for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the Independent
Auditor’'s Report on page 304 to page 308 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the 2019 Financial Year which
give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the
Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows.
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The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The
Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
page 217 to page 221 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
Shareholders’ investments and Company’s assets and with the
support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the effectiveness
of such systems on an annual basis. The Company has
implemented various internal control and risk management
policies, including Asset Depreciation Provision Management
Policy, Inventory Management Policy and Financing and
Guarantee Management Policy. Furthermore, we also
sponsor our internal control staff to attend risk management
and internal control related trainings every year. The risk
management and internal control policies are designed to
help achieve business objectives, safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use, and maintaining proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use and for publication. The establishment of risk management
and internal control systems is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement of
financial statements or loss of assets and to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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The Company’s operation planning department is responsible
for the internal control and risk management of the Company’s
business operations. The internal audit department is
responsible for the internal audit of the Company. The
Company has also engaged external consultants to perform
a review of the internal control and risk management systems
of the Group. With the assistance of the external consultants,
the operation planning department, the internal control
department and the internal audit department of the Company,
the Company is able to take mitigating and remedial measures
to address the identified risks and such actions and measures
are integrated in the day- to-day activities of the Group and
their effectiveness is closed monitored. The internal audit,
internal control and risk management systems and policies are
reviewed by the Board on an ongoing basis in order to make
it practical and effective in providing reasonable assurance in
relation to the identification of business risks.

The Company has put in place a policy on handling
and dissemination of inside information which sets out
the procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information in a timely manner in such
a way to avoid placing any person in a privileged dealing
position. The inside information policy also provides guidelines
to employees of the Group to ensure proper safeguards
exists to prevent the Company from breaching the statutory
and listing rule disclosure requirements. The Company has
appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify
and assess potential inside information. Dissemination
of inside information of the Company shall be conducted
by publishing the relevant information on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in the review, which
covers operational, financial and compliance controls, internal
audit and risk management functions, to maintain an adequate
and effective internal control system to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and the assets of the Group. For the 2019
Financial Year, the Board conducted an annual review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
by, including but not limited to, considering a written report
prepared by the external consultants to the Audit Committee
covering the above aspects. The Board has also considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programme and budget during the
year under review. The Board is not aware of any significant
internal control and risk management weaknesses nor
significant breach of limits or risk management policies, and
considers that the current monitoring systems of the Company
are effective and that the qualifications and experience of the
staff, performing accounting and financial reporting functions
and the training programmes of the Company as well as
the experiences and resources for setting the budget of the
Company are adequate. The Company has complied with the
requirements under C.2.1 to C.2.5 and C.3.3 of the CG Code
relating to risk management and internal control since the
Listing Date.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) was appointed as the
Company’s auditor to audit the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 prepared in
accordance with IFRSs. During the year under review, the fees
paid to Deloitte for audit services amounted to RMB2,600,000.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES AND PRIMARY
CONTACT OF THE COMPANY

Ms. Qian Xiaoning was appointed as the joint company
secretary of the Company on 13 February 2017. Ms. Qian’s
biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on page 28 to page 29
of this annual report. As Ms. Qian Xiaoning does not possess
the qualifications as stipulated under Rules 3.28 and 8.17
of the Listing Rules, the Company has applied for and has
been granted a waiver by the Stock Exchange from strict
compliance with those Listing Rules.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong
laws, the Company also engages Ms. Wong Wai Ling, the vice
president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited (a company secretarial service provider), as its joint
company secretary to assist Ms. Qian Xiaoning to discharge
her duties as company secretary of the Company. Ms. Wong
Wai Ling’s primary contact person in the Company is Ms. Qian
Xiaoning.

Ms. Qian Xiaoning and Ms. Wong Wai Ling have undertaken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year
ending 31 December 2019.

GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting (*“AGM”) of the Company will be
held on 12 June 2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has held two ZARBEHR @ REBELBITWARERS 55
general meetings held on 29 May 2019 and 21 June 2019, 201945H29H M2019F6H21H 17 £ =
respectively. The details of the Directors’ attendance are as HEREASEFLOAT :

follows:

Attendance/number
Directors of meetings held
BHERE,
=3 BOTSBERY
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard 2/2
BE2%E
Mr. Zeng Zhijun 2/2
B2EEE
Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo 2/2
R A&
Mr. Zhu Weihang 2/2
KEMTE
Mr. Chen Xue 2/2
PRES A
Mr. Liu Genyu 2/2
2R £ 5 A4
Dr. Xie Guozhong 2/2
S R IE T
Mr. Lu Zhifang 2/2
BEEFSA
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of timely and non-selective disclosure of information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the informed
investment decisions.

The AGM of the Company provides opportunity for
shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
The Chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the
Board Committees of the Company will attend the AGM to
answer shareholders’ questions. The external auditor of
the Company will also attend the AGM to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing
a two-way relationship and communication between the
Company and its shareholders and maintains a website at
http://www.chinabogi.com, where up-to-date information
on the Company’s business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are available for public access. In 2020,
the Company will focus more on the demands of investors
and analysts, pay close attention to important policies of the
environmental protection and energy conservation industry
and allow timely access by the public to sufficient business
information and recent developments of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors.

EEELA®RSE (&)

ERRNEBERREERR

ARARR - BERROBZEBLENEREER
BERBEEASENER RKARRBKIEEE -
AR A IR OR R R ey LR S8 12 1 3 Y R B R A
REREEFELABREARNEEN -

ARABRREFAGLARRIEHBEZTERER
MRS -  ARAREIERARBRERTZEGLIR
# U BRREF ARG RERRIER - AAFASHH
B2BMTSEERRAFAS  UREEHE
FHEST  RBEMHRENRELIAR S BEK
BB L M ) T o

BREABMNEBR - NA R RN BABCR
EEEVARRHERRNEGEHARLER I
& A #Buh(http://www .chinabogi.com) * TI& A&
AEERLEREERNSNEE  MBEE -
ETHERREMEBE  UHIABALTER - B
2020F  ARRIBEEFRBEERD AT
o BYBFRARMEEXENEZRR - kK
EHARBREEE  EAREHRRERETEEN
EBERWEBEARIHAEEMRMR -

iR R AEF

BRERROFZEREN KRB ERRRAE
tRERZR (BRESEERNES) R2BULR

-
EE S

Annual Report 2019 3% 89

%))



=

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EEERRE (&)

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange in a timely manner after each shareholder meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

According to Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association,
general meetings can be convened on the written requisition
of any two or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company deposited at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong. If the Board does not within 21
days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly
to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days,
the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly
as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

If a shareholder of the Company wishes to propose a
person other than a Director for election as a Director at the
Company’s general meeting (“Proposal”), he/she should lodge
a written notice setting out the Proposal and his/her contact
details at the principal place of business of the Company or
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited. The Proposal should include the
biographical details of the proposed Director and a written
notice signed by the proposed Director confirming his/her
willingness to be elected, the accuracy and completeness of
his/her biographical details.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Shareholders’ inquiries

If you have any query in connection with your shareholdings,
please write to or contact the Company’s Hong Kong
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at: Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1066 Fax: (852) 2262 7584 Website:
www.tricorglobal.com.

Investor relations and communications

The Company has set up a website at www.chinabogi.com
as a channel to promote communication, publishing
announcements, financial information and other relevant
information of the Company. Shareholders are welcome to
make enquiries directly to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong. The Company will deal with all
enquiries in a timely and appropriate manner. The primary
contacts of the Company are Ms. Zhu Beibei and Ms. Xu Na
at (email: irhk@chinaboqi.com or tel: +86 10 59579665/+86 10
59579509).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum and articles of association of the Company
have been amended and restated with effect from the Listing
Date.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Basic information about the Company is set out in the sections
headed “Corporate Information” and “Company Profile” on
page 2 to page 4 and page 15 of this annual report.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 30 January 2015.
The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on
16 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are providing independent flue
gas treatment service and environmental protection solution
service by various business models, including environmental
protection facility engineering, operation and maintenance and
concession operation.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries
are shown under note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating
profit for the year by principal activities is set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report and note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which
includes a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance
using financial key performance indicators, particulars of
important events affecting the Group during the year, and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, could be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report. The financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group can also be found in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, a discussion
on relationships with its key stakeholders is included in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out on page 222 to page 226 of this
annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the dividend policy that resolved to adopt by the
Board (the “Dividend Policy”) on 18 May 2018, the Company
may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of
the Company, provided that the Group records a profit and
that the declaration and distribution of dividends does not
affect the Group’s normal operations.

According to the Dividend Policy, the Company takes priority
to distributing dividends in cash and shares its profits with
the Shareholders. It is expected that the amount of dividends
distributed will be in the range of 30%-50% of the Group’s
net profit for the current year, subject to the following
requirements. The remaining profit will be used for the
development and operation of the Group.

The Company’s ability to distribute dividends will depend
on, among others, the operating results, cash flow, financial
condition and capital requirements of the Group and the
interests of the Shareholders of the Company. The Company’s
distribution of dividends shall also comply with any restrictions
under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands and the
Articles of Association of the Company.

Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEE®RE (B

FINAL DIVIDENDS

Taking into consideration various factors such as the new
business development needs of the Group and its future
capital expenditure plans, the Board recommend the payment
of HK$0.0315 per ordinary share as final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$0.09).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities for the last
four financial years are set out on page 6 to page 9 of this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

On 16 March 2018 (the Listing Date), the shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, pursuant to which 216,105,000 new shares were
issued by the Company to the public at HK$2.40 per share,
with net proceeds of HK$489 million (approximately RMB391
million), after deduction of underwriting commission and
estimated expenses payable in connection with the global
offering.

In 2019, the Company saw an increase in the capital
requirement for the new projects and concession investments
in the non-electricity industry. Accordingly, since 1 January
2019 and up to 31 December 2019, the Company has utilized

the proceeds in the following manner:

(i approximately RMB25 million of the proceeds for the
newly built and upgrade concession operation projects;

(ii) approximately RMB11 million of the proceeds for
research and development expenses; and

(iii)  approximately RMB27 million of the proceeds for
working capital and other general corporate purposes,

which was in line with the intended use of the proceeds as

disclosed in the prospectus, with a remaining balance of
RMB87 million.
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For the amounts not utilized yet, the Company will use the net
proceeds in the ways as disclosed in the prospectus in the

Directors’ Report (Continued)
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s largest
customers accounted for 9.1% of the Group’s total revenue.
The Group’s five largest customers accounted for 36.3%
(2018: 47.1%) of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s largest
suppliers accounted for 5.8% of the Group’s total cost of
procurement. The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
22.3% (2018: 27.9%) of the Group’s total cost of procurement.

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated
28 February 2018 (the “Prospectus”), none of the Directors or
any of their associates (as defined under Listing Rules) or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers
or the Group’s five largest customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Company and the Group during the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding in the Company’s
securities.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Period”), the
Company purchased 2,397,000 shares of its shares, in
aggregate, on the Stock Exchange at a total consideration of
HK$3,459,500.00, which were cancelled thereafter.

Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Details of the repurchases are summarized as follows: IS IEEENAT -

Month of Number of Shares Highest price Lowest price Aggregate

repurchase in 2019 repurchased per share per share consideration

72019 £EEA 7 EERDEE BRESER BREEER BRE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT

January

1A 764,000 1.80 1.72 1,359,720.00

February

2H 341,000 1.75 1.60 579,250.00

July

7H 692,000 1.28 1.10 806,780.00

August

8H 100,000 1.20 1.10 116,180.00

September

9H 500,000 1.20 1.17 597,570.00

Save for the above, neither the Company nor any member
of the Group has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares during the Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

As at 31 December 2019, there were no provisions for
pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association, which
require the Company to offer new Shares to existing
Shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 227
to page 229 and on page 373.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s distributable
reserves were RMB924,509,000 (as at 31 December 2018:
RMB861,492,000).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2019 are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

LOAN AND GUARANTEE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had not
made any loan or provided any guarantee for loan, directly or
indirectly, to the Directors, senior management, its controlling
shareholders being Mr. Cheng, Mr. Zeng, World Hero
International Limited (“World Hero”) and Best Dawn Limited
(“Best Dawn”) (collectively referred to as the “Controlling
Shareholders”) or his/her respective connected persons.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (Chairman)
Mr. Zeng Zhijun

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo

Mr. Zhu Weihang

Mr. Chen Xue

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Liu Genyu

Dr. Xie Guozhong

Mr. Lu Zhifang
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report
are set out on page 16 to page 32 in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” to this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors and the Company
considers such Directors to be independent during the period
from their respective appointments and up to the date of this
annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme of the Company as
set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT AND LETTER OF
APPOINTMENTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 28 February 2018.

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors has signed an appointment letter with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 28
February 2018.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation.

)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, neither the Director nor any entity
connected with the Director had a material interest in, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December
2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the amended and restated memorandum and
articles of association of the Company, every Director shall
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a director
of the Company. The Company has arranged appropriate
liability insurance to indemnify the Directors for their liabilities
arising out of corporate activities.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 December 2019.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company
or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which any Controlling Shareholder had a material
interest subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance has been entered into among
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling
Shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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EMPLOYEES

The Group had 1,950 employees as at 31 December 2019, as
compared to 1,800 employees as at 31 December 2018. The
employees of the Company are employed under employment
contracts which set out, among other things, their job scope
and remuneration. Further details of their employment terms
are set out in the employee handbook of the Company. The
Company determines the employees’ salaries based on their
job nature, scope of duty, and individual performance. The
Company also provides various benefits to the employees
including medical care, housing subsidies, retirement and
other benefits as well as on-the-job education, training and
other opportunities to improve their skills and knowledge. The
Company also provides employees with contributions to social
insurance and housing provident fund for the employees in
accordance with PRC regulations and the internal.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration
of the directors and senior management of the Group, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
of the directors and senior management and comparable
market practices.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest

paid individuals are set out in notes 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at the 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions);
or (ii) which were required to be recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO;
or (iii) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Long position in our Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of our Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest

EERRETHRAEBRKS - HBERORE
FZEBENKR

R2019F 128310 - AR EZHZSITHA
ERARNAISEEMBEHREZE (EEREH KB
EARBIEXVEL) B - ABRERG RIE#EE T #
B()VREES R EOIEXVIE7RSD EAM
SARNA MBI ERD AR (BIEREES
BB GOIM B BIE X EE ES AR E B A2
KRB ;sk(i IR IRE FH R EE KB 55352168037
EARARRRTENECMOES AR K
(iNRRRETFRIENE NN T R AR R
KET -

RARBREG - HEAROREEZTHEE

Approximate
Number and percentage of

class of Shares shareholding

EEnE s idvip 0 5& Yzl BARRES
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard Interests held jointly with 409,951,911 40.71%
BEaEk4 another person (Note 1), (Long Position)
interest of a controlled corporation (1FR&)
(Note 2); and beneficial owner (Note 5)
Bt AR AENER (1)
REEEER (Hit2)
RERERAN (Hits5)
Mr. Zeng Zhijun Interests held jointly with another person 409,951,911 40.71%
B 2ERE (Note 1), and interest of a controlled (Long Position)
corporation (Note 3) (IFA)
Hifh A SERANER (Bat1)
RZELEEER (H1723)
Mr. Zhu Weihang Interest of a controlled corporation 152,573,529 15.15%
KEMEE (Note 4) (Long Position)
RELEER (Ait4) (41 R)
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Notes:

(1) Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard and Mr. Zeng Zhijun have entered
into an acting-in-concert arrangement. As such, Mr. Cheng and
Mr. Zeng together control 40.71% equity interests in the issued
share capital of our Company through World Hero International
Limited (“World Hero"’), Asia Environment Investment Limited (“
Asia Environment”) and Best Dawn Limited (‘Best Dawn”).

2) Mr. Cheng holds the entire issued share capital of World Hero.
Therefore, Mr. Cheng is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by World Hero under the SFO.

(3) Mr. Zeng holds the entire issued share capital of Best Dawn
and 47.2% of interests in Asia Environment. Therefore, Mr.
Zeng is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Best

Dawn and Asia Environment under the SFO.

4) The entire issued share capital of New Asia Limited (‘New
Asia’) is held by Great Origin Ventures Limited (“Great
Origin”), whose entire issued share capital is in turn held by
Mr. Zhu. Therefore, Mr. Zhu is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by New Asia under the SFO.

(5) Mr. Cheng directly holds 900,000 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report,
none of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
had or was deemed to have any interest or short position in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) that was required to be recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

HszE

(1)

&

(3)

(4)

(%)

Directors’ Report (Continued)

ExE®Rs (&)

FBEEEERECEAFBIT I —HTHZ
HE o B UL - 1R TR B ST 4% BWorld Hero
International Limited ([World Hero]/) -

Asia Environment Investment Limited ([ Asia
Environment /) }Best Dawn Limited (| Best
Dawn /) #[AFE #2712 E1THRAA40.71% 8%

L EFFHWorld HeroZ 2552 E1THRA «
Ut RS RIFE S R RANFOI e B R World
HerofF B A9 17 B s

& 5t 4 #+ HBest DawnZ £ 552 Z77 AR A R
Asia EnvironmentZ47.2% a5 It - &5
ERIZFEF REIERPI# 182 B Best Dawnk
Asia EnvironmentiF B B)R (7 HE Bz ©

EREIRER2L A ([EIF]) 7 FNew Asia
Limited ([New Asia)) #2855 #7784 - if]
KAELFFHERYZEEBEITRA - Bt - K
FEAERRIFE 7 RE RO 148 B New Asiats
BRIRG PG #Ea

Bt £ B A A 2N F]R 17900,000/% °

B EXFTEES  RAFHAY - SiEARQF
EERERITERABEARRRKERBEEZE (F
ERBEFRREGROIEXVER) Bkl - BN
HERET  HEIPRIEEBEBCHENART]
RIEE 5 K E GO E352(5F B 1 & L kAR
FIRETRZAMG AR B MR M E R

R

NGNS
/,y\,:‘o

Annual Report 2019 %3 103

%)



Directors’ Report (Continued)
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

From March to May 2019, and from July to September 2019,
the Directors and management of the Company successively
used their own funds to purchase 3,011,000 Shares at an
average price of HK$1.49 per share, equivalent to the 0.30%
of the equity interests in the issued share capital of our
Company. Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard and Mr. Zeng Zhijun
purchased 3,011,000 shares for the concerted parties. The
number of Shares currently held is 409,951,911 shares, and
the shareholding ratio has risen to 40.71% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at the date of this annual report, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, the following persons (not being a Director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO:

EEWEROSEREENVER

M20193H £5H A k20194674 £9H + K
RREERERERETRAEBESEMSUT
HZ81.497 04 HEEA3,011,00008 & 2 =1 H) A%
7 HERARREBEITIRAMN030% - BEE %
ERBZERER—BITEI AT AS,011,000
B% - REFARMDEE £409,951,9110% » #HAX LI
EAERARBEITRZAA40.71% ©

FERRRROREBRROTFHNERR AR

RAFHREE  BEEHRM - THAL (X
ARBEERRDITRAR) REMHHABBRN
THEAARENARAIZES KR ERAIF336
FAERF 2 BRMANRIERE S MHE GIIEXV
B85E2 %30 BR R IR SR M A R B BR O R 2R SOk

PN

=

Approximate
percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest Number of Shares shareholding
®E/ BB 55 ERME RH&E BRERNBE DL
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard Interests held jointly with another person 409,951,911 40.71%
BEREE (Note 1); interest of a controlled (Long Position)

corporation (Note 2); and beneficial (IFE)

owner (Note 3)

B \SRFANER (1)

REEEE RS (Hit2)

REHZERA (B:13)
World Hero Beneficial owner 168,134,580 16.69%
World Hero ERHEEA (Long Position)

(4 %8)
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Approximate
percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest Number of Shares shareholding

®E/ 2B g5 ERME RHEE BRESNBED L

Ms. Zhou Xuan Interest of spouse (Note 4) 409,951,911 40.71%
Bt £ Fe B (Hit4) (Long Position)
(4 B)

Mr. Zeng Zhijun Interests held jointly with another person 409,951,911 40.71%
o ZEBEE (Note 1); and interest of a controlled (Long Position)
corporation (Note 5) (57 E)

B A SLRFH R (A1)
RE LR ER (H:25)

Best Dawn Beneficial owner (Note 5) 213,975,143 21.25%
Best Dawn EnlEBA (His) (Long Position)
(4 R)

Ms. Ge Tong Interest of spouse (Note 6) 409,951,911 40.71%
X¥a+ feBiEs (f:26) (Long Position)
(4 R)

New Asia Beneficial owner 152,573,529 15.15%
New Asia En#EAA (Long Position)
(4 B)

Great Origin Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 7) 152,573,529 15.15%
(N REEEER (f527) (Long Position)
(4 R)

Mr. Zhu Weihang Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 7) 152,573,529 15.15%
REMESE X EEER (Mi77) (Long Position)
(4 R)

Sinopec Overseas Investment  Beneficial owner 110,294,118 10.95%
Holding Limited (“Sinopec”) Ex#A A (Long Position)
FEAEIMERRER AT (5 B)

(Ipafel)

China Petroleum & Chemical Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 8) 110,294,118 10.95%
Corporation XA E R (Hi28) (Long Position)
HEAR{ETRHARAR (FE)
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Approximate
percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest Number of Shares shareholding
HE/ ERB 5, EEtE R E REBAES L
Full Synergy Investment Limited Beneficial owner (Note 9) 56,508,715 5.61%
(“Full Synergy”) BEnHEBA (H:79)
EMBREARQAIRE])
Partners Investment Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 9) 56,508,715 5.61%
Management Limited XEEER (M779)
Partners Investment
Management Limited
Bullion Riches Limited Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 9) 56,508,715 5.61%
Bullion Riches Limited RYEEERES (H:29)
Partners Financial Holdings Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 9) 56,508,715 5.61%
Limited RYEEERES (H529)
Partners Financial Holdings
Limited
Bright Hope Global Investments Interest of a controlled corporation 56,508,715 5.61%
Limited (Note 9 and 10)
Bright Hope Global Investments k@S (H1729K 10)
Limited
Wan Ten Lap Interest of a controlled corporation 56,508,715 5.61%
RN (Note 9 and 10)
RYEEERES (Bi9K10)
Zhang Yi Interest of a controlled corporation 56,508,715 5.61%
REE (Note 9 and 10)
R EEER (M9 10)
Yunnan Energy Investment (HK) Beneficial owner; 168,134,580 16.69%
Co. Limited (Note 77) Interest held Jointly with another person
BEEERBERREARD ERERA
(Bist11) B[R B A TR A
YUNNAN PROVINCIAL ENERGY Interest of a controlled corporation 168,134,580 16.69%

INVESTMENT GROUP (Note 11)

Co., LTD. (Note 11) Interest held Jointly with another person
EHHRRRERERRAA R EEER (AEt11)

(Hfzt11) BRI HMA TR AR
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Note:

(1)

)

(3)

(4)

(%)

(6)

(7)

Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard and Mr. Zeng Zhijun have entered
Into an acting-in-concert arrangement. As such, Mr. Cheng
and Mr. Zeng together control 40.71% equity interests in the
issued share capital of our Company through World Hero,
Asia Environment and Best Dawn. Asia Environment is owned
as to 47.2% by Mr. Zeng. Asia Environment is interested in
2.67% interest in the issued share capital of our Company, and
therefore Mr. Zeng is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Asia Environment under Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Cheng holds the entire issued share capital of World Hero.
Therefore, Mr. Cheng is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by World Hero under the SFO.

Mr. Cheng directly holds 900,000 shares of the Company.

Ms. Zhou Xuan is the spouse of Mr. Cheng. Under the SFO,
Ms. Zhou Xuan is deemed to be interested in the same number

of Shares in which Mr. Cheng is interested.

Mr. Zeng holds the entire issued share capital of Best Dawn.
Therefore, Mr. Zeng is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Best Dawn under the SFO.

Ms. Ge Tong is the spouse of Mr. Zeng. Under the SFO, Ms.
Ge Tong is deemed to be interested in the same number of

Shares in which Mr. Zeng is interested.

The entire issued share capital of New Asia is held by Great
Origin, whose entire issued share capital is in turn held by
Mr. Zhu. Therefore, Mr. Zhu is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by New Asia under the SFO.

Hiat -

()

@)

(3)

(4)

(%)

(6)

(7)
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(8)

9)

(10)

(11)

China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation holds the entire
issued share capital of Sinopec. Therefore, China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Sinopec under the SFO. China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation is a PRC state-owned company, whose H shares
are listed on the Main Board (stock code: 386).

Full Synergy, a company incorporated in the BVI on 2 April
2015, is an investment holding company and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Partners Investment Management Limited.
Partners Investment Management Limited is wholly owned
by Bullion Riches Limited, which in turn is wholly owned
by Partners Financial Holdings Limited. Partners Financial
Holdings Limited is a financial holding company, whose
subsidiaries are licensed corporations under the SFO holding
type 1, type 4, type 6 and type 9 licences in Hong Kong. Full
Synergy is the issuer of structured notes, of which one of
the subscribers is a fund established in the PRC. Mr. Cheng,
through World Hero, subscribed approximately 2.96% of the
limited partner interest in such fund. Mr. Cheng does not hold
any interest in the general partner of the fund, and is not
involved in the decision making process of the fund.

Bright Hope Global Investments Limited and Wan Ten Lap own
44% and 51%, respectively, of Partners Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of Full Synergy. Zhang Yi in turn
owns 100% of Bright Hope Global Investments Limited. Under
the SFO, Bright Hope Global Investments Limited, Wan Ten
Lap and Zhang Yi are deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares in which Full Synergy is interested.

The entire issued share capital of Yunnan Energy Investment
(HK) Co. Limited is held by YUNNAN PROVINCIAL ENERGY
INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LTD. Therefore, YUNNAN
PROVINCIAL ENERGY INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LTD. is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Yunnan Energy
Investment (HK) Co. Limited under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, and as at the date of this annual
report, the Directors were not aware of any persons (who were
not directors or chief executive of the Company) who had an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION DEED

Each of the Controlling Shareholders, namely Mr. Cheng, Mr.
Zeng and Best Dawn, has executed a deed of non-competition
on 22 February 2018 pursuant to which they have irrevocably
and unconditionally undertaken to the Company (for the
Company itself and on behalf of the members of the Group)
that, during the period that the Non-Competition Deed remains
effective, he/it/she shall not, and shall procure that his/its/her
close associates (other than any member of the Company)
shall not, directly or indirectly, develop, acquire, participate
in, hold any right or interest or invest in or engage in, render
any services for or otherwise be involved in any business in
competition with or likely to be in competition with the existing
business activities of the Company in the PRC or any other
area in which the Company carries on business.

The Company shall seek opinion and decision from the
independent non-executive Directors who are responsible
for reviewing and determining whether to accept or decline
such new business opportunity provided by Controlling
Shareholders or its associates.

The details of the Deed of Non-competition have been
disclosed in the Prospectus under the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their compliance with
the non-competition undertakings under the Non-Competition
Deed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The independent non-executive Directors also reviewed the
Controlling Shareholders’ compliance with the non-competition
undertakings. The independent non-executive Directors
confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders were not in breach
of the non- competition undertakings during the year ended 31
December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or their
respective associates had engaged in or had any interest
in any business which competes or may compete with the
businesses of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the reporting period, the Group has undergone the
following connected transactions:

HEXS
WEMA - AEBEEITTATHRERS ¢

1. Exempted connected transactions

Construction subcontracting and supply contracts

On 3 December 2018, Beijing Bogi and Sinopec Fifth
Construction Co., Ltd. (“Sinopec Fifth Construction”)

entered into four construction subcontracting and

supply contracts (collectively referred to as the

“Construction Subcontracting and Supply Contracts”):

(1)

110 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

Construction sub-contract in relation to the
maintenance and general E&I finishing (defect
elimination) work of #1/2/5/7 boilers under the
EPC master contract for the ultra-low emission
upgrade project of cogeneration boilers of
Sinopec Shanghai for the compliance with
emission standard (“Construction Sub-contract
1)

The Construction Sub-contract 1 dated 3
December 2018 was entered into by and among
Beijing Bogi (main contractor) and Sinopec Fifth
Construction (subcontractor), where Sinopec Fifth
Construction is responsible for the maintenance
and general E&I finishing (defect elimination)
work of Boilers #1/2/5/7, which includes the
procurement, transportation, installation and
inspection of the materials according to the
required design and specifications for a fixed
sum of RMB550,000. The total construction term
was 30 days, which was completed on December
2019.

Supplemental contract to the sub-contract in
relation to maintenance work under the EPC
master contract for the upgrade project of #3
and #4 boilers of Sinopec Shanghai’s thermal
power division for the compliance with emission
standard (includes the expedited works for #3
boiler) (“Construction Sub-contract 2”)

BRRNBAERS
BIDBRHEEER

MR2018F12A3RtRIEFEHF AILER
BERAERAR (RAARE]) FTZAT
NIy BREEESR (68 (I
BREEER]) :
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The Construction Sub-contract 2 dated 3
December 2018 was entered into by and among
Beijing Bogi (main contractor) and Sinopec
Fifth Construction (subcontractor), where
Beijing Bogi subcontracted the maintenance
work to Sinopec Fifth Construction for the
expedited works for #3 boiler for a fixed sum of
RMB950,000. This included the construction,
equipment transportation, labour, adjustment and
testing and management under this work. The
total construction term was 30 days, which was
completed on December 2018.

Material supply contract in relation to the ultra-
low emission dust removal upgrade project of
#1, #2 and #3 coal-fired boilers of Chongaging
Chuanwei Petrochemical Engineering Company
Limited* (“Supply Contract”)

The Supply Contract dated 3 December
2018 was entered into by and among Beijing
Bogi (main contractor) and Sinopec Fifth
Construction (subcontractor), where Beijing
Bogi subcontracted the supply of materials to
Sinopec Fifth Construction for the construction
safety work of the dust removal upgrade
project, including dust collectors, steel frames,
steel pipes, structural steel, thermal insulation
materials, lighting and fireproof materials for a
tentative contract value of RMB13,951,170. All of
the above main and supplementary materials and
consumables shall be procured and supplied by
Sinopec Fifth Construction. The Supply Contract
is expected to be completed before February
2021.
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(4) Construction sub-contract in relation to the ultra-
low emission dust removal upgrade project of
#1, #2 and #3 coal-fired boilers of Chongging
Chuanwei Petrochemical Engineering Company
Limited* of the Sinopec Group (FEIA{LEEE
B4t THMB AR (“Construction Sub-contract
3")

The Construction Sub-contract 3 dated 3
December 2018 was entered into by and among
Beijing Bogi (main contractor) and Sinopec Fifth
Construction (subcontractor), where Beijing Bogi
subcontracted the construction safety work of
the dust removal upgrade project to Sinopec
Fifth Construction. This included the preparation
of the construction, dismantling of the whole
original dust removal system, base construction,
installation of dust removal and adjustment
and testing, for a tentative contract value of
RMB23,724,579. The Construction Sub-Contract
3 is expected to be completed before February
2020.

Reasons for and benefits of the transaction

Sinopec Fifth Construction has advanced capabilities
in construction and material supply. The signing of the
Construction Subcontracting and Supply Contracts
enables the Company to complete the EPC master
contract for the ultralow emission upgrade project
of cogeneration boilers of Sinopec Shanghai for the
compliance with emission standard, as well as the dust
removal upgrade work of the ultra-low emission upgrade
project of coal-fired boilers of Chongging Chuanwei
Petrochemical Engineering Company Limited*, in a
more efficient manner with higher quality and cost-
savings. The above transaction is entered into on
normal commercial terms.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the payment for
the abovementioned construction subcontracting and
supply contracts made by Beijing Bogi are as follows:
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No. Transactions

FiE X5

1 Construction Sub-contract 1 wIoea R
2 Construction Sub-contract 2 BIDBEaR2
3 Supply Contract HEER

4 Construction Sub-contract 3 wIoBEaR3

Directors’ Report (Continued)

ExE®Rs (&)

Actual transaction amounts
for the year ended December 31,

BZE12A31HLEE

ERXZEH
2018 2019
(RMB thousands) (RMB thousands)
20184 20194
(AREBTIT) (AE®T )
Nil NilfE
Nil 4 NilfE
Nil £ 7,960,625.47
Nil4E 8,458,143.11

China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation holds 10.91%
equity interest in the Company through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Sinopec Overseas Investment
Holdings Limited (“Sinopec Overseas”). Sinopec Fifth
Construction is controlled by China Petrochemical
Corporation through Sinopec Engineering (Group)
Co., Ltd. and Sinopec Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (the
parent company of Sinopec Overseas) and Sinopec
Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd. (the parent company of
Sinopec Fifth Construction) are fellow subsidiaries of
China Petrochemical Corporation. Therefore, according
to the Listing Rules, they are connected persons of
the Company at the issuer level. The Construction
Subcontracting and Supply Contracts accordingly
constitute connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

According to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, if a series
of connected transactions are entered into or completed
within 12 months or are otherwise interrelated, then
such connected transactions shall be aggregated
and treated as if they were one transaction. Given the
Construction Subcontracting and Supply Contracts are
entered into between Beijing Bogi and Sinopec Fifth
Construction and of the same transaction nature, the
contract values of such contracts shall be aggregated
pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. As the
applicable percentage ratio (except for the profit
ratio) upon aggregation exceeded 0.1% but was less
than 5%, the contracts are subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but exempted from
the circular and shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.
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For details of the above transactions, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 3 December
2018.

Procurement Contract

On 8 May 2019, Beijing Bogi and Sinopec Shanghai
Gaogiao Petrochemical Co., Ltd (R B A &£ £ /8 &
&AM T AR AR A (“Gaogiao Petrochemical”)
entered into a procurement contract in relation to the
procurement of steel support stands for a consideration
of RMB350,689.65, which was fully settled in December
2019.

The reason and benefit of the transaction: providing
procurement services for steel material is one of the
ordinary business of the Company, and the purpose of
this procurement contract is to satisfy the procurement
needs of customers.

China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation holds 10.91%
equity interest in the Company through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Sinopec Overseas Investment
Holdings Limited (“Sinopec Overseas”). Gaogiao
Petrochemical is a subsidiary wholly-owned by China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation through direct and
indirect holdings. Gaogiao Petrochemical is a fellow
subsidiary of Sinopec Overseas, one of the substantial
shareholders of the Company. Therefore, according
to the Listing Rules, Gaogiao Petrochemical is a
connected person of the Company at the issuer level.
The Procurement Contract accordingly constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing connected transactions exempt from the
circular and shareholder approval requirements

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the
continuing connected transactions of the Group as set
out below are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has obtained approval from the Stock
Exchange in respect of the annual caps of the non-
exempt continuing connected transactions upon the
Global Offering and such transactions were exempted
from announcement and the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement.
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Design and EPC contracts with Sinopec

1. Technical Service Contract with Fushun Research
Institute
Parties: Beijing Bogi and Sinopec Fushun

Term:

Contract
scope:

Technical
service fee:

Petrochemical Research Institute
of Petroleum and Petrochemicals
(P B A TRRDBRAR A E
JIE 4 5m kT # % Be) (“Fushun
Research Institute”)

September 2017 to December
2019

Beijing Bogi and Fushun
Research Institute entered into
a technical service contract
(“Technical Service Contract”)
whereby Beijing Boqgi provides
technical service to Fushun
Research Institute in relation to
fluid catalytic cracking design
for deep dust removal and
defogging of regenerative flue
gas. Beijing Boqgi shall deliver
design documents in both hard
copy and electronic copy,
assist onsite construction and
participate in initial debugging
work. The technical service
provided by Beijing Bogi shall
be completed on 31 December
2019, whereas the design work
shall be completed within 30
days after signing the Technical
Service Contract.

RMB500,000, which was fully
settled on 25 October 2017.
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Confidentiality:

Reasons for
and benefits
of the
transaction:

Beijing Bogi shall keep all
information obtained under
and in relation to the Technical
Service Contract confidential.

This transaction will enhance
the engineering design business
of the Group and expand the
Group’s business opportunities
with Sinopec and its group
of companies for the Group
to provide its wide range of
services to market players of
petro-chemical industry.

2. Sinopec Shanghai EPC project

Parties:

Bid and
contract
scope:

116 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

Sinopec Shanghai Petrochemical
Company Limited (FEIA{ELEE
Al IRHBERRAER) (“Sinopec
Shanghai”) and Beijing Bogi.

On 7 February 2017, Beijing Boqi
won a bid for an EPC project in
connection with the upgrade of
the desulfurization, denitrification
and dust removal environmental
facilities of a cogeneration
power plant of Sinopec Shanghai
for the purpose of meeting the
“ultra- low emission” standards.
On 1 March 2017, Beijing Boqi
entered into an EPC contract
with Sinopec Shanghai finalizing
the winning bid whereby
Beijing Bogi will act as the
main contractor. The upgrade
work involves project design,
procurement of equipment and
materials, project construction
and installation of five boiler
fuel gas denitrification facilities
(“Upgrade Project”).
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Reasons for
and benefits

transaction:

RMB224,626,000 (tax inclusive)
comprised of construction fee,
installation fee, and fee for
procurement of equipment and
raw materials, which was fully
settled in March 2019.

The Upgrade Project is expected
to be completed in October
2018.

This transaction will enhance the
desulfurization, denitrification
and dust removal business
operations of the Group
and expand the business
opportunities with Sinopec
and its group of companies for
provision of flue gas treatment
business to market players of
petro- chemical industry.
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Gaogiao Petrochemical EPC project

On 24 March 2017, Beijing Bogi won a bid for an
upgrade project in connection with the upgrade
of denitrification facilities and boilers of the
power plant of Gaogiao Petrochemical (“Gaogiao
Petrochemical EPC Project”) for the purpose
of meeting the “ultra-low emission” standards.
On 24 April 2017, Beijing Bogi and Gaogiao
Petrochemical entered into a contract finalizing
the winning bid for the Gaogiao Petrochemical
EPC Project whereby Beijing Bogi will act as the
main contractor.

The project has been completed and inspected
in on April 2019, and the contract price of
RMB16,990,000 (tax inclusive) has been fully
settled in December 2019.

Reasons for This transaction will enhance the
and benefits desulfurization, denitrification
of the and dust removal business
transaction: operations of the Group and

expand the Group’s business
opportunities with Sinopec
and its group of companies for
provision of flue gas treatment
business to market players of
petro-chemical industry.
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4. Sinopec Shanghai #3-4 EPC project

Parties:

Bid and
contract
scope:

Term:

Price:

Sinopec Shanghai and Beijing
Boagi.

On 14 August 2017, Beijing Boqi
won a bid for an EPC project in
connection with the upgrade of
the #3-4 boiler of a cogeneration
power plant of Sinopec Shanghai
for the purpose of meeting the
“ultra-low emission” standards
(“#3-4 Upgrade Project”) On 7
September 2017, Beijing Boqi
entered into an EPC contract
with Sinopec Shanghai finalizing
the winning bid whereby
Beijing Bogi will act as the
main contractor. The upgrade
work involves project design,
procurement of equipment and
materials, project construction
and installation.

The project was completed on
November 2018.

RMB91,123,500.00 (including
tax) comprised of construction
fee, installation fee, fee for
procurement of equipment and
raw materials, which was fully
settled in March 2019.
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Reasons for This transaction will enhance the
and benefits desulfurization, denitrification
of the and dust removal business
transaction: operations of the Group

and expand the business
opportunities with Sinopec
and its group of companies for
provision of flue gas treatment
business to market players of
petro- chemical industry.

Fushun Research Institute is a branch of China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation, the parent
company of Sinopec Overseas Investment
Holding Limited (F Bl A1t /8N & Z KR B R
A 7|]), one of the substantial shareholders of
the Company, whereas Sinopec Shanghai and
Gaogiao Petrochemical are fellow subsidiaries
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of
Sinopec, being owned as to 50.56% and 55%,
respectively, by China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation, and each of them is therefore
a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules. Given the
above continuing connected transactions were
all made with the group companies of China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation, the parent
company of Sinopec, pursuant to which income
shall be received by the Group in relation to
the design and EPC services provided. Such
transactions shall be aggregated in accordance
with Role 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. The above
transaction is entered into on normal commercial
terms. Prior to the Listing, the Company
had applied to the Stock Exchange and the
Stock Exchange had granted the Company,
a waiver from strict compliance with the rules
regarding the announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, on the condition
that the aggregate amount of continuing
connected transactions with Sinopec for the year
2018 would not exceed the annual cap set out in
the Prospectus.
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Technology Licensing Contract with Fushun
Research Institute

As part of the Upgrade Project, Beijing Boqgi and
Fushun Research Institute entered into two technology
licensing contracts (“Technology Licensing Contracts”)
in 14 September 2017 and 6 September 2018, pursuant
to which Beijing Boqgi was licensed to use certain
patents and know-how of Fushun Research Institute for
the purpose of carrying out of the Upgrade Project.

Fushun Research Institute is a branch of China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation, the parent company
of Sinopec, one of the substantial shareholders of the
Company, and is therefore a connected person of the
Company under Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules.

1. Technology Licensing Contract 1

Parties: Beijing Boqgi and Fushun
Research Institute

Term: 5 years

Directors’ Report (Continued)

ExE®Rs (&)

B2 IEHT 52 B B 5 T F A & AT

ERBEIER M —Ho - b RIG 7 EIRIE
it LBt 2 B R2017F9H14H k201849
RGBT M BT EF Al & 49 ([ B 5 Al
EH]) - Bt - R EFE A AEIE
Il s T EF Rl - AETTEGEIR
Q °

WIEA TR R A RANETERRZ —F
AIENBRAIFBEAREIRODERA
Alznnm e Bt RIEEHHRAE14A
07(4) 6 - HRIBHT TP &R 1 B 89 B E A
+ o

1. BT & #—

T RS REIER

B

HARR - hF

Annual Report 2019 £33 121



Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEERE (&)

Contract
scope:

Payment of
licensing fee:

Confidentiality:

122 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

Beijing Bogi was licensed to
use the patents and know-how
of Fushun Research Institute for
the carrying out of the Upgrade
Project to achieve “ultra-
low emission” standards. The
patents and know- how relate
to the denitrification catalyst
and SCR technology. Beijing
Boqgi was licensed to use the
patent and know-how from the
signing date of the Technology
Licensing Contract until
December 2018, and shall use
the patent and know-how within
365 days from the signing date
of the Technology Licensing
Contract. During the term of
the Technology Licensing
Contract, Beijing Bogi may
make subsequent development
in respect of the patent and
know-how which it is licensed to
use. The parties will enter into
separate agreements in respect
of the distribution of interests if
any interests arisen in relation to
the development of patent and
know-how.

Beijing Bogi shall pay
RMB2,150,000 to Fushun
Research Institute for its license
to use the patents and know-
how, which was settled on 11
October 2017.

Beijing Boqgi is under the
obligation of confidentiality in
respect of the use of patents
and know-how of Fushun
Research Institute. Such
obligation continues to survive 5
years after the termination of the
Technology Licensing Contract.
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The above transaction was entered into on
normal commercial terms. Prior to the Listing,
the Company had applied to the Stock Exchange
and the Stock Exchange had granted the
Company, a waiver from strict compliance three
year term requirement for continuing connected
transactions under Rule 14A.52 of the Listing
Rules.

TECHNOLOGY LICENSING CONTRACT 2

Date of 6 September 2018
contract:
Parties: Beijing Boqgi and Fushun

Research Institute

Term: From contract signing date to 31
December 2019

The principal terms are summarized as follows:

(1) There are 3 patents (“the patents”) in total
granted under this contract. The details of
these patents are as follows:

(i) Nature: Invention patents (invention,
utility model and appearance
design);

(ii) Patentee: Fushun Research Institute
of China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation;

(iii)  Patent numbers:
Z1.201210409848.0,
Z1.201020569738.7
and ZL.201010222036.6.
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Contract scope: Beijing Bogi is licensed
to use the patents and know-how of the
flue gas ultra-clean emission denitrification
technology of Fushun Research Institute
for the implementation of the Upgrade
Project to comply with the “ultra-low
emission” standards. Relevant patents
and know-how relate to the denitrification
catalyst and SCR technology.

Obligations of Fushan Research Institute:
Fushun Research Institute shall submit the
following materials to Beijing Bogi: (i) The
industrial process documents required for
applying the technology and know-how,
and (ii) The technical solutions for flue
gas denitrification treatment of Shanghai
Petrochemical Coal- fired Power Plant.
Beijing Bogi is licensed to use the patents
and know-how within 365 days from the
signing date of the Technology Licensing
Contract.

Confidentiality: Beijing Boqgi is under the
obligation of confidentiality in respect
of the use of patents and knowhow of
Fushun Research Institute. Such obligation
continues to survive 5 years after the
termination of the Technology Licensing
Contract.

Licensing fee: Beijing Bogi shall pay
RMB900,000 to Fushun Research Institute
for its license to use the patents and know-
how. Such amount was determined after
arm’s length negotiations between Beijing
Bogi and Fushun Research Institute with
reference to normal commercial terms and
market rates.

Payment: Licensing fee of Technology
Licensing Contract 2 of RMB900,000 was
settled on 30 October 2018.
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Reasons for and the benefits of the transaction:
The signing of the Technology Licensing Contract
will benefit the Company’s Upgrade Project of #3
and #4 Boilers of Sinopec Shanghai’s Thermal
Power Division for the Compliance with Emission
Standard. With the advanced flue gas ultra-clean
emission denitrification technology, the flue gas
treatment performance can be improved so that
the upgrade project can be completed more
efficiently and with better quality.

For details of the Technology Licensing Contract
2, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 6 September 2018.

The above transaction is entered into on normal
commercial terms. According to Rule 14A.81
of the Listing Rules, if a series of connected
transactions are entered into or completed within
12 months or are otherwise interrelated, then
such connected transactions shall be aggregated
and treated as if they were one transaction. As
both the Technology Licensing Contracts are
signed with Fushun Research Institute and of
the same transaction nature, these two contracts
shall be aggregated in accordance with Rule
14A.81 of the Listing Rules. As the applicable
percentage (except for the profit ratio) at the
time of the aggregation exceeded 0.1% but was
less than 5%, both contracts are subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements but
exempted from the circular and shareholders’
approval requirements, pursuant to Rule 14A.76
of the Listing Rules.

Shouyang Contract

An EPC master contract dated December, 2015 (the
“Shouyang Contract”) was entered into by and among
Beijing Bogi and Yangmei Group Shouyang Boqi
Electric Co., Ltd (G EESEETHEAREETA
Al) (previously known as Shanxi Shouyang Mingtai
Guoneng Power Co., Ltd) (ILFESIGHEHEFEERA
Al) (“Shouyang Power”), in relation to Shanxi Yangquan
Coal Industry (Group) Company Limited Shouyang
Mingtai Green Island General Contractor Project, with
the capacity of 2*350 MW (the “Shouyang Green Island
Project”).
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Under the Shouyang Green Island Project, Beijing Bogi
shall act as the main contractor, which involved, among
others, project design, procurement of equipment and
materials, construction and installment in relation to
desulfurization and denitrification and dust removal for
low calorific value thermal power plant.

The consideration of the Shouyang Green Island
Project Price is RMB287,560,000 (including tax) and
RMB76,574,000 of which was settled in 2016 and 2017.
The remaining amount of the contract value shall be
paid monthly according to the progress of the Shouyang
Green lIsland Project. 5% of the contract value shall
be paid by Shouyang Power to Beijing Boqgi as quality
guarantee after one year period when no quality issue
is raised.

Reasons for and the benefits of the transaction

Carrying out environmental protection facility
engineering projects is the usual course of business
of Company and entering into such transaction
would enable us to consolidate the Company’s
marketpresence in the Shanxi Province where Shouyang
Power is situated.

Due to the national policy in the restriction on the
expansion of coal-fired power plants, the construction
of Shouyang Green lIsland Project was suspended and
therefore delayed. The construction of Shouyang Green
Island Project under the Shouyang Contract expects
to resume in 2020. In event that the construction of
Shouyang Green Island Project resumes, the Company
will comply with the relevant disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Shouyang Power, through various intermediaries, is
40% held by Mr. Cheng and Mr. Zeng, the ultimate
controlling shareholders of the Company and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules. The above
transaction is entered into on normal commercial terms.
Prior to the Listing, the Company had applied to the
Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange had granted
the Company, a waiver from strict compliance with the
rules regarding the announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules, on the condition that the respective
aggregate amounts of non-exempt continuing
connected transaction with Shouyang Power for the
years 2018 and 2019 would not exceed the respective
annual caps set out in the Prospectus.

Yangxi Project

On 31 December 2016, Beijing Bogi, Guangdong
Huaxia Electric Development Co., Ltd (EERFEESE /3
RBER2AF]) (“Guangdong Huaxia Electric”) and Yangxi
Haibin Electric Power Development Co., Ltd (57
EENEREARAR) (“Yangxi Electric”) entered into a
management service agreement (“Yangxi Management
Service Agreement”) in relation to the provision of
operation, daily maintenance and repair services in
respect of the #1-#4 desulfurization and denitrification
facilities owned by Yangxi Electric (“Yangxi Facilities”)
prior to the completion of the acquisition of the Yangxi
Facilities under the cooperation framework agreement
dated 20 May 2016 entered into between the said
parties (“Cooperation Framework Agreement”). On the
same day, Beijing Bogi, Guangdong Huaxia Electric
and Yangxi Electric entered into an ultra-low emission
upgrade project cooperation agreement (“Upgrade
Project Cooperation Agreement”), under which Beijing
Bogi agreed to construct “ultra-low emission” units
to #1-2 desulfurization and denitrification facilities of
the Yangxi Facilities for Yangxi Electric. However, no
similar arrangement was entered into in relation to
#3-4 desulfurization and denitrification facilities as
the “ultra-low emission upgrade units have already
been constructed and completed by Yangxi Electric at
the time the parties entered into the Upgrade Project
Cooperation Agreement. On 1 January 2017, Beijing
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Bogi, Guangdong Huaxia Electric and Yangxi Electric
further entered into a supplemental agreement
solely to determine the pricing terms of the Yangxi
Management Service Agreement (the “Yangxi Service
Pricing Agreement”). Due to an unexpected delay in
the release of the mortgage on the Yangxi Facilities, the
completion of the proposed acquisitions of the Yangxi
Facilities under the Cooperation Framework Agreement
was delayed, and it was agreed between Beijing Boqi,
Guangdong Huaxia Electric and Yangxi Electric not to
proceed with the proposed acquisitions of the Yangxi
Facilities. Accordingly, on 28 August 2017, Beijing Boaqi,
Guangdong Huaxia Electric and Yangxi Electric entered
into a supplemental agreement (“Yangxi Supplemental
Agreement”) under which, the proposed acquisitions of
the Yangxi Facilities under the Cooperation Framework
Agreement, were terminated. On the same day, Beijing
Bogi, Guangdong Huaxia Electric and Yangxi Electric
entered into a supplemental agreement (the “Yangxi
Supplemental Management Service Agreement”,
together with Yangxi Management Service Agreement
and the Yangxi Service Pricing Agreement as “Yangxi
Agreements”) to supersede and extend the term of
the services under the Yangxi Management Services
Agreement from 1 January 2017 to 30 September
2017 to a term from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2025. Other provisions in relation to the services and
ancillary services to be provided by Beijing Bogi under
the Yangxi Management Services Agreement remain
unchanged for the extended term.

Yangxi Agreements

Under the Yangxi Agreements, Beijing Bogi provides
operation, daily maintenance and repair services in
respect of the Yangxi Facilities to Yangxi Electric for a
term from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2025.

Parties: Beijing Bogi, Guangdong Huaxia
Electric and Yangxi Electric

Term of the 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2025.
agreement:
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Services to be The services to be provided by

provided:

Service fee
policy:

Payment
obligation:

Beijing Boqi include the operation,
daily maintenance and repair of
Yangxi Facilities. Beijing Bogi is also
responsible for the materials used
in the services provided as well as
treatment of waste created during the
provision of such services.

The service fee under the Yangxi
Agreements is calculated based on the
on-grid power generation multiplied
by a rate which is determined by
the parties. The pricing terms of the
Yangxi Agreements were determined
under the Yangxi Service Pricing
Agreement. Such pricing terms are
arrived at on arm’s length negotiations
between Beijing Boqgi, Yangxi Electric
and Guangdong Huaxia Electric and
are determined with reference to (i)
the relevant subsidies with respect
to desulfurization and denitrification
as set by the government; and (ii)
the fees and expenses in respect
of the operation, management and
maintenance of the desulfurization and
denitrification facilities.

Yangxi Electric shall pay to Beijing
Bogi the service fee within 15 days of
Yangxi Electric receiving the electricity
fee from the State Power Grid.

Beijing Boqi shall pay to Yangxi Electric
a performance guarantee in an amount
of RMB139,000,000 for guaranteeing
its work and performance under the
Yangxi Agreements and safe operation
of the Yangxi Facilities.
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The above performance guarantee is
arrived at on arm’s length negotiations
between Beijing Bogi, Guangdong
Huaxia Electric and Yangxi Electric and
determined based on the estimated
service fee to be received (i.e. the
estimated on-grid power generation
multiplied by a rate (10%) which is
determined by the parties) multiplied by
the term of the Yangxi Agreements (i.e.
8 years). Such performance guarantee
has been paid to Yangxi Electric and
shall be refunded to Beijing Bogi upon
completion of the term of the Yangxi

Agreements.
Ancillary Under the Yangxi Agreements, Beijing
charges: Boqgi shall pay to Yangxi Electric

before the 10th day of each month
the ancillary charges, including
relevant operation fees such as water,
electricity, vapor, gas, environmental
protection penalty and pollution tax
fees and other relevant operational
charges.

Yangxi Electric is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Guangdong Huaxia Electric, which is owned and
controlled by, through various intermediaries, Mr. Zhu
Yihang, the brother and associate of Mr. Zhu, one of our
substantial shareholders and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.07(4) of the
Listing Rules. The above transaction is entered into
on normal commercial terms. Prior to the Listing, the
Company had applied to the Stock Exchange and the
Stock Exchange had granted the Company, a waiver
from (i) strict compliance three year term requirement
for continuing connected transactions under Rule
14A.52 of the Listing Rules and (ii) strict compliance
with the rules regarding the announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, on the condition
that the respective aggregate amounts of non-exempt
continuing connected transactions with Yangxi Electric
for the years 2018, 2019 and 2020 would not exceed
the respective annual caps set out in the Prospectus.
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Reference is made to the announcement of the date
of the Company dated 12 March 2019 and the circular
dated 31 May 2019, which relate to, among other things,
the Transaction Amount of the Yangxi Agreement.
The service fee for O&M services was approximately
RMB261.74 million, exceeding the existing 2018
annual cap by an amount of RMB16.74 million; and
the ancillary charges was approximately RMB89.72
million, exceeding the existing 2018 annual cap by
an amount of RMB4.67 million. Therefore, the highest
applicable percentage ratio in respect of the actual
2018 Transaction Amount exceeded 5%, accordingly
the transactions under the Yangxi Agreements with
Guangdong Huaxia Electric and Yangxi Electric for
the year ended 31 December 2018 are subject to
the reporting, annual review, announcement and
Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the
transactions under the Yangxi Agreements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are subject to the ratification
of the Independent Shareholders at the EGM.

The annual cap and actual transaction amounts for the
transactions under the Yangxi Agreements for the year
ended December 31, 2019 are set out as follows:
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amount for the for the year for the year

year ended 31 ended 31 ended 31

December 2019 December 2019 December 2020
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Ancillary charges B HnE A 66.13 103.63 103.63
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Upgrade Project Cooperation Agreement

On 31 December 2016, Beijing Boqgi and Yangxi
Electric entered into the Upgrade Project Cooperation
Agreement, pursuant to which Beijing Bogi agreed to
construct the “ultra-low emission” upgrade units to #1-2
desulfurization and denitrification facilities of the Yangxi
Facilites for Yangxi Electric. Pursuant to the Upgrade
Project Cooperation Agreement, the ultra-low emission
upgrade works conducted by Beijing Bogi include,
among others, the upgrade of the desulfurization
system, detection and repair of the absorption tower
of #1-2 desulfurization and denitrification facilities of
the Yangxi Facilities and the upgrade of model of the
continuous emission monitoring system for the purpose
of enabling Guangdong Huaxia Yangxi Power Plant to
comply with the new “ultra- low emission” standards.
The total contract value of the Upgrade Project
Cooperation Agreement is RMB23,200,000 which
consists of the design fee, the equipment fee and the
construction and installation fee, and such fees will be
borne by Beijing Boqgi. Beijing Bogi will pay to Yangxi
Electric certain compensations if (a) Beijing Bogi has
caused delay in completing the ultra-low emission
upgrade works under the Upgrade Project Cooperation
Agreement; (b) Beijing Bogi is solely responsible for
the non- compliance of the #1-2 desulfurization and
denitrification facilities of the Yangxi Facilities with the
ultra-low emission standards; and/or (c) Beijing Boqi
has solely caused the halt or load decrement of #1-2
desulfurization and denitrification facilities of the Yangxi
Facilities.

Reasons for and benefits of the transactions under the
Yangxi Agreements and Upgrade Project Cooperation
Agreement:
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Since the issue of the Action Plan of Energy Saving,
Emission Reduction, Upgrading and Retrofitting of
Coal-fired Power Plants (2014-2020) which tightened
the emission limits for newly-built coal-fired power
plants in September 2014 and the Proposals for
Comprehensively Implementing the Ultra-low Emissions
and Energy Conservation Upgrade of Coal-fired
Power Plants in December 2015, which requires the
comprehensive implementation of “ultra-low emission”
and energy conservation upgrade on coal-fired
generator sets by 2020, coal consumption and pollution
emission standards have been significantly tightened.
To comply with such stringent standards, and minimize
operational risk while also minimizing the costs to be
incurred, notwithstanding that Yangxi Electric is capable
of operating the Yangxi Facilities, Yangxi Electric
engaged Beijing Bogi, being a leading independent
flue gas treatment integrated service provider who
have earned numerous highly recognised awards
in the flue gas treatment industry, and having been
already familiarized with the operations and facilities
of Yangxi Electric, including the Yangxi Facilities,
through the prior business dealings with Yangxi Electric
in connection with the Yangxi Facilities as a result
of the potential acquisition under the Cooperation
Framework Agreement, to be the sole desulfurization
and denitrification service provider for its power plant
during the term of the Yangxi Agreements. Further, it
is in the benefit of Yangxi Electric to retain only one
desulfurization and denitrification service provider
for the Yangxi Facilities for the purpose of minimizing
costs and eliminating the need to manage a number
of different service providers with different points of
contact and who may use different quality management
systems.
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Provision of O&M services is the Company’s usual
course of business. By entering into the Yangxi
Agreements and the transactions thereunder, Beijing
Bogi will leverage its relevant professional experience
and strengths in the operation, maintenance and
management of the desulfurization and denitrification
facilities and the “ultra-low emission” units, export its
management experience and gain reasonable income
and returns. The execution of the Yangxi Agreements
is in line with the Group’s overall strategy and business
focus of engaging in the operation, management and
maintenance of the desulfurization and denitrification
facilities and the “ultra-low emission” units and
will enhance the Company’s market presence in
Guangdong province. The enhancement of the Group’s
competitive edge in its core business is in the interests
of the Group as a whole.

According to the Notice on Issuing the Plan for
Nationwide Implementation of Ultra-low Emissions and
Energy Saving Reform on Coal-fired Power Plant ([
RENE<2EE IR EREEERAME G SCETETR>
HIiA1) ) (the “Notice”), the PRC government will give
those coal-fired power plants, which satisfy ultra-low
emissions standards, electricity price subsidies and
generating rewards to encourage ultra-low emissions
and energy saving reform in power plants.

It is in the benefit of the Group to construct such “ultra-
low emission” upgrade units in order to receive the
“ultra-low emission” subsidy, which is obtained through
the service fees in connection with its management and
operation business. In this respect, under the Yangxi
Agreements, the Group agreed to construct and pay
the costs of constructing the “ultra- low emission”
units for #1-2 facilities so that Guangdong Huaxia
Yangxi Power Plant can comply with the new ultra-low
emission standards and the Group can enjoy the “ultra-
low emission” subsidy and electricity price subsidies.
Upon the completion of the upgrade works, the newly
constructed “ultra-low emission” units shall belong to

BHRERETEARRN B EERR - BIBR]
YEOHEIERTRS  EREFHE
RERES - #ENREEB W MBRHER
fek [HBEPEN] BANEREXRERK
B BHEELR NSAEBEEKARE
H-RIIBAMEEARENEES &
I R e o P AR K R AR e K [ R M R
HANBRBRBEIEGEOMR % ¥
RAARRBNERENTIHIA o pI5EA
SEZLEBNBRFRETEAKENE

MR o

REC(EANDE<2EERRKEREE
BEMOMERERE TR &R> MBAD) ([
) PEBA#GE TZENEBESER
5% 2 1) KR IO S R (B A B e E R R B IA B
BYERBEBE R R B gERE o

M2z % [EBIEHER] BoEH AR A MER 18
EHER N A ARENN G - ZFMH
BEBEEERENEEXBARNRGE
WE - M E - REHAGZE - AKH
Rl 2 E 52 N S EE-25 5k i [ R B
M BERRA - AREREESHESE
RREEETHBIESENERE - BEAKEAE
BIBER UL EEMR - RTX
BUETIRE - M [BENER] HEBRN
tRBEmE BT eRBRERBAER
R —&E D - it - dtREEF AR
At [FRE B #E AR P s SR ey (B (R B
RE - xR IR TR B EEMBER

FEEFRAE (ER) BRAF



Beijing Bogi and will not be pledged as part of the
Yangxi Facilities. Beijing Boqi is accordingly entitled to
the “ultra-low emission” subsidy generated by the said
“ultra-low emission” units, which is calculated based
on the “ultra-low emission” electricity price subsidy
multiplied by a rate which is determined with reference

“«

to the costs of constructing the “ultra-low emission”
units and the costs of operating and managing such
“ultra-low emission” units in respect of desulfurization

and denitrification facilities.

In connection with the “ultra-low emission” upgrade
units to #3-4 desulfurization and denitrification facilities,
for the purpose of securing the “ultra-low emission”
subsidy in the form of service fee, in respect of the said
“ultra-low emission” upgrade units which have been
constructed and owned by Yangxi Electric, Beijing
Bogi underwent negotiations with Yangxi Electric in
respect of a potential arrangement to bear the costs
and expenses for the construction of such “ultra-low
emission” upgrade units. However, through a number of
discussions and negotiations, Beijing Bogi and Yangxi
Electric could not agree on the terms and calculation of
the entitlement of the “ultra-low emission” subsidy and
no such arrangement would be entered into between
the two parties. Accordingly, Beijing Boqgi will not be
required to bear the costs of the “ultra-low emission”
upgrade units to #3-4 desulfurization and denitrification
facilities, and as a result, will not be entitled to the
“ultra-low emission” subsidy generated by such units.
On the other hand, Beijing Bogi’s provision of services
to Yangxi Electric’s desulfurization and denitrification
facilities (including #3-4 desulfurization and
denitrification facilities) under the Yangxi Agreements
and the fees to be received thereunder shall continue
and remain unaffected.

For details of the information with respect to the
connected transactions mentioned above, please refer
to the disclosure as set out in the section headed
“Connected Transactions” of the Prospectus.
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Non-exempt continuing connected transactions
subject to reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
entered into certain connected transactions, which were
disclosed in the note 40 to the consolidated financial
statement. These transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and are
required to be disclosed in this report in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors
confirmed that the Group has complied with the
disclosure requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

1. CHONGQING CHUANWEI EPC CONTRACT

Date of the 14 September 2018
contract:

Date of Chongging Chuanwei
signing: Petrochumical Engineering

Company Limited of the Sinopec
Group (“Chongging Chuanwei”)
(contract-issuing party) and
Beijing Bogi (Contractor)

Scope of work: Engineering of ultra-low
emission upgrade project of
coal-fired boiler; denitrification,
desulfurization and dust removal
except upgrade of boiler itself;
procurement and supply of
relevant equipment; construction
(including building, installation,
removal and transportation of
structures related to the project)
and subsequent testing and
performance evaluation
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Completion
date:

Contract value:

Reasons for
and the
benefits
of the
transaction:

Revenue:

October 2020

RMB205,880,000 (tentative
estimate of the total value)

Chongging Chuanwei EPC
Contract is in line with the
business development
strategy and operation
structure adjustment of the
Company, which began in
late 2016 to explore markets
for petrochemicals and steel
industries. The Company
believes that the transaction will
enhance the desulfurization,
denitrification and dust removal
business of the Group. It
is expected to expand the
business opportunities between
the Group and Sinopec Group
and gain considerable project
experience, which allows the
Company to further expand the
market and offer similar services
to more market participants of
the petrochemical industry in the
near future.

The revenue generated
from Chongqging Chuanwei
EPC Contract amounted
to RMB6,849,000 and
RMB74,017,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and
2019, respectively.

Directors’ Report (Continued)

—
7C

VAN
=]

#

PR
FIEE :

IRHH
B AR

m -

ExE®Rs (&)

202010 A

A K #205,880,000
7T (Efh4aE)

EE)IBEPCA R
& A R 5] 20164
KRB ARAHHE
B MIGNEBER
B BE N 48 &
B KRBIREZE
RO RARNEER
W BB AN B OEE
% WHASE — iR
AAEBEEPA{LE
EH KT ZELEE
KIIE B 458 - DAMER
NAR T AR RE—
HHEEME  MEZ
BARIE T/TEMT
B2 EERMEEUD
R 75 o

BE)IHLEPCARE
£20184F k20194
12A31BILEEE
EMEIBIAAR
#6,849,0007T & A
R#74,017,0007TC °

Annual Report 2019 £# 137

%)



Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEERE (&)

2. NINGBO PROCUREMENT CONTRACT

Date of

signing:

Parties:

Scope of work:

Completion

date:

Contract value:

138 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

14 September 2018

Sinopec Ningbo Engineering
Co., Ltd. (“Sinopec Ningbo”)
(Purchaser) and Beijing Boqi
(Seller)

In terms of design, installation,
testing, operation, maintenance,
procurement of purchased
components and during the
construction process, the
materials provided and the
technology delivered strictly
comply with the requirements
under the Ningbo Procurement
Contract and the relevant
technical agreement.

May 2019

RMB24,800,000
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Reasons for Ningbo Procurement Contract

and the will enhance the desulfurization,
benefits denitrification and dust removal
of the business of the Group. The

transaction: performance of the contract
will have a positive impact on
the Company’s income and
operating results, thereby laying
an important foundation for
the Company to expand and
strengthen its environmental
protection business in the
petrochemical industry, as well
as contributing to the continuous
growth of the Group’s annual
performance.

Revenue: The revenue generated from
Ningbo Procurement Contract
amounted to RMB1,250,000 and
RMB20,129,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and
2019, respectively.

Chongging Chuanwei, is indirectly wholly owned
by China Petrochemical Corporation through
Sinopec Group Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(Sinopec Group Asset Management Co., Ltd.
and China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation
are both subsidiaries of China Petrochemical
Corporation, and China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation wholly owns Sinopec Overseas).

Sinopec Ningbo, is controlled by China
Petrochemical Corporation through Sinopec
Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd and Sinopec
Group Asset Management Co., Ltd. (Sinopec
Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd, Sinopec Group
Asset Management Co., Ltd and China Petroleum
& Chemical Corporation are all subsidiaries of
China Petrochemical Corporation, and China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation wholly owns
Sinopec Overseas).
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Since Sinopec Overseas is one of the substantial
shareholders of the Company, and both
companies are therefore a connected person
of the Company under Rule 14A.07(4) of the
Listing Rules. Given the above continuing
connected transactions were all made with
the group companies of China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation, the parent company of
Sinopec Overseas, pursuant to which income
shall be received by the Group in relation to the
EPC and procurement services provided, such
transactions shall be aggregated in accordance
with Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. The above
transaction is entered into on normal commercial
terms. Prior to the Listing, the Company
had applied to the Stock Exchange and the
Stock Exchange had granted the Company,
a waiver from strict compliance with the rules
regarding the announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, on the condition
that the aggregate amount of non- exempt
continuing connected transactions with Sinopec
for the year 2018 would not exceed the annual
cap set out in the Prospectus.

According to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, if
a series of connected transactions are entered
into or completed within 12 months or are
otherwise interrelated, then such connected
transactions shall be aggregated and treated
as if they were one transaction. As both the
Chongging Chuanwei EPC Contract and Ningbo
Procurement Contract are signed with the group
company of Sinopec Overseas’ parent company,
China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation
and of the same transaction nature, both the
Chongging Chuanwei EPC Contract and Ningbo
Procurement Contract shall be aggregated in
accordance with Rule 14A.81 of the Listing
Rules. As certain applicable percentage ratios
of transaction amounts of Chongqging Chuanwei
EPC Contract and Ningbo Procurement
Contract exceed 5% but are less than 25% after
aggregation, therefore, Chongging Chuanwei
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EPC Contract, Ningbo Procurement Contract and
the transactions thereunder must comply with the
reporting, announcement, circular, Independent
Shareholders’ approval and annual review
requirements under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.

The actual transaction amounts for the non-
exempted continuing connected transactions are
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set out as follows:

For the period from
21 November 2018 to
31 December 2018
M2018F11 8218 &

For the year ending
31 December 2019
HZ2019F12A31H

2018512831 A H/E LFE
RMB RMB
AR AR
Chongging Chuanwei EPC Contract
EEJIHEPCER 6,849,000 74,017,000
Ningbo Procurement Contract
ERREAR 1,250,000 20,129,000
Total
HET 8,099,000 94,146,000

The annual cap of such transactions for the year
ended December 31, 2019 is RMB121,006,185,
while the actual transaction amount in aggregate
for the year ended December 31, 2019 is
RMB94,146,000.

For details of the transaction, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 14
September 2018 and the circular of the Company
dated 31 October 2018.
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CONFIRMATION BY INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed each

of the above mentioned continuing connected transactions

and confirmed that:

(1)

142 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

the transactions stated in the section headed “Exempt
Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual
report have been generated during the Group’s ordinary
and usual course of business on normal commercial
terms (or more favorable than normal commercial terms
available for the Group), and that the terms of such
transactions are fair and reasonable, and are in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole; and

the transactions and relevant annual caps stated
in this section headed “Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this annual report have
been generated during the Group’s ordinary and usual
course of business on normal commercial terms (or
more favorable than normal commercial terms available
for the Group), and that the terms of such transactions
are fair and reasonable, and are in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group has complied with the disclosure requirements
prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with
respect to the connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Group
during the year under review.
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AUDITOR’S LETTER

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditors of the Company, Deloitte, to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Based on its work,
Deloitte has provided the Board with a letter confirming
that, with respect to the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions:

(1) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the
Company’s board of directors;

(2) for transactions involving the provision of goods
or services by the Group, nothing has come to the
auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(3) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such transactions;
and

(4) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions set out above,
nothing has come to our attention that causes us
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by
the Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Please refer to note 39 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report for details of the significant related
party transactions pursuant to IFRSs. For the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules, please refer to the
disclosure as set out in the above section headed “Connected
Transactions” in this report of Directors. Except for those
disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in
this report of Directors, the other related party transactions
as disclosed in note 39 are not considered as connected
transactions, or are exempt from reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

MAJOR SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 15 January 2020, Jiangxi Jinggangshan Boqi
Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* (L 78 [ 1 & & & %
B AR AR]) (“Jinggangshan Bogqi’) as lessee and CITIC
Financial Leasing Co. Ltd.* (¥{z&mBEEBRE AR (“CITIC
Leasing”) as lessor entered into a finance lease arrangement,
pursuant to which (i) CITIC Leasing agreed to purchase and
Jinggangshan Bogqi agreed to dispose certain desulfurization
and denitrification equipment at the consideration of
RMB90 million; and (ii) CITIC Leasing agreed to lease the
Jinggangshan Equipment to Jinggangshan Bogi for a term
of five years, at an estimated total amount of approximately
RMB108 million, being the sum of an one-off handling fee of
approximately RMB4 million, plus an estimated lease payment
of RMB104 million.
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On the even date, Changjizhou Bogi Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd* (B ZF MEFEREB K FR 2 7)
(“Changjizhou Bogqi”) as lessee and CITIC Leasing (as lessor)
entered into a finance lease arrangement, pursuant to which
(i) CITIC Leasing agreed to purchase and Changjizhou Boqi
agreed to dispose certain desulfurization and denitrification
equipment at the consideration of RMB260 million; and (ii)
CITIC Leasing agreed to lease the Changjizhou Equipment to
Changijizhou Boqi for a term of five years, at an estimated total
amount of approximately RMB311 million, being the sum of an
one-off handling fee of RMB12 million, plus an estimated lease
payment of approximately RMB299 million.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there are no
major subsequent events to 31 December 2019 which
would materially affect the Group’s operating and financial
performance as of the date of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at
the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises
three members, namely Dr. Xie Guozhong, Mr. Liu Genyu and
Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo. Dr. Xie Guozhong is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the 2019 Financial Year. The Audit
Committee has also discussed matters with respect to the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Company
and the internal control with senior management members
and the external auditor of the Company, Deloitte. Based on
this review and discussions with the management, the Audit
Committee was satisfied that the Group’s audited consolidated
financial statements were prepared in accordance with
accounting standards and fairly present the Group’s financial
position and results for the 2019 Financial Year.

for identification purposes only
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEE®RE (B

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Board has adopted the principles and the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix 14 to Listing Rules to ensure that the Company’s
business activities and decision making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on page 70 of this annual report. During the Period, the
Company has fully complied with the CG Code.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage
of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted
under the Listing Rules, are held by the public at all times as
of the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 16 March
2018, and there has been no change in auditors since the
Listing Date. The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019 have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, who are
proposed for reappointment at the forthcoming AGM.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceeding
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company is in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As an environmental protection service provider, the Group
strictly abides by the laws and regulations relating to its
business, including provision of services of environment
protection and energy conservation, inspection of the
pollutants and flue gas generated by coal-fired power plants.
The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
giving back to community and achieving sustainable growth.
The achievements of the Group are based on constructing
the mutual beneficial relations with our clients and employees
and maintaining coexistence with ecological and social
environment. The Group will continue to commit to its social
responsibilities and exert its advantages as an environmental
protection enterprise and make consistent efforts to forage an
environment with blue sky and white clouds.

Details of the environment, social responsibilities and
governance of the Company are set out in the ESG Report on
page 152 to page 216 of this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM will to be held on Friday, 12 June 2020. A notice
convening the AGM will be published and dispatched to the
shareholders of the Company in the manner required by the
Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members will be closed from Tuesday,
9 June 2020 to Friday, 12 June 2020, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of share will be effected. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 pm on Monday, 8 June
2020. The record date for such purpose is Friday, 12 June
2020.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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In order to determine the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019, the transfer
books and register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 18 June 2020 to Monday, 22 June 2020, both
days inclusive. During the above period, no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 17 June 2020.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Liquan Richard
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 April 2020
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PROFILE OF HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had 1,950 employees in
total, most of whom were based in the PRC. The Group has
established independent labor union branches. Currently,
the Group has entered into employment agreements with all
employees, which specify the position, duties, remuneration,
employment benefits, training, confidentiality obligations
relating to trade secrets, grounds for termination and other
aspects pursuant to PRC Labor Law and other relevant
regulations.

The table below sets forth the number of employees as of 31
December 2019 categorised by their functions:

Human Resources

ADER

ADERER

M2019F 128318 + HMHAREH1,950%E 8 -
EFBAZHEETH+TE AEEREBE LT
oY BAlC AEEBHREHE T TEE
AR BRHPELEEMEMBEERORTE
PHREATTEENEMC BE FH B81®
- 5F9 - EERENENRERTRKIEER
LEIH -

TRIIRR2019F12A31B B W E T
N

Number of Percentage of the total

employees number of employees
Function B gE EE A" AEBESL
Concession operation management personnel  1SF&EEIREAS 89 4.56%
Engineering and technical personnel TREFIAR 147 7.54%
Sales personnel HEAB 19 0.97%
Research and development personnel HEAE 62 3.18%
Administrative and management personnel THREERAE 31 1.59%
Manufacture personnel HEEAB 1,602 82.15%
Total HEt 1,950 100%
EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE ETHE

Guided by the business strategies and annual business
targets and focused on economic benefits, the Company
followed the market trends and developed its technology to
comprehensively enhance its overall abilities in plan execution,
project management and teamwork. During the Reporting
Period, an evaluation system based on “contribution value” as
performance measurement standard and “performance result”
as guidance was established. This system places an emphasis
on evaluating the operational capability by working efficiency
to lead employees to excellence.

ARBINEEBBNFELLZRERR/ELG UK
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Human Resources (Continued)

ADER (&)

Furthermore, the Group implemented a responsibility-
based system for business management objectives, and all
employees participate in performance appraisal. By setting
key performance indicators and index evaluation criteria, the
Group scientifically and objectively evaluates the performance
of tasks of each position, assisting employees to improve
their ability and performance so that the Group’s annual
business objectives can be achieved. In addition, the Group
implemented a commensurate reward and penalty system
and a promotion system based on the quantitative evaluation
results, so as to truly realize employee incentives.

THE EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration package of the employees includes salaries,
bonuses and allowances. Our employees also receive
supplementary medical provision, transportation allowances,
meal allowances and other benefits. During the Reporting
Period, the Company carried out employee performance
appraisals and established diversified and dynamic appraisal
mechanisms, which are result-oriented. By setting performance
objectives and quantifying the work load, the Company has
improved its performance appraisal system which integrates
rewards and assessments. At the same time, a mechanism for
matching job performance with the remunerations of relevant
persons in charge was established for management personnel
and project managers.

During the Reporting Period, pursuant to applicable PRC laws
and regulations, the Group has contributed to social insurance
funds (including pension plans, basic medical insurance,
employment injury insurance, unemployment insurance and
maternity insurance) and housing provident funds for all
employees.
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TRAINING FOR EMPLOYEES

In order to attract and retain high quality employees
and further improve their knowledge, skill levels and
professionalism, the Group places a strong emphasis on the
training of its employees. During the Reporting Period, the
Group provided professional education, training and other
opportunities for management personnel and employees to
improve their professional skills and knowledge. We have
developed and carried out exclusive training programs in
design institutes, elite training in sales and marketing centers
and the induction training for fresh graduates.

In 2019, the Group conducted 83 training programs in areas
of operation management, professional techniques and
production skills. During the Reporting Period, the training rate
of our employees achieved 95%.

PROTECTION OF THE EMPLOYEES’ RIGHTS

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with the
Labour Law of PRC and the Labour Contract Law of PRC in
all material respects, including making contributions to the
Social Insurance Fund and Housing Provident Fund for its
employees, among which the social insurance includes basic
pension insurance, basic medical insurance, employment
injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance.

Human Resources (Continued)

ANEIR (#)

8 T3

BRARBESEENE I RE—FRESETH
M - R KERBERE BN T9EEHE
TR - REHR - BAREEABRET
REFIEHHE BIIREMKE R ETIH
BERAERMGY  ATWRIHARET RAREE
Bl mMBEHEPLOEERIEEIIUREERE
i%%%%%ﬁ%o

R2019%F - REEEITSIAKLEEIRME BHER
ﬁﬁ&iﬁﬁ%ﬁm%m#%omﬁ%%WEI
FEIIERZEEF5% o

ETREARE

EREHA - AEERFABERTEHETHE
BEEMTBRLEERE REAEIHEMT A
ERBEEEAES  HPHERBREEELRE
ZRE - BEABERE - THBREB  RERBNM
EERE -

Annual Report 2019 3% 151



=

ESG Report
RIE  HERERRSE

EXPLANATION OF THE REPORT

The Group believes that a healthy environmental, social and
governance (ESG) performance is decisive for the Company’s
sustainable development, our long-term sound foundation
and creating value for our shareholders in the long run. While
enhancing our steady and strong financial performance,
the Group pays close attention to the improvement of the
management level and performance of ESG in order to
promote a sustainable development.

Scope of report

The data and facts involved in this report covered China
Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries.
For ease of expression, they are referred to as the “Group”
and “we”. The Group manages to select the Group’s
relevant material ESG issues and include them in this report
through communications with stakeholders, material issues
identification and assessment. The time period covered in
this report was from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 31
2019. Taking into account the continuity and comparability
of information disclosed, certain content may be beyond the
aforesaid period.

Principles of reporting

The Board is responsible for the Company’s environmental,
social and governance strategies and reporting. This report
has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) in
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). The preparation of this report aligns with the principles
of materiality, quantification, balance and consistency.

Materiality: The materiality of the Group’s ESG issues is
determined by the Board. The process of stakeholder
communication and identification of material issues and the
materiality matrix are all disclosed in this report.
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Quantitative: Statistical standards, methods, assumptions and/
or calculation tools for quantitative key performance indicators
herein and source of conversion factors are all explained in
the definitions of the report.

Balance: This report shall provide an unbiased picture of the
environmental, social, and governance performance of the
Group during the reporting period. It should avoid selections,
omissions or presentation formats that may inappropriately
influence the decision or judgment by the report readers.

Consistency: The statistical methodologies and calibers
applied to the data disclosed in this report shall be consistent
with the previous year unless otherwise specified.

1. ESG MANAGEMENT
1.1 ESG management system

The Board attaches great importance to the Company’s
ESG-related work. As the highest decision-making
body on the Group’'s ESG issues, The board has
overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG work. The
duties of the Board include assessing and determining
the related ESG risks of the Company, ensuring
the Company has in place an effective ESG risk
management and internal control system, regularly
reviewing the Company’s ESG performance and
considering and approving the disclosure information in
the Company’s ESG report. This report has also been
reviewed by the Board before its publication.

ESG Report (Continued)
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t\{ ESG Report (Continued)
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1.2
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HERERRSE (H)

Under the authority of the Board, the Group has
established an ESG working group, which is responsible
for the daily implementation of the ESG tasks and
the regular reporting of related matters of the ESG
tasks to the Board. The Board’s working department
leads the ESG task team and is responsible for the
coordination and overall planning for the ESG tasks.
The members of the ESG working group comprised
of personnel in charge of ESG related matters from
various departments, who are responsible for the daily
management and execution of ESG tasks and ESG
performance management.

Stakeholder communication

The Board
The Group's highest
decision-making
body on ESG issues

Exg
AEEESGRERFMHE

Authorize =i EH

PP Regular
the initiation  pgE % reporting
of ESG ESG ESG on the ESG
management a3 I task
works T £H
ESG working group

Responsible for the daily
implementation of the
ESG task
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1.2 FBHHEBEAFBE

The Board's working department
Responsible for the coordination and
overall planning for the ESG task

EEG T
BEESC TR MRS

1 Personal in charge of ESG issues )
from various departments of head
office
Responsible for the daily management
and execution of tasks and
performance management according

to the division of duties of various
departments
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The Group’s ESG Management Organization System
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ESG Report (Continued)
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Case study: The directors of China Boqgi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. participate in ESG training and
seminars

R4 - BHRREE S MESGHE I RHT=Y

The directors of the Group actively follow up on ESG governance issues, and discuss the ESG policies and
developments issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in a timely manner. In December 2019, the Group
hired a third-party professional consulting agency to conduct ESG training for the Board on issues including the
Consultation Conclusions on Review of the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide and Related
Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange in December 2019, the topics of concern on ESG by capital market
and outstanding ESG corporate practices. It helps the Board to participate in the ESG management in a practical
manner and empowers the sustainable development of corporation.

AEEEEEHBPEESCGERSEE BRI T EBM AR B EMMESGHRREAF R - 2019F128 - AKREEF R
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The Group has maintained constant communication AEEFBERFENRAETNEDR - &
with stakeholders. Diversified communication channels BETBBRE  BERBENSEER
have been established for the purposes of listening to HPEEK - WHHNSEEINER R
stakeholders’ expectations and demands and providing Frigb2rE - AMRTITREERARED
timely response to stakeholders’ opinions. We have B BBUWHEINSEESEBRBERAE
prepared and formulated a stakeholder communication BASEEEMEEHRD TIERHEER o

chart from the perspective of sustainable development
to provide a basis for the identification of material
issues of the Group.

1.3 Assessment on material issues 1.3 EEZRETG
Stakeholders Communication channels Topics of concern
MBS BERE BERE
Shareholders/investors o General meetings ° Continuously creating return on
B B E RERE value
FEREEBEDR
o Investor hotline
WEHERG . Corporate governance and risk
management
. Roadshow EERERRE R
7973
° The exercise of the right to
o Regular report and announcement information and the right to
EHmERNS participate in decision-making

TTEAITHENS EIR KRR
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ESG Report (Continued)
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Stakeholders
FZ=AEBA

Communication channels
BERE

Topics of concern
AERE

Government/regulatory
authorities

BT BB

Business partners

BIERH

Customers/owners

e ==
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° Daily communication
HEER
° Announcement of information

EERE

° Regulation and supervision

S B BR
EEER

° Industry association

E/A

° Business exchange and
cooperation

EBRRATE

° Communication during daily
service provision
HERGER

° Customer visits

BFED

o Satisfaction survey
mEERE

° Regular communication meetings

= xSy
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Compliant operation
ABREL

Payment for tax pursuant to laws

HORTR

The promotion of technology
upgrades on environmental
protection

HEERREMRT

Mutual development
HEER

Safe and stable production
TERTELEE

Environmental compliance
RRER

Continuous technology and product
innovation
FEBRIMT TEME QAR

The guarantee of project quality
REIRES

Provision of satisfactory service
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Stakeholders
Flz=EEE A

Communication channels
BERE

ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)

Topics of concern
AERE

Suppliers/contractors

e, AEen

Employees
8T

Community

o

Supplier meeting

HERSE

Revisit and interview
BIFH « 497K

Public tender

NGRS

Project cooperation
HEAE

Meeting of democratic life

Rx&Eeg

Staff training
BT

Performance appraisal interview
75 RUTE 7K

Team building activities
E2EH

Questionnaire

BERAE

Caring for the underprivileged
FE ISP Y

Carrying out environmental
protection activities

FRRFREE

The guarantee of performance

RIZEL

Transparent procurement
FEEARE

Win-win cooperation
BIEHR

The honoring of commitment
BTG

Equal and diversified employment

F¥% - ZLLRER

Salary and benefits
i B A A

Career development and training
B 22 R B

Safe and healthy working
environment
ZREROTIERE

Prohibition of child labor and forced
labor
B 1E 38 T K3 i 45

Public welfare in the community

Environmental protection
IRIFIRE
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Based on the requirements of the ESG Guide of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Group has
rationalized, screened and prioritized the issues which
have a substantial impact on the Group’s economic,
environmental and social issues and have a materia
effect on stakeholders’ evaluation and decision-making
by benchmarking the standards of international and
domestic leading enterprises, so as to establish an
important basis for the management and disclosure of
ESG information.
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2.1

PROTECT ECOLOGICAL ENVIRONMENT AND
PROMOTE GREEN DEVELOPMENT

Promote environmental governance

The Group has always upheld to the philosophy of
letting everyone live under the blue sky and white
clouds and is committed to becoming a world-
class comprehensive group in the environmental
protection industry and a service provider of
intelligent green housekeeping. After more than ten
years of development, the Group has accumulated
extensive experience and professional capabilities
in areas such as R&D and design, construction and
implementation, operation and management from its
environmental protection and energy saving projects,
and we are gradually transforming our role from a
coordinated flue gas solution provider to the intelligent
environmental protection housekeeper in relation to the
comprehensive treatment services involving flue gas,
water, soil and solid waste issues. We provide a full
range of environmental protection and energy saving
solutions to customers around the world through various
business models including environmental protection
facility engineering (“EPC”), operation and maintenance
(“O&M") and concession operations (including “Build-
Operate-Transfer” or “BOT”, and “Build-Own-Operate”
or “BOQ”). At present, the environmental projects
constructed and operated by the Group have covered
almost 30 provinces, municipalities and autonomous
regions in China, as well as overseas regions such as
Europe, South Asia, Latin America, Africa and Southeast
Asia.

2.1

ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

Treatment of flue gas pollution

As one of the first participants in China’s flue
gas treatment industry, the Group is abided by
Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law
of the People’s Republic of China (FFZE A RN
Bl AR5 2 F58%) and the State Council’'s Three-
year Sky Defending Plan (3] & X REE =F178)
5t2&1) and provides desulfurization, denitrification,
dust removal and integrated flue gas treatment
services to many enterprises in industries such
as power, steel and coking, in order to reduce
pollutant emissions and improve production
efficiency of the enterprises. The Group has
contributed to reducing emissions of sulfur
dioxide, nitrogen oxides and smoke ash in the
atmosphere. In the reporting period, the Group
won the “Top Ten Steel Desulfurization Enterprise
Award” and the “Top Ten Steel Denitrification
Enterprise Award” in the selection of the top ten
most influential flue gas treatment enterprises in
the “2019 North Star Cup” as well as the “2019
China Atmospheric Governance Quality Service
Award”. As of the end of 2019, the Company has
undertaken newly constructed and transformed
desulfurization projects abroad and domestic
with a cumulative contracted amount of 277
units and installed capacity of 119.98 million
kilowatts, and denitrification projects with a
cumulative contracted amount of 90 units and
installed capacity of 27.33 million kilowatts. As of
31 December 2019, the Group’s EPC, BOT and
O&M projects that have been put into operation
can reduce 6.67 million tonnes of sulfur dioxide
and 250,000 tonnes of nitrogen oxides annually
according to the design standard, and a total
of approximately 35.21 million tonnes of sulfur
dioxide emissions and approximately 1.15 million
tonnes of nitrogen oxide emissions have been
reduced in the past years.
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)

Case study: Jinggangshan Desulfurization Ultra-low Emission Project

R4 - AELBRBESERER

The Jingguanshan Desulfurization Project is the Group’ s first flue gas treatment project, where we are
responsible for the construction and O&M of flue gas desulfurization facilities for the client’ s power plants,
with a total installed capacity of 1,920 MW. The desulfurization system of this project completely adopts the
limestone-gypsum wet desulfurization technology with the Group’ s own intellectual property rights. The outlet
emission concentration of all units is controlled within standards, with SO, concentration<35 mg/Nm? and smoke
dust concentration <10 mg/Nm?, and the desulfurization efficiency reaches 99.33%, meeting the ultra-low
emission standards of the natural environmental protection.

With a well-established system of project management, operation management, production management and
technology research and development, neither any desulfurization efficiency below standards has occurred,
nor any major personal accident, equipment damage and environmental pollution incident has happened in the
past ten years of the construction and operation of the project. While creating economic and social benefits, the
project has also made considerable contributions to the local environmental protection work.

HRAILBHEE EASEEEZERAEER  AERATFPFERWELTHRERM T LIZ - BEKEE1,920MW ° ZIH
BERF RS TR RARE l%ﬁ@I%ﬂﬁFﬁéEﬁEmE — REREBTEM - FTA AL OB HORE S EFIESOIRE
<35 mg/Nmd « [BEERE <10mg/Nm3IZER « BFTAEEF]99.33% © i EBFIRRBIEBEBUIZLE -

BRTENHEAEE K218 LETEUMERMMARER  ZHEBEREL +FR  HRBLERRUETERE
R ORBELBEAAT  REBZEUMNMRFESREN - FRELBERENESMEHFE - ABB TAEHRER
ETEMETERER -

In recent years, on the basis of the traditional MFR REBYETRENITER
business of desulfurization and denitrification HRENEREL  FETKER
in the power industry, the Group has been BERERBERZME - A1t
gradually expanding its comprehensive flue gas BRI EIEETE  EWMBITE
treatment services to non-electricity industries B BB EER R ARIRE

such as steel, petrochemical and electrolytic S T ERPI R S B B0 KR e
aluminum. In the aspect of steel industry, we ?ﬁ’ﬁfﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂfﬁﬁmmﬁﬁ%
actively implement the Opinions on Promoting Ao bR I IE B R R E
the Implementation of Ultra-low Emissions in iﬁ?‘#ﬁﬂlﬁlﬁ%’ ZIEBEETER
the Steel Industry (85 HE# & 5 8 #9177 E B PR R ER|98.5% ~ i iy = = B
B e & ) jointly issued by five government 89.2% ' RIFRFAEA R —IBE - KIB
ministries of China, including the Ministry of HE R BUE 15 5 B 3k R 3 B N A [RI 4%

Ecology and Environment of the PRC, and carry
out desulfurization and denitrification ultra-
low emission services for the Hebei Jinxi steel
project. Since the beginning of the operation of
the project, the desulfurization and denitrification
efficiency have reached 98.5% and 89.2%
respectively, meanwhile dioxin can be removed
and all emission data has reached or exceeded
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

the emission standards of equivalent units in the
country. In the aspect of petrochemical industry,
we have launched the ultra-low emission upgrade
project of thermoelectricity cogeneration units
of Sinopec Shanghai, in which the ultra-low
emission targets have been met through the
construction of an integrated flue gas treatment
system — Environmental Protection Island, with
nitrogen oxide concentration less than 50mg/
Nm?3, sulfur dioxide concentration less than 37mg/
Nm?3 and smoke dust concentration less than
10mg/Nm?. In the aspect of electrolytic aluminum
industry, the Weiqgiao electrolytic aluminum flue
gas desulfurization project which we constructed
has a desulfurization efficiency of 91.81%,
helping customers to significantly reduce
pollutant emissions.

Industrial wastewater treatment

In order to further implement the requirements
of the Water Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the People’s Republic of China (FF#EA
R HARMBIKTZB5555%) and the Action Plan for
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution (7K %
Fr3a178)5t2l), to help industrial enterprises meet
increasingly stringent discharge requirements
and to help improve water environmental
quality, the Group has gradually expanded its
service areas to industrial wastewater treatment
business. In 2019, the Group acquired Lubao
Sewage Treatment Center in the field of industrial
wastewater treatment. By applying advanced
processes such as ultrafiltration, nanofiltration
and reverse osmosis, the Group has achieved
the target of zero discharge of industrial sewage
via the wastewater treatment system.

FEEFRAE (ER) BRAF
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)

Case study: Lubao Industrial Park Wastewater Zero Discharge Project

R RATXEEEKEHNESE

In June 2019, the Group further expanded its business into the field of environmental protection services and
acquired Lubao Industrial Park Wastewater Treatment Center. As the “environmental steward” of the industrial
park, the treatment center provides wastewater discharge and treatment services for chemical companies in the
park, creating a win-win model of mutual benefit and joint development.

In order to promote the zero discharge of wastewater in the park, the Group has carried out upgrading and
reconstruction of the existing sewage treatment facilities in the wastewater treatment center. The Group
has newly constructed an intensified treatment system for concentrated water, to conduct further reduction
treatment and zero discharge treatment on the concentrated wastewater produced by the wastewater intensified
treatment units and the circulating water and effluent reuse units. The project adopts membrane concentration
plus evaporation crystallization process for sewage treatment. The main process of the first stage adopts the
pre-treatment plus membrane concentration process, which concentrates the highly refractory wastewater with
high intensity to achieve wastewater reduction, while the second stage adopts MVR evaporated crystallization.
Through the two-stage treatment process, the problem of the complexity of the water quality of the coking
wastewater and its relatively large variation tendency can be solved, thus finally achieving zero discharge of
wastewater” via the entire wastewater treatment system in the park.

20196 A ' AEBE — S HRERRBES - WETRBREIXEERKEEFLS  FATERERYN [BRRER] - AE
BAE{ ThEREEKENEERY - TEEEERN  ARBRNERER -

ATHERARBKERTHN  AREHEKEETLHNRETKEEREHE T TREZTIE - TIZRKRERER
g BEKREREETMER K SKAAETEANRTKE-TREREMNTHREE - BERARRRE+ A%
R TEAETIRERE  F-RIBIERAHERE+RRETIE  HoHRREKSHRERE  UERBEKHENL -
FE_RERAMVREZESR - BEAMRERE ARBRANELEIOKEEREBEEANER  KEREREEEKER
RREY -

Note: *According to the national standard stipulated BEat - IR 1 B X 1Z GEGB/T21534-
in GB/T21534-2008 “Industrial water usage 2008 ( T X H KB KMTE5) B
and conservation-Terminology” (I % /5 7k 5 7k KEHKTEER [PELFREE
#lriZ), zero discharge of wastewater is defined JTH 4K R BT %
as “no industrial wastewater is discharged by JEEKSGNBE ] o

water production systems of enterprises or main

units”.
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

2.2 Develop environmental protection technology 2.2 BRERREREMN
The Group always adheres to the principle of AREFEBRKERE [BIFTECELZENTIER
‘innovation is an inexhaustible driving force for AH]RE - TETHESRMAIE - AES
enterprise development” and continuously promotes NARITERNRREMER « BRRFK
technological innovation, making a positive contribution 8 M EmaE -

to promoting the development of environmental
protection technology of the Company and the industry
and the tackling of the challenging environmental
issues.

. Continuously to explore and innovate .

The Group is committed to continuously
improving its capabilities in technological
innovation and has established a comprehensive
innovation research and development system
comprising, among others, the Regulations
on the Management of R&D Projects and the
Regulations on the Management of Technical
Standardization. It has also set up a training
base with simulation of different work scenario,
a laboratory for physical model and flow field, a
seawater desulfurization thermal experimental
platform and a R&D test platform, and also
established a Beijing-certified enterprise
technology center and a post-doctorate
science & research work station. Relying on
its strong R&D capabilities, the Group has
continuously achieved technological upgrades
and breakthroughs. The Group has been
rated as an “Innovative Pilot Enterprise in
Zhongguancun Science and Technology Park”
and a “Standardized Pilot Unit in Zhongguancun
Science and Technology Park” and its R&D
projects have been acclaimed as “SCR Flue Gas
Denitrification Key Technology and Equipment
R&D and Industrialization Major Project in
Zhongguancun”.
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In order to further strengthen its capabilities
of innovation and R&D, the Group is also
actively carrying out research collaboration with
universities. We cooperate extensively with well-
known universities both domestic and abroad
such as Zhejiang University, Tsinghua University,
Nankai University, Southeast University and
Waseda University in Japan. Through diversified
means such as scientific experiments, joint
R&D and talent development, we can drive the
transformation of scientific and technological
achievements via the promotion of the integration
of production, learning, research and application.
Meanwhile, we are also committed to promoting
technical exchanges between enterprises and
technical exchanges internationally. We have
started to cooperate with a number of companies
in Japan, the United States, Austria and other
regions who have mastered the industry’s
advanced technology through various schemes
such as technology import authorization, project
technology cooperation and joint technology
development, so as to further expand the scope
of technology applications and master the
industry’s cutting-edge technologies.

During the reporting period, the Group’s gas
turbine waste heat boiler NO, ultra-low emission
technology achieved further breakthroughs,
and has been successively applied to two gas
turbine denitrification projects in Beijing Jingneng
Gaoantun Thermal Power Plant and Beijing Jingxi
Thermal Power Plant. Through the optimization of
flow field simulation, ammonia spray grid control
optimization, zone control and other technical
means, the ultra-low emission technology has
achieved an ultra-low emission standard of NO,
emission less than 5 mg/Nm?, which is far lower
than national and local standards.

ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

Protection of intellectual property

The Group attaches great importance to
the protection of intellectual property rights.
The Group complies with national laws and
regulations such as the Trademark Law of the
People’s Republic of China (FFZE A R A MEmEZ
/%), the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of
China (FZE ARZMBIZEFE) and the Copyright
Law of the People’s Republic of China (f
AR HEMEZEEHEK), and has formulated and
implemented the Patent Management and
Award System in order to protect the Company’s
trademarks, patents, copyrights, business
confidential data and other intellectual rights,
which are considered as important assets of the
Company. Meanwhile, we have also set up a
centralized department for patent management,
which is responsible for formulating patent
management systems and patent strategies,
organizing patent applications and the daily
management of proprietary intellectual property
rights to ensure that the Company’s intellectual
property management work is carried out in an
orderly manner.

During the reporting period, the Group newly
added 6 authorized patents, with a cumulative
total of 57; and newly added 2 software
copyrights, with a cumulative total of 8.

Promote industry development

While continuously improving its technological
innovation capabilities, the Group also actively
participates in industry exchange activities and
works with industry peers to make contributions
to the environmental pollution governance sector.
The Group serves in a number of capacities in
various industry associations, including deputy
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2.3

director of China Environmental Protection
Products Standard Technology Committee,
deputy president of Sub-association of Energy
Conservation & Environmental Protection of the
China Electricity Council and standing committee
of Desulfurization and Denitrification Committee
of China Environmental Protection Industry
Association. Meanwhile, the Group also actively
participates in the formulation and promotion
of national standards and industry standards
to promote the enhancement of the overall
industry level. As of the end of 2019, the Group
had participated in the compilation of 4 national
standards and 6 industry standards.

Strengthen emissions management

While helping customers to reduce pollutant emissions
through the construction and O&M of environmental
engineering projects, the Group also pays close
attention to the emissions from its own office operations.
The Group strictly complies with laws and regulations
such as the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China (R A RHEMEERIER#E
%), the Air Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China (¥ AREFEATSEMH
JAYE), the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China (%A RILFBEIAT R
ffia7%) and the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution
Caused by Solid Wastes (FFZE A R H 1B B 82 BE 97T 2238
&%), and has formulated and implemented internal
management systems such as the Environmental
Protection Management System and Environmental
Protection Supervision and Management System (Trial)
to ensure compliance with emission standards and
strive to minimize environmental impact. During the
reporting period, the Group did not experience any
major lawsuit or corresponding punishment due to
violations of environmental issues.

2.3

ESG Report (Continued)
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

Through a comprehensive review of its business
activities, the Group has identified certain major
emissions, including sulfur dioxide and nitrogen
oxides that are discharged after desulfurization and
denitrification treatment of concession operation
projects, desulfurized gypsum generated in the flue
gas desulfurization process, waste catalyst generated
in the flue gas denitrification process and greenhouse
gases generated from energy consumption in project
and office operations. On the basis of the sources
of different types of emissions, we have continued
to reduce pollutant emissions via various targeted
measures such as enhancing management level and
technology transformation.

° Reduce flue gas emission

The Group reduces the emissions of air pollutant
by providing customers with desulfurization,
denitrification, dust removal and integrated
flue gas treatment services. We continuously
innovate the flue gas treatment technology and
enhance the efficiency of flue gas removal, so
as to meet the technical requirements of “ultra-
low emissions”. Meanwhile, we have carried out
technology transformation and management
improvement for projects that have been put into
operation, thereby further reducing the emissions
of air pollutants. The emission reduction
measures carried out during the reporting period
include:

- Flow connectivity transformation was
carried out for the Yangxi project to extend
the service life of equipment and pipelines
and improve system reliability.

= For the Jinggangshan project, a flue
gas deflector technology was applied
to reduce the desulfurization resistance
before the inlet of flue gas. Meanwhile, the
desulfurization low-voltage switch cabinet
was transformed to ensure the safe
operation of the system.
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- The denitrification operation management
was enhanced for the Hejin project.
The NOx emission at the denitrification
catalyst outlet was monitored weekly and
adjustment was carried out by ammonia
injection according to the reaction effect of
the catalyst segment, so as to ensure the
concentration of NOx meets the emission
standard in the case of unstable coal
quality for power generation.

Waste management

The Group has carried out waste disposal
activities in compliance with the law, and
formulated and implemented the Waste Pollutants
Disposal Management System (Trial), pursuant to
which wastes are managed through the following
classification:

- The main hazardous wastes are waste
catalysts, all of which are transferred to
a qualified professional recycling plant
for disposal after approval by the local
environment bureau.

- The main non-hazardous waste
is desulfurized gypsum, which is
preferentially sold to users who have
the utilization ability for reuse. For
the desulfurized gypsum that cannot
be reused, is stored in the storage
and disposal site that constructed in
accordance with the Standard for Pollution
Control of General Industrial Solid Waste
in Storage and Disposal Sites (— & T
FEBEMETT REH)5RESRE).
At present, all the desulfurized gypsum
generated from the Group’s concession
operation projects have been sold
externally for comprehensive utilization in
additive materials in cement plants and
gypsum board processing industry.
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

o Major emission indicators . FEHHRYEE
Indicators Unit 2019
EREW B 20195 &
Greenhouse gas
BERE
Scope 1: Direct emission Tonnes CO, equivalent 692.29
HE— BRI WE— S LIRE S
Scope 2: Indirect emission Tonnes CO, equivalent 744,064.94
#E = : EEBEN WL EE
Total greenhouse gas emissions Tonnes CO, equivalent
(scope 1 + scope 2) 744.,757.283
BEREHREE (HE—+8HE) WS LIREE
Greenhouse gas emissions intensity Tonnes CO, equivalent/
Tonne/ten thousand of revenue 4.06

BERBAENEE W ELRE R BT
Flue gas emissions
BEREHE
Up to standard sulphur dioxide emission under Tonnes

franchise 3,054
TR E TERFR AR I
Up to standard NOx emission under franchise Tonnes 2,738
R E TERTRAALY A
Amount of non-hazardous wastes produced* Tonnes 918,400
BEBREYELS" T4
Intensity of non-hazardous wastes produced Tonnes/ten thousand of revenue 5.00
BEBERVELTE W, & ITE
Recycling rate of non-hazardous wastes* % 100
EEREZRY LKA AR %
Amount of hazardous wastes produced?® Tonnes 506
FEERRYELES i
Intensity of hazardous wastes produced Kg/ten thousand of revenue 2.76
EEEEVELTE TR/ BLEK
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Notes:

The scope of emission statistics covers the
emissions generated by the daily operation
of the Group’s flue gas treatment projects
(including BOT and O&M projects) and its
offices in mainland China. As the Group entered
into an asset acquisition agreement for the
sewage treatment center in Shanxi Lubao
Industrial Park in June 2019, so the project of
the sewage treatment center is not covered by

the emission statistics for this year.

The calculation of greenhouse gas emission
refers to the Greenhouse Gas Protocol: a
corporate accounting and reporting standard
2012 (Amendment) published by World
Resources Institute (WRI) and World Business
Council for Sustainable Development (WBCSD),
and the Fifth Assessment Report issued by
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
(IPCC). The grid emission factors used in
the calculation of Scope 2 refer to the latest
emission factors of China's regional power grid
for 2017 released by the Department of Climate
Change under the Ministry of Ecology and

Environment of the PRC.

Up to standard emissions under concession
operation refer to the emissions of sulfur
dioxide and nitrogen oxides generated by
customers in the Group’s flue gas treatment
concession operation projects that are currently
in operation, after treatment by the Group’s

desulfurization and denitrification systems.

The amount of non-hazardous wastes produced
includes desulfurized gypsum generated
during the flue gas treatment process of the
Group’s concession operation projects. During
the reporting period, all desulfurized gypsum
generated from the Group’s concession
operation projects were sold externally and the

recycling rate was 100%.
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ESG Report (Continued)

BRiR

2.4

172 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

HERERRSE (H)

5. The amount of hazardous wastes produced
includes waste catalysts generated during
the flue gas treatment process of the Group's
franchised projects, all of which were
transferred to a qualified professional recycling
plant for disposal after approval by the local

environment bureau.

Resources conservation

The Group adheres to the concept of green sustainable
development, comprehensively implements energy
conservation, consumption reduction and recycling
measures and continuously reduces its resource
consumption during operation. The Group strictly
complies with national and local laws and regulations
related to energy conservation and environmental
protection such as the Energy Conservation Law of the
People’s Republic of China (1 #E AR EFEELIELRZE).
Besides, the Group has formulated and implemented
its Energy Saving and Consumption Reduction
Management System to carry out its management
on energy conservation and consumption reduction
In order to promote the efficient use of resources
the Group has set up a “small performance indicator
on consumption planning” for the resources mainly
consumed in the operation of projects such as power,
limestone, liquid ammonia. An analysis meeting is
organized monthly to establish an assessment system
by the project department. Consumption reduction
targets are delegated into different lower-level teams
to ensure the effective implementation of energy
conservation and consumption reduction measures,
thereby significant results have been achieved.

2.4
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Energy conversation

The energy consumed by the Group is mainly
electricity generated during the operation of
equipment and in the office and gasoline and
diesel consumed during vehicle operation.
During the reporting period, the Company further
reduced energy consumption through various
means such as equipment renovation, system
optimization and the promotion of a low-carbon
lifestyle. Specific measures include:

- Energy-saving adjustments were made
to the demister, and the cyclone blades
on the intake side of the condensing and
wet film layer of high-efficient demister of
absorbing column were modified. After
the improvement of the Yuguang project,
the front and rear differential pressure
was reduced by 54% and the booster fan
electric current was reduced by 13%. A
single-unit booster fan can save 460,000
kWh of electricity annually.

- Some circulating pump motors were
transformed into permanent magnet
motors. For instance, 6,257,781 kWh of
electricity can be saved annually for the
Shenhuo project after such transformation.

- Energy-saving adjustment to low-load and
low-sulfur oxidation blowers was carried
out for the Yangxi project, and addition
of synergists was applied to the Yuguang
project and the Puzhou project, thereby
the operating efficiency of the power
units was further enhanced and energy
consumption was reduced.
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

Enhancing employees’ awareness of
energy saving. Electricity was turned
off during non-working hours and air-
conditioning temperature was set at not
less than 26 degrees Celsius in summer,
thus reducing energy consumption in the
office.

Promoting green travel and strengthening
the management on the dispatch and
using of official vehicles, thus reducing

BEETHREH  FFLIE
REKSHEFASER  BEE=
HRERE NERN26%E KX
E - BRERATRER -

BEZBHIT - MBRAHKH
BENREEMERER - B
FURHRE ©

gasoline consumption.

o Water conservation

The water resources consumed by the Group

are mainly the production water used in project

operation and equipment cleaning and the

domestic water used in daily office work, and no

issue has been encountered in the process of

securing water sources. The Group takes various

measures to avoid waste of water resources,

which mainly include:

174 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

We reduce the use of production water
by formulating wastewater recycling plan
and devising wastewater recycling plans
targeted for each project department.
During the reporting period, the
desulfurization wastewater treatment
technology was upgraded and renovated
for the Jinggangshan project, so that
wastewater discharge was reduced and
the utilization rate of water resources was
enhanced.

We reduce the use of domestic water by
posting water saving signs in public areas
and enhancing employees’ awareness of
water conservation.
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o Reducing consumption of other resources

The Group promotes all-round green operations,

continuously carries out technology optimization

and reduces raw material consumption in the

process of project operation. Meanwhile, the
Group actively promotes paperless office and
strives to complete various production and

operation activities while minimizing the impact

to the environment. Our measures to reduce

consumption during the reporting period include:

Adjustment was done to certain
denitrification projects by optimizing
ammonia injection. Approximately 2.8
tonnes of liquid ammonia are saved
annually for the Hejin project after the
ammonia injection for denitrification is
optimized.

We promote paperless office by building
an office automation system (OA) to realize
online processing for office procedures.
We also strengthen the management of
paper distribution, promote the habit of
double-sided printing and encourage
paper recycling, so as to reduce paper
consumption.
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Data of major resources consumed FTEZFHEEE

Indicators Unit 2019
EREW B 20195 &
Water consumption in offices Tonnes 7,038
WAERKE T4

Water consumption for projects operations Tonnes 16,080,701
B BETRKE Mg

Water consumption in total Tonnes 16,087,739
KB E L7

Water consumption density Tonne/ten thousand of revenue 87.60
FRERE W, &
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

Indicators Unit 2019
EREW B 20195 E
Power consumption in offices kWh 504,251
MAERES T FLAF

Power consumption for projects operations kWh 1,159,378,740
HEETHEE=S F R

Power consumption in total kWh 1,159,882,991
HEHEE T FLBF

Power consumption density kWh/ten thousand of revenue 6,315.76
REERE TR, Brek

Gasoline consumption Tonnes 219.43
R BEREE M

Gasoline consumption density Kg/ten thousand of revenue 1.19
BB E TR,/ BrEK

Diesel consumption Tonnes 11.02
HEMRE M

Diesel consumption density Kg/ten thousand of revenue 0.06
SOREREE TR/ BrLEK

Notes:
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The statistical scope of resources consumption
covers the main resources consumed the daily
operation of the Group’s flue gas treatment
projects (including BOT and O&M projects)
and its offices in mainland China. As the Group
entered into an asset acquisition agreement to
acquire a sewage treatment center in Shanxi
Lubao Industrial Park in June 2019, the project
was not covered in the emissions statistics for

the year.

As the Group’s main business is flue gas
treatment, it is mainly engaged in environmental
protection facility construction and providing
operation and maintenance services and is
less involved in the use of packaging materials.
Therefore, packaging materials used in finished

products are not a material issue for the Group.
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2.5

3.1

Civilized construction

The Group mainly provides integrated environmental
governance services to customers in power, steel,
coking and other industries. The construction projects
carried out are mainly located in industrial parks
and have little impact on the ecological environment
and natural resources. In order to further reduce the
environmental impact, each project department has
formulated the Civilized Construction Management
System, pursuant to which we are required to
conduct soil restoration immediately when vegetation
damages occur during the process of construction, to
continuously carry out landscaping and ecological and
environmental construction in plant areas, and to sort,
collect, store and recycle the production and domestic
wastes generated in the construction process.

IMPROVING SERVICE QUALITY AND
CONSTRUCTING RELIABLE PROJECTS

Strengthening quality management

Upholding the principle of
developing by reputation and benefiting by
management”,

“sustaining by quality,

the Group attaches great importance
to project quality and constantly improves the level of
quality management throughout the project process.
Based on the concept of “full participation and
prevention-oriented”, the Group comprehensively
carries out its efforts on the improvement of quality
management. During the reporting period, the Group
achieved its annual quality target of zero major quality
accident. Neither abnormal shutdowns or unusual
operation events occurred due to quality reasons, nor
did it occur that products had to be recalled due to
quality problems in the period. Guangxi Qinzhou Power
Plant Phase |l Expansion Project (2x1,000 MW) and
Shanxi Yongji “Constructing Large Unite and Restricting
Small Ones” 2x350MW Thermal Power Cogeneration
Project were awarded the 2018-2019 China Quality

Project Award.

2.5

3.1
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RIE HERERERE (H)

XA E T

AEBMFEZEEES - WE - S REAM
"%Eﬁ%fﬁigiﬁ?é/aﬁﬁﬁ& AR
HREEBFEMRIEXEEAN  BEER
ﬂi?ﬁ%%&%%ﬁﬁLﬁZ%w.;. RN o
ATE—TREREYE  SHEBBHE
TAXHRBEIEENE)  BEXEHRIEE
HBFE R IR AE AR A A S R N BT TSR
W B M E AT R BRI RERERE
B WHREIARREEANEE - &
SEREEYETHE  WE - TFRAELK -

BARERE  BRZOLIE
BILEEEE
AEFEEBR[NEERKER - 2Bk
B - UEEBRHz] WRE sEERT
2EE THIRAILEMNESEIEKTE -
AEBUNI2EZ2E BHAX] AE

2 AEMREEEIEEAIIE - RES
N AEEERENLEEETRNATHNEE
FEEE AEBELAREERRAEKRHTIE
BIE#SI T EEETEN  TAREERE
ENETHERETRIKMNER - BEAK
ME R — B Z T2 (2 X 1,000MW) LA K
L 755k [ B R EE /)N 2 X 350MWER & B
ETI2HEEB2018-2019FEHKREL T2
ﬁ o

Annual Report 2019 % 177

%))



178 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

Whole process quality management

The Group strictly complies with relevant national
and industry requirements and standards such as
Building Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEEARLMBEFESEE)and the Regulation on the
Quality Management of Construction Projects
(BHRITIEEEEIE KM, and has established
and implemented internal quality management
systems covering the full cycle of engineering
design, construction, inspection and acceptance,
including the Engineering Quality Management
System, the Engineering Quality Inspection and
Acceptance System and the Engineering Quality
Reward and Punishment System. In accordance
with the latest national and industry standards
and learning from the common problems found in
the supervision and inspection process, we carry
out timely system updates and improvement
measures to ensure that the related system is
sound and complete.
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The Group obtained the quality management
system (GB/T28001-1SO9001) certification in
2003. We have established and perfected our
own quality management and assurance system
strictly in accordance with the requirements of
the above quality management system. We have
established a three-level quality supervision and
management system in compliance with national
norms and industry standards, and delegated
the specific job responsibilities to personnel
at all levels, such that the relevant officers
are responsible for the quality throughout the
implementation of projects. Meanwhile, we carry
out refined process management at each stage
of the project, and continuously promote and
standardize our quality management efforts in

ESG Report (Continued)
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order to assure our project quality in all aspects.

Construction
stage
IR

Inspection
and
acceptance
stage

BRULFEER

Establish a quality management system for each project department, incorporate the construction team

into the management system, and prepare a construction and quality inspection plan.

Strictly carry out quality control measures in the design of project plans and in the tender and

procurement process

Complete the preparation and approval of operation instructions and the technical preparation work for

various tasks.
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Strengthen process management, inspect the ongoing construction projects, formulate a quality
supervision and inspection report, timely report quality issues and rectification measures, and continue
to monitor the rectification and treatment of quality issues.

Strengthen the management of personnel entering the site, require construction units to be stationed
with dedicated quality inspectors and workers with special duties must hold relevant qualification
certificates.

Strengthen the management of inspection and acceptance of incoming materials and equipment.
Quality inspection and technical guidance are carried out throughout the construction process, and the
construction quality of important parts and processes of each project is closely monitored.
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Inspection and acceptance shall be carried out in strict compliance with the design plan, relevant
national norms and standards.

Multi-level inspection shall be carried out according to the inspection plan, ensuring acceptance at four
levels.

After rectification of unqualified items, they must be inspected again to complete acceptance.
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

Conducting quality management training

In order to further improve the quality
management level of the management personnel
of the Company and related projects and the
professional skills of the construction personnel,
and effectively ensure the quality of the project
construction, the Group organizes a training
program for quality management annually.
In 2019, we convened key management
personnel of EPC projects, project managers
in the O&M centers and various professional
engineers to receive a centralized quality
management training, and we also provided
quality management and construction process
training to project and subcontractor personnel
during the course of project quality supervision
and inspection. Through detailed illustration
and in-depth explanation, attendances can
have a clear idea on the quality procedures
during construction, quality problems that are
prone to occur during construction operations
and the preventive measures. As a result, the
project personnel’s technical knowledge can
be consolidated and enhanced and they can
also further understand the inspection and
acceptance standards of construction quality,
thus their quality awareness and construction
skill level can be improved.
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)

Case study: Guangxi Qinzhou Power Plant Phase Il Expansion Project was granted the National Quality
Project Award

2P REARNER_—HREIRRERAIBETIRER

The Group always aims to construct quality projects and strictly implements quality management. During
the expansion of the 2x1,000 MW supercritical unit of the Qinzhou Power Plant in Guangxi, the Group
comprehensively managed the project quality in strict compliance with national and industry technical
regulations, specifications, standards and design plans. The Group has organized and established a quality
assurance system and supervision system for the entire process of the project with the joint participation of
the project department, construction unit, design and procurement department. The project department strictly
implements a three-level quality management system. The technical leaders at all levels of the project are
technically fully responsible for the construction quality, and the project manager is responsible for the project
quality throughout the implementation of the project. We also have quality managers and full-time quality
inspectors stationed at project quality departments, subcontractors and the site management and arrange part-
time quality inspectors in each team, so that the quality management work is delegated to the posts of different
levels.

During the process of project construction, we carry out quality inspection precaution measures in strict
compliance with current standards and specifications, urge subcontractors to carry out quality self-inspection
in strict compliance with standardized procedures, and inspect, supervise and deal with construction
quality problems in a timely manner. We hold regular quality management meetings to fully understand the
updated status of project construction quality issues, timely analyze the quality trends of the construction
project, summarize experience and lessons, and formulate strategies and preventive measures. With all staff
participating in the quality management throughout the implementation of the project, we have effectively
achieved the objective of “everyone is responsible and everything is rule-based, well-documented and
supervised” . We eliminated quality problems and defects at the beginning, effectively guaranteed the project
construction quality and won the 2018-2019 National Quality Engineering Award.
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

3.2
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Ensuring safe production

The Group regards safeguarding production safety and
employee health as the foundation of the Company’s
sustainable development. The Group strictly abides
by the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China(f #E A B & Ml B % & 4 & %), the Law on
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases of
the People’s Republic of China (/% A K HF1E B %
7% Bh 3A &) and relevant laws and regulations of the
place of operation, continuously improves occupational
health and safety management, and has obtained the
occupational health and safety management system
certification. During the reporting period, the Group
did not have any major safety accidents, nor did it
experience any punishment for serious violations of
laws and regulations related to occupational health and
safety in the locations where it operates.

o Safety goals

The Group always adheres to the safety
management concept of “zero accident, zero
damage and zero casualty”. In 2019, in order to
clarify the yearly key tasks of production safety,
the Group established the annual safety goals of
“eradicating major safety accidents, eradicating
major accidents with casualties, eradicating
major fire accidents, no traffic accidents involving
primary responsibilities, no occupational
accidents and no electrical misoperation
accidents. With our sound and comprehensive
safety management, all safety goals for 2019
have been successfully achieved.
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ESG Report (Continued) 0))
RiE - HERERERE (H)

Indicators Unit 2019
EREW B 20195 &
Number of work-related injury accidents' Number 0
TIERHEES 17

Number of work-related injuries (fatalities) Number 0
I (BtT) AB bz}

Number of fatalities of subcontractors due to production  Number 0
accidents

(D) BAREESHILT AR bl

Number of working days absented due to work-related Day 0
injuries’

EAIEBLRTEAL R

Note: 1.  The data of work-related injury includes

#it 1. IBABESHEHNEL

productive work-related injury accidents BIEEMTEFL -
happened during the reporting period.
Improving safety management TELLEE

The Group is committed to promoting a long-term
mechanism of safe production by formulating
and strictly implementing the requirements of
“Departmental Safe Production Responsibility
System and Job Safety Responsibilities”, so as
to fully enhance the level of production safety
management. The Group adopts a two-aspect
and three-level safety management model. At the
Group’s company aspect, a three-level safety
and quality management system is established
with the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer as the top level, each vice president as
the second level, and each department, institute
and center as the third level. At the front-line
project department aspect, a safety and quality
management system is implemented with EPC
engineering management center and O&M
management center as the first level, the project
leaders of each project department as the
second level, and the professional teams as the
third level. Our safety management efforts are
broadened and deepened to cover all segments
and levels, ensuring the effective implementation
of safety management.
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

In order to ensure that employees at all levels
in each project department can practice safety
management with the same high standards,
the Group continues to promote the formulation
and implementation of safe production
standardization. At the stage of standards
formulation, we insist on starting from each
technical procedure and step to build up a
safety quality management system for each
professional process strictly in compliance
with national standards and regulations, so as
to promote the overall level of safe production
standardization with the compliance of every
procedure. At the implementation aspect,
we have implemented the safe production
responsibility system by continuously improving
the safety standardization organization system,
such that every management requirements are
standardized and the effective operation of
safety standardization is effectively guaranteed.
Besides, we have also procured the continuous
deepening and improvement of safe production
management. During the reporting period, the
first-phase engineering project (2x1,000MW)
of the Group’s SDIC Nanyang Power Plant was
rated as a first-class engineering construction
project for standardized power safety production.

FEEFRAE (ER) BRAF
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Eliminate potential safety hazard

The Group has established a normalized safety
inspection work mechanism in accordance with
its Safety Hazard Detection and Governance
and Management System. Through the closed-
loop safety inspection process, the Group has
ensured the timely detection and rectification
of potential safety hazards and effectively
incorporated safety standardization requirements
into the daily management of projects. In 2019,
the Group continued to conduct compliance
inspections pursuant to the requirements of
“inspecting according to standards and systems
and particularly
strengthened the rectification of potential safety
hazard from major dangerous sources such as

and focusing on key issues”,

the liquid ammonia storage areas. The electrical
systems, sprinkler devices and transportation
pipelines with potential safety hazard have been
optimized and upgraded, thus further enhancing
the assurance of safe production. During the
reporting period, the safety hazard eradication
rate reached 100%.

Develop annual and
quarterly safety inspection
plans at different levels

EEER

Against the feedback of the rectifica-
tion status from the project department,
the inspection team will recheck in the
next inspection to ensure the effective
implementation of the rectification
measure

SHHTE B ARENBERER - RE
ERIE T RIRES TUERE -
RERTIFARCEERER

Each project department shall carry
out rectification of related issues based
on the results of safety inspection, and
provide feedback on the rectification in
the weekly safety report

FIAE BEBELZ2RERER
PR - WEZ 2 AR
RPGEBERETREE

ESG Report (Continued)
RiE - HEREREE (A)
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The project department seriously
organizes self-inspection and
rectification work after receiving the
safety mspectlon notice

The inspection team conducts
on-site inspections, summarizes
on-site safety issues, and submits
inspection reports in a timely

%

ZRIRERIRMIE
Closed-loop safety inspection process

Annual Report 2019 £%# 185

3)




(C

186 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

At the same time, the Group is also highly
concerned about the possible negative
impact of extreme weather caused by climate
changes on project safety. Therefore, the
Group has formulated the Special Weather
Safe Production Management System, which
prohibits construction operations under extreme
weather conditions such as gales, heavy snow,
earthquakes, extreme cold and scorching heat,
thereby ensuring construction safety and project
quality. Meanwhile, we also actively carry out
natural disaster prevention work and strengthen
emergency and precaution management to
ensure that 24-hour emergency rescue work can
be carried out during extreme weather to avoid
personal injury and property damage.

Forstering a safety culture

The Group carries out its standardized safety
education management work in accordance
with its “Safety Education Training Management
System” to improve the quality of safe production
for all employees and prevent the happening
of security incidents. During the reporting
period, 380 training sessions on safety and
quality education were conducted, with a total
attendance of 6,500 persons.

In order to make safety education and training
more pertinent and practical and to ensure the
effectiveness of training, we have designed
the following trainings which are pertinent for
employees in different positions:

- Trainings are provided for administrative
managers and project managers on
relevant policies and regulations, as well
as basic management and technical
know-hows. As such, the management
personnel’s understanding on work
safety can be enhanced and the basic
safe production technology and security
management methods can be mastered,
thus providing sound conditions for safe
production.

FEEFRAE (ER) BRAF
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Trainings and education are provided for
safe production management personnel
on specialized laws and regulations,
policies and standards, safe production
management, technology, accident
prevention, work-related injury and
occupational disease management and
safety culture etc., thus improving the
safety management level of professionals
in all aspects.

Safety trainings are conducted in daily
work through various forms such as
three-level education, special operations
and regular education for lower-level
employees. Meanwhile, the project
department will take advantage of the
opportunities of regular and special
inspections to carry out themed
trainings on occupational health and
safe production education for front-line
employees in order to strengthen their
safety awareness and ability.

ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)
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ESG Report (Continued)
RiE - HERERRE ()

In order to further improve the safe production
quality of all employees, the Group has also
actively organized publicity and education
activities such as the Safe Production Month,
so as to firmly establish the concept of safe
production and enhance employees’ awareness.
Meanwhile, we have also carried out a number
of special emergency drills and on-site disposal
exercises for various types of emergencies such
as disasters, poisoning and electric shock, so
as to improve employees’ ability to respond to
emergencies.

AR REFEHESRIRIRR

Organizing emergency response drills

Protecting occupational health

The Group always prioritizes the health and
safety of employees and continues to optimize
occupational health management. Based on its
Occupational Health and Safety Management
System, the Group provides employees with
multi-dimensional safeguarding to create a safe,
secure and healthy working environment. The
main measures carried out during the reporting
period include:

- A third party agency was hired to carry
out regular inspections of occupational
disease hazards at production sites with
warning signs posted.

- mE

FEEFRAE (ER) BRAF
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Industry experts were invited to carry out
occupational health training, and external
and internal occupational health and
safety trainings are organized on a regular
basis, enhancing the ability of employees
to prevent occupational diseases.

Occupational health checkups are
organized for all employees every year
to keep employees informed of their own
health and prevent occupational diseases.

Three-level education is provided for
every on-site personnel, and the Notice of
Occupational Hazards in Labor Contracts
are issued to employees, ensuring that
employees are aware of the occupational
hazards and preventive measures specific
to their posts.

The Management System for Labor
Protective Articles and Safety Tools has
been developed and implemented, in
order to equip employees with qualified
and effective labor protective articles and
ensure that employees use occupational
disease protective equipment and
personal protective articles correctly.

We advocate the concept of “work happily
and live healthily” and organize health
knowledge seminars and various cultural
and recreational activities to promote
a healthy lifestyle and help employees
establish an optimistic and positive
attitude.

We have upgraded the accident insurance
products for on-site project employees,
increased the compensation amount
of employer liability insurance and
strengthened the coverage of protection,
such that employees’ interests are better
safeguarded.

ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

3.3 Providing quality service

The Group is committed to providing quality services
that satisfy customers. We provide multi-dimensional
guarantee measures for the operation and maintenance
of projects. Meanwhile, we actively carry out two-
way communication and exchange activities with
customers, timely improve our service level based on

3.3 RHEERK

customers’ feedback, and protect customers’ interests

from damage, so as to build sustainable win-win and

mutually beneficial relationships with customers.

190 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

Comprehensive O&M guarantee

The Group has established a reliable
operation guarantee mechanism, to ensure the
normal operation of facilities and equipment
in compliance with standards during the
period of providing operation services and
routine maintenance services for customers’
desulfurization, denitrification and dust removal
facilities. During the reporting period, the
Group’s O&M business center was awarded
the title of “2019 Pioneer Workers of Beijing
City”. The discharges from the desulfurization,
denitrification or dust removal facilities and
equipment that the Group is responsible for
maintaining and operating are all in compliance
with relevant standards. The O&M guarantee
measures carried out during the reporting period
include:

- In terms of team building, the project
manager is the main responsible
person in each project department. The
management team includes dedicated
management personnel in various fields
such as security, operation, inspection and
repair, materials, finance and logistics,
etc., and carry out management work in
collaboration with each other with each
person assuming their own responsibility.

FEEFRAE (ER) BRAF
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In terms of standardized management,
we have formulated detailed rules
and regulations covering all aspects
of operation procedures, equipment
management, operation management,
recording, inspection and repair and
emergency response, which effectively
ensure the normal operation of the system.

In terms of inspection and maintenance,
we have deployed various professionals
on the specific fields of maintenance,
electricity and thermal control, etc. for
each project team, and carry out 24-
hour inspection and maintenance on the
operating system to ensure the normal
operation of the equipment.

In terms of material management, each
project has in place a material database
and a material procurement team, so that
spare parts and required materials can be
provided for the site at any time according
to planning and production needs.

At the same time, the back office provides
labor, financial and material support and
the services of technical transformation
and analysis of difficult problems for the
operation of each project through the inter-
departmental collaboration mechanism.

ESG Report (Continued)
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

Listening to customers’ feedback

In order to provide customers with better
services, the Group has established a customer
communication and feedback mechanism,
requiring the Company’s senior officers should
visit the owner when inspection and guidance
work are being conducted for the project, and
carry out technical exchanges with the owner,
listen to the owner’s comments and requirements
and formulate corresponding improvement
measures based on the comments and
suggestions put forward by the owner.

In order to better understand the needs and
feedbacks of customers, the Group has
formulated the Owner Satisfactory Survey
Form, which seeks satisfaction evaluations from
owners of various O&M projects every quarter.
According to the evaluation opinions given by the
owners, the Company sorts and summarizes the
comments and suggestions for improvements,
and organizes relevant departments to study
seriously and formulate corresponding solutions
and specific measures for the relevant project
team to undertake rectification.
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Average score of the relevant project
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Safeguarding customers’ rights

The Group strictly abides by national laws and
regulations such as the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Protecting Consumers’
Rights and Interests (F#EARKMBIEEE DS
R+%) to protect customers’ business secrets.
Pursuant to the Company’s “Professional Code”,
all employees are obliged to keep company-
related information confidential, including
information in relation to the Company’s assets,
products and customers. No information related
to the Company may be disclosed to third
parties without the Company’s authorization.
In addition, the Group requires all employees
to sign a confidentiality agreement at the
same time of entering into the labor contract,
which provides explicit regulations on keeping
business secrets and requires employees not
to disclose customers’ business secrets to
unrelated or sensitive third parties. In case
of divulging customers’ business secrets, the
related employee will be punished by demotion,
relegation or dismissal in accordance with the
Management Regulations for Administrative
Penalties of the Company, depending on the
severity of the circumstances.

ESG Report (Continued)
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

4.1
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PRACTICING RESPONSIBLE OPERATION AND
BUILDING A HARMONIOUS SOCIETY

Integrity and compliance

The code of conduct of the Group applies to every
employee and is to ensure that the business of the
Group is in compliance with the prevailing laws and
regulations. To enhance combating corruption and
upholding integrity, and to conduct anti-corruption
work in a practical and effective way, the Group strictly
abides by relevant national laws and regulations on
anti-corruption and anti-bribery, such as the Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China (F%E ARILA
Bl‘AR)%) and the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the
People’s Republic of China (FF#E ARKEMBEEER).
The Group has formulated a number of internal rules
and regulations, such as the Management Regulations
for Administrative Penalties of the Company, the Internal
Control Guidelines, the Internal Audit Guidelines and
Administrative Measures on Anti-Money Laundering
(Trial), and established an anti-corruption system
covering early prevention, monitoring process of
corruption incidents, and post-incident evaluation and
handling.

During the reporting period, the Group did not have
any cases of commercial bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

. In compliance with professional norms

The Group requires each employee to abide by
the China Bogi Professional Code, which covers
topics such as anti-corruption, anti-bribery,
conflict of interest handling, data confidentiality
and security. In addition, the Group and the
employees from the procurement department
have entered into the Officer Professional
and Ethics Agreement, which outlines the
requirements for employees in the Group’s
working system, professional industry standards
and integrity and self-discipline, and prohibits
any form of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

4.1
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4.2

o Effective whistle-blowing channels

The Group has a competent department
in charge of handling reports on bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, which
also investigates related disciplinary issues
and gives handling advice. The Group has
also set up an email for whistle-blowing and
lodging complaints for all employees and the
public to report possible wrongful conducts and
integrity issues. Privacy of all informers is strictly
confidential such that no retaliation would be
resulted from such reporting. After receiving the
reported information, the competent department
shall immediately verify the relevant information
and conduct investigations or special audits
as appropriate. Any cases identified involving
corruption will be handled according to relevant
regulations.

Growing with employees

The Group adheres to the principle of “nurturing talents”
and upholds the principle of equal employment. We
protect the basic rights and interests of employees,
help employees to develop their careers, care about
their lives and strive to benefit all employees from the
development results of the Company, so as to achieve
harmonious progress and mutual development between
the Company and its employees.

4.2
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

o Equal employment o

The Group fully complies with national laws and
regulations such as the Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China (1 #E AR ZEFEI & E))%) and the
Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China (F#EARKEMEILH)A F)E) and provides
equal employment opportunities. The Group has
formulated and implemented the Regulations on
Recruitment and Employment Management and
set up legal and compliant recruitment conditions
based on the principles of fairness, impartiality
and openness to recruit talents through various
channels. The qualifications of professionals are
evaluated in the aspect of compliance, attitude,

FEER

AEBE2EET(RFEARKEMER
BE)E) (PEARILMEL
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performance and ability, and discrimination [ o
arising from race, gender, marital status, religious
beliefs and other factors is strictly prohibited. As
of the end of 2019, the Group had a total of 1,950
employees, all of whom are located in Mainland
China.
2019
20195 E
Number of
employee Percentage
Indicator BE AE” Bot
Total number of employee BIHAY 1,950
By gender IR 5
Number of male employee SETAEKLH
and percentage 1,501 76.97%
Number of female employee S=NWN - §°3 4]
and percentage 449 23.03%
By age group EERED
Under (exclude) 30 years old 30 (&)L TFET 764 39.18%
30-40 years old 308% — 40 B T 671 34.41%
Over (exclude) 40 years old 405% (&) RAEBT 515 26.41%
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)

2019
20196 &
Number of
employee Percentage
Indicator BE AE” Bo
By departmental function EEMERE S
Concession operation AT EBRAR
management personnel 89 4.56%
Engineering and technical staff TREFIMAER 147 7.54%
Sales personnel HEAEB 19 0.97%
Research and development personnel MEAR 62 3.18%
Administrative personnel THEBAER 31 1.59%
Production personnel KEAB 1,602 82.15%
o Safeguarding employees’ rights RES T##zm

The Group is committed to fostering a
harmonious labor relationship by fully respecting
employees’ demands, safeguarding their
legitimate rights and protecting their vital
interests. We pursue a democratic management
approach and have established a labor
union within the Company. Besides, we have
also established a mechanism for the open
discussion of corporate affairs, a mechanism for
employee congress and a mechanism for the
communication between employees and directors
or supervisors, thus forming a smooth channel
for employees’ communication and feedback
and safeguarding their rights of expression and
participation.
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

The Group strictly complies with the Labor Law of
the People’s Republic of China (FFZE AR HLFE
25)5%) and other relevant regulations of places
where the Group operates, so as to establish
legal and reasonable standards on working
hours, holidays and salaries and to provide
employees with social security for the protection
of their basis rights and interests. The main

measures include:

198 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

Since the date of employment, a labor
relationship is established with employees
by entering into a written labor contract,
which specifies the terms such as the
contract period, job specifications and
working hours, labor protection and labor
conditions, remuneration, social insurance
and welfare benefits.

Reasonable working hours are arranged.
For overtime work, overtime wages are
paid to employees according to national
regulations.

The premiums of social insurance,
accidental commercial insurance and
supplementary medical insurance are paid
for employees on time.

Paid annual leave is provided according
to the length of service and age of
the employee. Female employees
enjoy maternity and lactation leave in
accordance with law and male employees
are also given legal paternity leave.
Employees can also enjoy sick leave,
personal leave and medical treatment
leave according to law for their further
reassurance.

A comprehensive salary system of
“basic salary + bonus + allowance”
has been established and a flexible
performance assessment mechanism has
been implemented, pursuant to which
employees’ salaries can be paid in full and
on time.
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Prohibiting child labor and forced labor

The Group complies with the Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China (FFZE A R ANE 4
7%) and Prohibition of Child Labor Provisions (Z£
IHEAZETHRE) and opposes any form of forced
labor. We verify the identity of employees at the
time of signing labor contracts with employees,
which prevents the use of child labor, forced
labor and other illegal employment. In addition,
the Group has formulated job responsibilities
for each position, so that employees can well
aware of and accept their job specifications and
requirements before reporting to work. During the
reporting period, the Group did not violate any
regulations regarding the use of child labor and
forced labor, nor did it encounter any litigations
due to employment issues.

Employee training and development

The Group adheres to the principle of “on-
demand training and serving the practical
purpose”, and systematically conducts personnel
training in accordance with its own Training
Management Regulations. It has established
a comprehensive employee training system
and created a suitable environment for the
development of talents. In response to the
different learning needs of different employees,
the Group has established a multi-dimensional
curriculum system, including induction training
for new employees, management skill training,
professional technical training, marketing skill
training and on-job education specific to the
posts of employees. By hiring external experts,
assigning personnel to participate in external
training and providing diversified training
methods such as online learning, the Group
has enhanced the effectiveness of training and
helped employees to develop their careers.

ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)

HEETRESET

AEBEET(PEARANESL B
B RCBELEERETRE) kY
EAFEARRH 5SS ERHETHR
RSB ERNARZEEIS D
BRI GRET - ahl58 R EMmIE
ERTIRE - I AEEREE
RALHIET TRMEE - BT 2
AR TR ES M E R B R
o WEHA AEERBELEER
BETRBHETEFRZRBER > K
EERRBRERBEBNFAEMS -

B TEHERRE

AEBERE [RHEI - 2A5H]
MRA - RIEE & GEIIEERE)
AGMERRATEETE  BET
TENBTHIRR  REBRAS
BREGEANRE - HYTRE
TEERLENBERR  AEERY
TEREHE T ARSI - BEREE
Bl BREAMIFI - mIHE HEK
RRBIAREUEEREERES
EANZERERIZER - BIBE
AINEPERK ~ fBIRA B2 NSNS
Al REER EEEFZITEINT
X DERSHIGR  WHET
BEEE-

Annual Report 2019 3% 199



200 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

In addition to providing intensive training, the
Group also provides employees with other
opportunities which can facilitate their career
development, thus establishing a comprehensive
development system for employees to help
them complete their career development plans.
We provide promotion opportunities according
to employees’ position alignment, and have
formulated and implemented the Promotion
Evaluation Administrative Measures for various
positions such as design and R&D personnel
and project managers, so as to provide
employees with clear and equal opportunities for
development and promotion. We also implement
a rotation system for middle-level and senior
managers to build a highly comprehensive
management talent team.

The Group has also established a scientific
appraisal and incentive mechanism to
continuously stimulate the personal potential
of employees. Based on the performance
appraisal system and combined with the annual
business development objectives of the Group,
we set up business management appraisal
indicators to help employees improve their work
efficiency and motivate employees to develop
their careers aggressively. Meanwhile, we have
also implemented equity incentive policies for
the Company’s senior management and key
employees to further stimulate the initiative of
core talents and promote business innovation and
management optimization, as well as promote the
realization of personal value and the long-term
development of the enterprise.
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AEETA

Caring for employees

The Group attaches great importance to humane
care and care much about the quality of life of
employees, so that we encourage employees
to enjoy life on the premise of balanced work.
During the reporting period, a number of
employee care activities were carried out in the
following various forms:

He

Birthday parties

for employees

B RBEAR

PERLEE

- BT

A badminton tournament

was hosted in the summer

We have established a sports club and regularly
organize various sports activities. During the
reporting period, 28 badminton events, 9 football
events and 26 song and dance events were
organized. While enhancing the physical fitness
of employees, the events also created a good
corporate culture atmosphere in a subtle way.

We have organised festival and birthday
celebrations to create a relaxed and gaily
atmosphere at holiday or birthdays. We also
arrange a wide range of activities such as
cake sharing or birthday parties to enhance
employees’ happiness.

We care for female employees and give them
special benefits for Women’s Day.
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RIE - HERERERE (B)

4.3

202 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

Improving supplier management

Reliable and excellent suppliers are important
safeguards for the construction of quality projects of
the Group. We continue to improve the management
of suppliers and constantly improve the management
system covering the entire process of supplier
admission, selection and qualification management.
While ensuring the smooth operation of projects, we
avoid environmental and social risks involved and
promote the positive progress of the supply chain.

Supplier admission and selection

The Group has established a comprehensive
management system for the admission, tender
and procurement of suppliers, and formulated
and implemented the Regulations for the
Management of Qualified Suppliers, setting
stringent regulations for a range of admission
standards such as suppliers’ business
conditions, quality management, environmental
management, occupational health management,
safe production qualification status, industry
performance, market conditions, financial
situation, technical standards and production
and operation status. Meanwhile, according to
the operating characteristics of different projects
and the features of purchased products and
services, we formulated and implemented a
number of supplier tender and procurement
management systems such as the Provisions
for the Management of Engineering Equipment/
Material Procurement, the Project Tender
Management System and the O&M Tender
Management System. Based on the systems, we
clarify the responsibilities and the delineation of
duties of each department in the procurement
of equipment and ensure that the products we
purchased comply with the requirements of
the contracts, national or industry mandatory
standards, regulations and specifications.
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On the basis of complying with the unified system
and procedure of tender and procurement, we
also incorporate the special needs of customers
and projects into the supplier selection process.
For instance, for certain overseas projects that
need to satisfy local special standards (e.g. EU
standards), we clearly set relevant standards as
supplier admission requirements in the tender
documents, and strictly review the relevant
performance and qualifications of suppliers to
ensure that all of the customers’ needs are met
throughout the operation of the projects.

Qualified supplier management

The Group has established a standardized
supplier evaluation mechanism in accordance
with the requirements of its Provisions for
Qualified Supplier Management. We also
continue to focus on all aspects of management
and practical performance of suppliers by
conducting quarterly and annual evaluations.

During the quarterly and annual evaluation
process of the suppliers, we use the
Supplier’'s Quarterly Evaluation Form and the
Supplier’'s Annual Evaluation Form to conduct
a comprehensive evaluation and appraisal
on a wide range of factors reflected in their
daily operations such as contract performance
capabilities, after-sales services, product and
project quality, construction quality, production
safety, environmental issues, technical
capabilities, integrity, honesty and violations
of laws and regulations. According to the final
score, we classify the suppliers into major
suppliers that have better performance and
are worth long-term cooperation, suppliers
to be alerted that need to be used with
caution in the daily procurement process, and
unqualified suppliers that need to be excluded
from the admission list. As such, the dynamic
management and continuous optimization of the
supplier base can be realized. Meanwhile, in
response to the inadequacy and shortcomings of
suppliers found in the evaluation and appraisal,
we understand and monitor the rectification
of related issues through relevant business
departments, and encourage each supplier to
improve continuously.
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

In 2019, the management data of the Group’s suppliers are as

2019 % - AKEHEREERE

follows: AR
Indicators Unit 2019
EREW B 20195 E
Total number of suppliers Number 463
HER AR 1&
Number of suppliers in the Mainland China, Number 447
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
EL AR AR B KR R R A b [ 1 FE R X 18
Number of overseas suppliers Number 16
HepgoMp izt EE 1&
Number of suppliers where the related practices Number 463
are being implemented
WITRBIENHEREE 1&
Annual evaluation ratio of suppliers where the related % 100%
practices are being implemented
A ERMITE BB FEFEER %
. Building a responsible supply chain BREETHEE

The Group attaches great importance to the
environmental and social performance of
suppliers, and incorporates such performance
into the evaluation and appraisal process of each
stage including supplier admission, qualified
supplier management and supplier exit, thereby
avoiding environmental and social risks in the
supply chain. The main management initiatives
undertaken include:

- In the pre-qualification stage, any
inadequacy in the security management
and corporate legal credibility of suppliers
will render their exit.

- In the scoring stage of admission review,
the certification of the quality management
system, environmental management
system and occupational health and safety
system is taken as a requisite condition for
admission.

204 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. HEEFRE (ER) BRAF
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4.4

- In the annual appraisal of qualified
suppliers, the safety management,
environmental management and quality
management of suppliers reflected in the
execution process of contracts are taken
as necessary indicators for scoring.

- With respect to the decommission of
suppliers, it is explicitly required that
suppliers who violate the Group’s “Integrity
Provisions” shall be exited from the list
of qualified suppliers and will never be
engaged in the future.

While strengthening risk management, we
proactively select products that are more
environmentally friendly and energy-efficient
and actively exercise green procurement. At
present, all the high-voltage motors purchased
by the Group comply with the “Secondary
Energy Efficiency IE3” standard in the national
standard “Minimum allowable values of energy
efficiency and energy efficiency grades for small
and medium three-phase asynchronous motors”
(FNBE=ZHELSEHREARTERERFR
(GB18613-2012), thereby reducing the energy
consumed in equipment operation.

Public welfare campaigns

The Group strives to bring positive changes to
the society through its own initiatives by actively
participating in public welfare activities in its operating
areas and understanding the development needs of
the community. We extend the theme of environmental
protection from our own business to social welfare
activities. By calling on employees to actively
participate in environmental protection activities such as
tree planting, cycling and garbage sorting, we spread
the concept of environmental protection to the public
and strive to enhance the environmental protection
awareness of the entire society in order to build a green
world together.

4.4
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

Case study: Volunteers take on the mission to safeguard the water quality and protect the beautiful river
bank
Rl XEEREGEAR—TIKTERZIFER

In July 2019, a number of employees from the Group’s Jingjiang O&M project department volunteered to
participate in the civilized and voluntary service activity of “Caring for China’s Mother River, the Yangtze, and
Protecting the Beautiful River Bank”. The volunteers walked for 1.3 kilometers along the Yangtze River and
cleaned up all kinds of garbage such as grasses, plastic bags, glass bottles, cans, etc., washed up by the river
along the tide, and sorted the garbage according to environmental protection requirements. During the event,
the volunteers cleaned up more than 200 kilograms of garbage and floating objects on the river bank and
guarded the beautiful Yangtze river bank with practical actions.

201957 R AEBERBEENLREITMELET [HERISHN - FESKFTIER] A X AER SRR
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)

Case study: Practicing social responsibility by planting tree for the public interest

RO BOHEEME - AEEHEK

In April 2019, the Group organized employees to visit Taiyang Village, Shunyi, Beijing in their spare time, and
carried out a caring and voluntary tree planting activity with the theme of “Practicing Social Responsibility by
Planting Trees for the Public Interest”. While promoting employees’ environmental awareness, we disseminate
the concept of green development to the public.
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

ESG INDICATORS INDEX ESGEZE I
Aspect Contents Locations of Disclosure
=] RE HENE

A1 Emissions

A1 BRI

General Disclosure 167-169
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

—RRHER

EHBERRAEREHN - KR T HEEES - BERBEEZEYH
EESH

(a) HE: Rk

(b) BTHETABERTENHBWEEMRIINER -

Notes: @Air emissions include NOx, SOx and other pollutants regulated

under national laws and regulations.

@Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride.

(@ Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

B ORTHNEEAELY  GACOREM R FEREORES
52y -

CRERBEE_EILK Tl SR GRBKIEEY &I
MR ANBAEH

OF EEEMIEEIZ R OITRES
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)

Aspect Contents Locations of Disclosure
4] AE WENE
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 170
A1 ABERU R R R AR R HE IR B -
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where 170
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
A 2RERBAESNE (AHEE) k (WER) B8 (MAEEEE
i ~ BIEFZBEFHE) o
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 170
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
AMIFMEAEEEEYEE (UEAE) k (WER) BE (WAgE
B8 FHEZRETHE) -
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, 170
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).
AMAFTEAREREEYEE (WEAE) K (NER) BE (WAgE
EEf - BERMEHE) ©
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results  168-169
achieved.
A1 SHEIURME HE I E B BB S PR SBCR -
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes 169

are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
AMOHMBREBERBEREMN AL  RIEELXENRBEME
KR o
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

Aspect
4]

Contents
R

Locations of Disclosure
WENE

A2 Use
of Resources
A2E R{E A

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

—MRAREE

BERERER (B8R - KREMEME) AIBUR

Note: Resources may be used in production, storage, transportation,
buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

i BRTARLE - (7 B BF  EFRET -

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000) and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

A RBERIBI DM ERER /SEERR (W8 - |goh) BFEE (A
FEFERE) REE (WATGESEMN - BIERETE)

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
A22BFKERTE (MABESEN - BHERBAHE) -

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

A2 3t BE IR 6 A A 5 8 P SRCR -

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
A2 A%t SRERE AR LRI A E A BRE - SRR T Ak amat 8l
FRGAR -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

A2 5B TR BEM B NAE (AEFE) X (ER) BLEESE

fifh& -
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)

Aspect Contents Locations of Disclosure
=] RE HENE
A3 The General Disclosure 159-162 ~ 177
Environment Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the
and Natural environment and natural resources.
Resources —RHE
A3RIE BIRBITABRIRRRARERERNERLEHBE -
RAEIR
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the  159-163 ~ 177
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
AR EBEBHRERRAERNEAZERCHKREREH
FENTH -
B1 Employment General Disclosure 195-198
B1{E(® Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
— MR
ERFTMERE BERES  IERE RE - TEHE - 2T
£~ RIRARIA R EAMFE KR
(a) B3R : &
(b) BTFHETABEAZENHBEZLROINER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group  196-197

and geographical region.

B1.1#R1ER - BIBEE - FicER R E D HEEAE -
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

Aspect
4]

Contents
R

Locations of Disclosure
WENE

B2 Health and
Safety
B2 f@FiL e

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

—MRIKEE

BERAREZ2THERRERREREREBEBELEEM

(a) B Ko

(b) BEBIFHBETABERZENHBERNBRONER -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

B2. 16 THERBIMATISE M A B K -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
B2 2ATBHEATIERE -

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
B2 3 M FTER ANV B S iR FR B e 2 FE i - DA RIBRARIT REER 0% ©
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)

Aspect Contents Locations of Disclosure
4] AE WENE
B3 Development General Disclosure 199-200

and Training
B3R K157

B4 Labor
Standards
B44 TR

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

— R

BRRTEE BT TERE N AMB LR - HlFIEs -

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and
external training programs paid by the employer.

it IEIEBEIE - A EEHET VBN EIRIE o

General Disclosure 199

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labor.

—MHE
BRI IEETSRHIL T
(a) HE: Rk

(b) BTHETABERFENRBWEENRIINER -

Annual Report 2019 3 213

%))



—

ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

Aspect Contents Locations of Disclosure
4] AE WENE

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to 199
avoid child and forced labor.
B4. 1t i st IS B HI A e AR R E T RGRH| S5 T o

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when  No violation in the

violation is discovered. reporting period

B4.2fi i e 3 IR 32 MR B LI HRR A B BT ERER Y 2258 - WMEBMANREEERBER
B5 Supply Chain General Disclosure 202-205
Management Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
Boft e B2 the supply chain.

—MRIKEE

ERHERNRE LT SREBREE -

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 204
B5. 11 [ & H ) E R 2L A -

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 202-205
number of suppliers where the practices are being implemented,

how they are implemented and monitored.

Bo2ft il B A EEMIEN > MERTAEAENNHERH

B ARBBABHRITRERFE -

B6 Product General Disclosure 177-178 ~ 193
Responsibility Information on:
B6EmA T (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services provided and methods

of redress.

—AR IR EE

EEMERERNEFENRERELZS  ES  SREALBEEEUARME
WITER -

(a) BER: K&

(b) BTHBETABEATENMERZEIZMEMNER -
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Aspect
4]

ESG Report (Continued)
RIE HERERERE (H)

Contents
R

Locations of Disclosure
WENE

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
B6.1IEEH R EXERBAHTRL T HEREAMARKN B °

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

B6.2ZR BN E fn MRS IR B AR EE TE

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
B6. 3%t B 4 & N AR Z A BE R VB -

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
B6. 44 & 2 1% F 812 M E qn B AR FF -

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

B6.5HMHEEEHRERALBEE - WREBERITRERAE -
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192

166

178-179

193
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ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERERE (B)

Aspect Contents Locations of Disclosure
4] AE WENE

B7 Anti- General Disclosure 194

corruption Information on:

B7TRES (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— MR EE
BRI - 1R - MEERERER ¢
(a) BR: &

(b) BTHETABERTENHBEENROIINER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 194
practices brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

B7 1RERMAHETAREEERL YV EENESHARMED

A RFRER -

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing  194-195
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

B7 2 abh & A i SR BRIE S - U RABBIT RERTTE -

B8 Community General Disclosure 205
Investment Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
B8tt@mi% & of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its

activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
—MRAREE

ERUMELRHER TREEMTMETENRREERTDSE BT
[ A EE BV BUR ©

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental  205-207
concerns, labor needs, health, culture, sport).
B 1H FERERE (HE  REEE  BIHF R BE - 8

B)e
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA BOQI ENVIRONMENTAL (HOLDING) CO., LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 222 to 376 which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current period. This matter was addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZRBERE

?E

JGA
FHEETRR (ER) BARARAKRK

(RAEESFHEZMA LA BERLA)

=R

RIMIE B F 2225376 B A&l BB HIRMR (35
%) BR AR ([EAR]) REHB AR (578
[BEEE ) 2iREMBHRE - BIER2019F12A4
SIBZEEAUBRAREEEZBILEFEZLEE
BEkHEMEEKRER SRARIEHRIEE
RERBRURGEMERRWNE  HFBEEE
BEHHEME -

BMRE  BEAEVERRCERER LR
Bg (BB EAEZEg]) BHNBEKRGE
HEER ((BHBRFBREEL ) BEEAFbR
B SHEER2019F12A318 2548 MR R
IEEREBEZHLFEZEAVBRRERELR
ERERE  WEEBEBSQLMEAIZHERTE

EREX

BACRRELEGFINAE (ARG
B BEERBCER ([FE LR ) £1TE
ZIAE - PR DA M BT B E# — P
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) (T s7RI) BYRX BE&5E - YEREZT
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B MAERUEFFEREFERER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYREEMRE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREEZER

REEXEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANESFTNAEERRELSER

Revenue from construction contracts
EEA N

We identified the revenue from construction contracts
as a key audit matter due to the fact that the amount
recognised is significant in the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting treatments of which
require significant estimations made by the directors
of the Company (“Directors”).

The Group’s revenue from construction contracts is
recognised over time based on the stage of completion
of the contract, which is determined as the proportion
of the costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs to complete the contract.

The Directors estimate both of the profit margin and
contract cost at the beginning for each contract, revise
the estimation of both profit margin and contract cost
through regular review when the Directors consider
there are changes in the assumptions throughout the
contract period.

Details of the related key estimation uncertainty are set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

AR ERTRHZEFAMBRRFEEAN - AEEHE
BRrAYk BRARES ([E%F)) WERGHE
HRAKRES RSB SBERBESZFE -

BEREZESNRETIRIBE N TKBERER  MaH
SER B B FTE £ MR (R SEA & KRV ST AR AR Y L I
EE -
EFEMRHESRONENR RS ORAELER - £#E
ERAHEBEAVENRRBEEZE - BETHRE K
EFTBBEEN R RAE QR EE -

R B TREEFBHNGRE M HERERMTS -
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Qur procedures in relation to revenue from
construction contracts included:

° Evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of controls relevant to our audit
on budget preparation and revenue recognition
of construction contracts;

° Recalculating the proportion of the costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs to
complete the contracts on a sample basis;

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions adopted by the Directors in
determining the profit margin and total contract
costs, cross checking to the corresponding
construction contracts and the respective
budgets;

° Performing tests of details relating to
construction costs incurred during the year
by tracing to supporting documentation on a
sample basis; and

° Visiting selected construction sites on a
sample basis to observe the existence of
the construction work and interviewing the
site project managers for the progress of the
construction work.

BASHERESHRERTHEZREFBRE

o HHRRSOBERELNEERNFZHBNE
B2 RET RE R REITAE ¢

o RWMEREEEMFEMELNKANETKRE NG
AT A Z LB

s HMEEZENEESMOMNBRESNMABERBNE
ERRIEEMNE INREHERZETRERIAH

BE

o MREEBMEAXMT  BABEFAELNEE
AR AREETTAR - R

o HEREREIEL  UBRBETEMNGFE  LH
THIBERKEMNWmEETRENER -

FEEFRAE (ER) BRAF



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

BAZBERE (&)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYZEAEHRE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Chung Chin Cheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 April 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SmEBRERAEMEEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F12A31HILFE
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR¥T T ARBT T
Revenue & & 1,836,496 1,744,998
Cost of sales and services $HE M AR TR AR (1,529,974) (1,427,140)
Gross profit EF 306,522 317,858
Other income and expense and Ha U A RS A&
other gains and losses E s A a 6 25,436 117,456
Selling and distribution expenses HE RN HERAY (29,295) (26,170)
Administrative expenses THAX (88,776) (98,485)
Research and development expenses g (24,256) (10,618)
Allowance of impairment losses on ERHEENANEE
financial assets and contract assets BRE BB R E 7 (10,928) (3,816)
Share of profit of associates DR E N E) i A 18 34,541 27,963
Finance costs BATGR AR 8 (4,177) (5,900)
Change in fair value of convertible Al AT 2
ordinary shares NREEE 33 - 133,541
Listing expenses X - (3,319)
Profit before tax R 5 A& A 209,067 448,510
Income tax expense FRS T 2 9 (26,453) (55,691)
Profit for the year F A& 10 182,614 392,819
Other comprehensive (expense) FAREMEE (X)) W
income for the year:
Items that will not be reclassified TEEFFEE
to profit or loss: Bama)EE :
Fair value losses on investments in WA EEFTAHAM
equity instrument at fair ZHKREMBRATA
value through other WENARBEBE
comprehensive income (2,374) (5,460)
Income tax relating to investments in BEZARBETAEM
equity instrument at fair value 2EWEHRATA
through other comprehensive income KERTERH 171 819
(2,203) (4,641)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2HE Iz 4E5E 180,411 388,178
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

REBRERAEMEEEER (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

miE ARBTR ARETT

Profit for the year attributable to: AT (R F T
Owners of the Company RAREAR A 182,537 394,359
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR M = 77 (1,540)
182,614 392,819
Total comprehensive income for AT (R F R
the year attributable to: ZHK @A
Owners of the Company RAREAR A 180,334 389,718
Non-controlling interests FIEPE 77 (1,540)
180,411 388,178
Earnings per share BR&AF
- Basic (RMB) —HER (ARH) 12 0.18 0.44
— Diluted (RMB) — 88 (AR®) 12 0.18 0.27
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M EHIRR R

At 31 December 2019
2019128318

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt ARET T ARBT T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB M ERE 14 377,753 88,330
Investment properties KEYE 15 11,714 12,348
Intangible assets A E 16 774,068 543,824
Receivables under service Pl 75 4 BF A & 2o
concession arrangement I T B9 FE R IR 17 356,429 367,029
Investment in associates REEE QT HIRE 18 82,887 69,537
Equity instrument at fair value through 122 EEEH A A
other comprehensive income EHKEHRATEA 19 - 3,540
Amounts due from related parties FE Y 8 5 5008 39 138,496 143,287
Deferred tax assets BELEFIREE 21 33,061 25,121
1,774,408 1,253,016
Current assets RENEE
Receivables under service AR SRR AS & 2 Bk
concession arrangement IE TRy FEURIR 17 20,201 12,526
Debt instruments at fair value through AR EETAHM
other comprehensive income FHNENERTE 20 197,933 70,205
Inventories FE 22 28,915 37,841
Equity instrument at fair value through 322 R BEETA
profit or loss BERATE 45,693 -
Contract assets BHEE 23 346,602 204,289
Trade receivables B 5 W KRIE 24 590,931 779,070
Prepayments, deposits and other TANFIE - Bk
receivables H fth e Y FRIE 26 185,093 123,190
Amounts due from related parties FEUR B8 5 A 39 223,589 181,520
Pledged bank deposits EEBIRITIFK 27 133,181 88,113
Bank balances and cash RITEBR NI 28 450,506 780,480
2,222,644 2,277,234
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

mEmBIRRR ()

At 31 December 2019
2019128318

2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
orza AR¥ET T ARETIT
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and notes payables B 5 A FE R EN R 29 1,021,730 885,535
Other payables, deposits received HippeftziE - SWiRS
and accrued expenses RIEREX 30 434,657 233,683
Contract liabilities AHEE 23 102,390 115,651
Income tax payable JEBRFTISFA 25,495 24,805
Borrowings =g 31 107,468 53,483
Lease liabilities HEakE 32 8,892 =
Amounts due to related parties FETREE 5 A 39 11,209 23,901
1,711,841 1,337,058
Net current assets MENEEFE 510,803 940,176
Total assets less current liabilities BEMABRREEE 2,285,211 2,193,192
Non-current liabilities FknBERE
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEEE 21 10,873 8,018
Borrowings =N 31 - 12,000
Lease liabilities HERRE 32 180 =
11,053 20,018
Net assets BEFE 2,274,158 2,173,174
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

mEMBIRRR (&)

At 31 December 2019
20194128318

2019 2018
20194 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR®T T ARETT
Capital and reserves B #EE

Share capital %N 35 67 67
Reserves i 2,274,965 2,174,058

Equity attributable to owners KAEEE AEMLER
of the Company 2,275,032 2,174,125
Non-controlling interests JEFERR HE (874) (951)
2,274,158 2,173,174

The consolidated financial statements on pages 222 to 376

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 27 April 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhijun Zeng

DIRECTOR

226 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

Liquan Cheng
BE2
DIRECTOR
3
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERRBER

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F12A31HIEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARARR B
Statutory Investment Non-
Share Share  Treasury  Merger Other  surplus  Retained revaluation controlling Total
capital  premium  shares  reserve  reseve  reserve profits  reserve  Sub-ofal  interests equity
EERR REE(
Rx ROEEE ERRD AfEE ARk #h  REEH i Gt fERER  EREE
RMB000  RMB000  RMBOO0 RMB'000  RMB000  RMB0O0  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00O  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETI
(note i) (noteii) (note iii
(Riaki) (Wi (Wi
At 1 January 2018 1201851718 2 (175,26 (2) 371500 (128,167) 174593 497859 5605 746,158 589 746,747
Profit (loss) for the year QT (BB) - - - - - 304359 - 30439 (1540) 392819
Other comprehensive expense  EMEM2ERX -
for the year, net of tax TR = - - - - - - (4A) (4e4) - (dea)
Total comprehensive income  FAZENE
(expense] for the year (Rx) % = = 2 = = - 3435 (4641) 39718 (1540) 388,178
Transfer to statutory ELE N1
Surplus reserve - - - - - 0726 (30726) - - - -
Conversion of Class B and BERCEAELEAR
Class C convertiole ordinary ~~ EAZERK
Shares into ordinary (Hi#3)
shares (note 39) A 621,567 - - - - - - 621588 - 621588
Exercise of pre-IPO BRAREER
share awards Ry &R - 18946 1 = = = = - 18947 - 1894
Forfeiture of pre-IPO RRERDHEEN
share awards et - 74 - - - - - - 74 74
Repurchase of ordinary shares ~ BEEER = - (1799 - - - - - (1799 - (1799
Share-based payment MR BERAR Y, = = = = g - B 1Y)
Issue of new shares upon Lk ERnE
listing (note 35) (Hi35) 14390983 - - - - - - 390997 - 390997
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

RERER2FR (H)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LG N
Statutory Investment Non-
Share Share  Treasury  Merger Other  surplus Retained revaluation controlling
capital premium  shares  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  reserve Sub-ftotal interests
EERSR REEH
Bk ROEEE RERR AHEE HbEE i REEA i 0t FERER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTr ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARRTR ARBTr ARETR
(note i) (noteii) (note iii)
(Wati) (i) (K i)
At 31 December 2018 120185 12A31H 67 864750  (1,800) 371,500 (128,167) 205319 861,492 964 2,174,125 (951) 2,173,174
Profit for the year i - - - - - - 182597 - 182597 7 182614
Other comprehensive EREBLIARR -
expense for the year, ARHE
net of tax - - - - - - - (2203 (2,209 - (2209
Total comprehensive income M2 ENE
(expense) for the year (%) g8 - - - - - - 182537 (2.209) 180,334 180411
Transfer to statutory ERTITRRGE
surplus reserve - - - - - 8515 (38,515 - - - -
Profit appropriation BHAR - - - - - - (19766) - (19766) - (19,766)
Repurchase and cancellation B REFHERER
of ordinary shares (note 35)  (Ji1:535) - @) 1,799 - - - - - 29 - 979
Share-based payment DU OEE IR - 33T - - - - - X 1 X 1
Transfer to retained profits upon  RiHERA BE
disposal of equity instrument  SFAEM2 A
at fair value through other BRATAR
comprehensive income ERZRAGT - - - - - - (1,289 1,239 - - -
At 31 December 2019 120195124318 67 863,290 (1) 371500 (128,167) 243,834 924,509 - 2215032 (874) 2,274,158
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Notes:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

Other reserves mainly represent the distribution amounting
to RMB130,310,000 made to the shareholder in the form of
settlement of bank loan during the year ended 31 December
2016.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of all
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries are required to set aside 10%
of their profit after tax as per statutory financial statements
determined under the PRC laws and regulations for the
statutory surplus reserve fund until the reserve reach 50%
of their registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be
made before distributing dividends to equity owners of the
subsidiaries. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to
make up previous years’ losses, expand the existing operations

or convert into additional capital of the respective subsidiaries.

The Group did not have material non-controlling interests
during both years, and hence disclosure of material non-

controlling interests is not made.

Hiat -

(1)

(i)

(ifi)

REER2FR (H)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

HEMEEEAREE20164F12H31HIFEE
NEERITEHE R EIEH 2 AN RE
130,310,0007T 953K °

RIBRAENRLEFE ([FE]) K757 E N
BRFIMAS BRI - BN E 2 A B A
F TS AT RIE A B2 1 ROE KB RIR
G F10% B ZTERGEES  BER2HEE
EDHFMEARE0% o R IERE T 1182 7]
B BB AR A ZRERA  EEEMRE
EAARE BT FEERS  BEHE &
15 BRI B 2 A]AI BES) B A -

A [ (A SR 1 AR B A IR 1 s
I AEIEL BA TR A 575 -

At
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HMEBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31 B IEFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Change in fair value of convertible
ordinary shares
Share of profit of associates
Interest income
Profit from construction service under
concession operation
Depreciation of property
plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
Amortisation of intangible assets
Allowance for trade receivables
Allowance for other receivables
(Reversal of) allowance for contract assets
Allowance for amounts due from
related parties
Allowance for (reversal of) receivables
under service concession arrangement
Loss on disposal of property.
plant and equipment
Share-based payment
Loss on fair value changes of financial
asset at FVTPL
Foreign exchange gain

BEED
B AT
B

B A
TR A 4 EEE

£ (6 R EDEF
FEHA
W R B R R T

WE - BERRBTE

BREMEE

B A E

B 5 EUGRIA B

Ho{th W R IR B
BREE (BERE) &fE
& Y B s 77 SRR B

PRISASFHE E L HEA T
FEYRIA B R (B M)
HEWE - BERREEE

PABR 0 IR B R B 15 3K
BAREEFARGEHNERE
BEZARBEZHEIR
BEE 5 W s

2019
20194

RMB’000
ARBTFR

209,067

4,177

(34,541)
(32,900)

(4,439)

23,314
634
54,358
4,882
1,423
(3,003)

7,427

199

140
3,317

(2,401)
(1,786)

2018
20184
RMB’000

ARETT

448,510
5,900
(133,541)
(27,963)
(38,496)
(4,209)
11,153
634
36,851
324
125
1,278
2,244
(155)
21

8,442

(35,445)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
FEReRER (H)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T

Operating cash flows before movements EBECHIHILERERE

in working capital 229,868 275,673
Decrease (increase) in inventories HFERA (3Em) 8,926 (12,412)
(Increase) decrease in contract assets BHEE (3&m) md (139,310) 11,437
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables B 5 EYGRIER D> (35h0) 183,257 (301,086)
Increase in prepayments, deposits FENFIE - ke Rk

and other receivables H b E U R IEE AN (63,701) (28,548)
Decrease in receivable under service AR TG4 FF A S 2o HE Y

concession arrangement FE W GRIE R 2,726 25,011
Increase in debt instrument at fair value EAnBEFAEMZEKE

through other comprehensive income RERS T B (166,212) (4,368)
Increase in amounts due from related parties [& Y38 75 3XIB L N (49,185) (116,779)
Increase in trade and notes payables B ENFIER

ANESESill 39,161 146,824

Increase in other payables, deposits HMEMNZRE Bl es &

received and accrued expenses FEEH B 3% N 133,722 70,786
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities aHa’E CRd) Ein (13,261) 41,130
(Decrease) increase in amounts FETRAE 5 I8 () 1

due to related parties (12,692) 18,405
Cash generated from operations REMSRE 153,299 126,073
Income taxes paid B FTEH (30,506) (41,153)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & EBFiSR&THE 122,793 84,920
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

RERERER (HF)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEH
Placement of pledged bank deposits GASERRITER (291,886) (86,824)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits B HEFRITHER 246,818 53,094
Interest received SN 32,900 38,496
Dividend received from an associate ERSINGIE ) d) 25,171 28,524
Dividend received from equity investment B AR A WER AR B 4,186 =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEWZ - BE NMEE (131,491) (32,541)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment BABFTSSRIE 1,129 58
Purchase of intangible assets and costs EEEEEE MRS
capitalised under service concession LEaTHENERCBR
arrangements (279,986) (391,636)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL EBEEAREE
AR ERMEE (47,478) -
Proceed on disposal of equity HEZARBEFARLMEE
instruments at FVTOCI Wz 89 AR TAFT1S 5008 996 =
Acquisition of investment in an associate WP B N AR E (3,980) -
Advance to related parties [a) B8 7 AR (311) (2,507)
Repayment from related parties BE TR 4,791 17,815
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZRBFTABRESFHE
ACTIVITIES (439,141) (375,521)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

RERTRER (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T

FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH

Dividend paid BERE (79,766) -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (15,000) (100,000)
New bank borrowings raised MEBRITER 49,500 -
Repayments of lease liabilities EEMEEAR (8,959) -
Proceeds from discounted notes RITE BRIRE W RE

receivables from banks Fr{S k18 45,968 38,483
Interest paid BERFE (4,177) (5,900)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRD P15 R008 = 418,860
Exercise of pre-IPO share awards ﬁﬁ%/ﬂ@ﬁ'ﬁ & AR D 22E = 18,947
Repurchase of ordinary shares A [ X 38 A% (2,978) (1,799)
Cash repaid by employees due to Eé\iﬁuﬁl%u’?ﬂ%ﬁé%

forfeiture of pre-IPO share awards AR RENFA TR & - 74

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING  ®EES (FTA) fifg
ACTIVITIES REFH (15,412) 368,665

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH ReRBRELEEY

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS GRA) inEsE (331,760) 78,064
Effects of exchange rate changes EXREFHHFTE 1,786 13,062
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 73@1 B1HHEER

1 JANUARY REEEY 780,480 689,354
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS M12A31BNEER

31 DECEMBER RE&ZEEY 450,506 780,480
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B RRE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31 B IEFE

1.

234 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

GENERAL

China Boqi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
30 January 2015 and its shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
16 March 2018. The addresses of the registered office
of the Company and principal place of business of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Group are providing
independent flue gas treatment service and
environmental protection solution services by various
business models, including environmental protection
facility engineering, operation and maintenance and
concession operation.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

—REHR

PFREEBEAFREGER BRAF (XD
7)) K2015541 8308 EM S B E MK
MAERRBRAR  HRRHIR20184F3
R16BEEBBMERFGMAR AR ER
o RREIM M ER R AR T R EH
BRA (B AEE]) HEZLE M
M B RN FIR AR AR —E o

ARBIRREBBAR - AEENTEX
BREBZEEZHEN (BRRRREL
2 BERHEEENFALE) BREBYE
R I AR SRR BOR TT SRARTS ©

REMBBRERAARE [AR®D 2
5 ARBTIRARARNEEY -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time
in the current year:

IFRS 16 Leases
IFRIC 283 Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9  Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Amendments to IAS 28  Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRS

Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior year and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

mEMBHERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

V& PR 37 BT B0 B Bt 3 3R o R R R ELAB R
ZIS

7N 6 B 8 1l 4 R A9 R AT B PR B A 3R X A
REBETE

AEBEENAFE B RER B ER S £
Alz8g ((AREFERNEZES]) B
FYFT AT B B 75 i o5 Y Rl R BB RT A

B PR B 75 e 2 R e
F165%
BRI R s 2 fE FriSTiRIE 2
ZEe - 2EBFE23H THTK
B PR B 5 ¥R & ZE R EBHTEE
E35 (BFTA)
B PR B s R 2 R BfENTERN
FOTE (BFTA) IBTRE
BIFR & 5T %R FTElEET -
E19%% (1BFTA) MR EE
e AR REE R E K&
Eo85% (BRI A) BEDEN
REARERS
B PR B 75 ¥ & ZE R EIBR B IS s
CCHEN) YEBI2015F &
2017 F B
ZFERE

BRI XA ESN - AREEERERIF]E
RS ER RS AY EHARKE
AER R E—EFENPBERE MR
R/ SZEEAVBRROBRBELEEN

S, 480
T2 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEMBHERME (F])

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

(i)

236 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

IFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first
time in the current year. IFRS 16 superseded
IAS 17 Leases (“IAS 17”), and the related
interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to
apply IFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease and not apply this standard to contracts
that were not previously identified as containing
a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed
contracts which already existed prior to the date
of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
1 January 2019, the Group applies the definition
of a lease in accordance with the requirements
set out in IFRS 16 in assessing whether a
contract contains a lease.

V& PR 37 BT B0 B Bt 3 3R o R R R ELAB R
x (&)

2N 5 B 8 1) A R A0 T T B PR A A R 5 2R A

REMBIX (&)
() BB HREERE16HHE

FEEFRAE (ER) BRAF

AEBRAFEEHREABRRMB
WELERNE165E - BRI G MmERE
AFE 165 MBI SR ERFE 175
HE (TEIREERNEI7THR]) &
HHEAREE

HEF#
AEBCEERNITREE L
Al fE B & 5t RIS 175 R ER
MHREREZES - REF4R
(BEx#eL EaHE ] #hRH
ENEHNERBERYBHRE LS
165% - M EH AT ABAIRES
HENSOEAZER - Bt - &
SEYESHAERERERBH
FIEFENAL -

BMR2019F1B1B sk 2 B 5] 3L 3k
BEINEHME - REBERTEE
HREREHER  RIZEEEIE
WEERB16FFTH R TEAR

fE o

BEEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

(i) IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied IFRS 16 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect recognised at the date
of initial application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised
additional lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
at amounts equal to the related lease liabilities
by applying IFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained profits and
comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective
approach under IFRS 16 at transition, the Group
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial application,
and applied a single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with a similar remaining terms for similar
class of underlying assets in similar economic
environment.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the
Group has applied incremental borrowing rates
of the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied is 7.97%.

mEMBHERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

V& PR 37 BT B0 B Bt 3 3R o R R R ELAB R
x (&)

2N 5 B 8 1) A R A0 T T B PR A A R 5 2R A

REMBIX (&)
() EBERVBHEEERZIHHEE

(%)
TERAA

REBEBRPERARREMERELE
RISE165% « WS B X ERZERIN
REFENYILER B (812019
F1A18) R -

R201951 818 » A& B E R E
BREF TSRS 2RI 5516.C8(b) (i) HY 1B
BRSO RESREEREERED
CRHEBEREIINHEAERERAEE
E e RYItAERBBHNTMERE
HURE BN AER - M E|E5|
LB E R -

1A 38 R By 8 R B R B 7 S o A R 26
165% I8 AV IR BT AR - A
SEZEEIHERNERERBH
FEET121E A A& R H E R E
AREEMEEAE  ABEUL
BRIEAREERIREEERBEL
RAEHNEEESERE R

)_?30

REREHOEREEHENHE
MHERER AKECEARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEMBHERME (F])

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FE P %7 5] BRI B B 3G SR &5 22 A )R HAERT

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (&)
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)
New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily 7 5 [ 0 i AR R R T AT B B B A 3R 2 R
effective for the current year (Continued) REERTAR (&)
(i)  IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) () EBRHBEHERZEANEIHEHE
(%)
At 1 January
2019
R2019%F
1A18
Note RMB’000
HtaE ARBT T
Operating lease commitments disclosed 7R2018%F12A31H
as at 31 December 2018 WML E R SRR 38 20,430
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant LAFRRE 1S = & 2R R
incremental borrowing rates BN EaE 18,211
Less: Recognition exemption — B R — RHHEE
low value assets (180)

Lease liabilities relating to operating leases 201941 A 1 A & B &

recognised upon application of IFRS 16 B s 2ERISE 165712
as at 1 January 2019 TR A AL & FH S AR
WEEAE 18,031
Analysed as DB
Current ED 8,960
Non-current FERE 9,071

18,031

238 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. HEEFRE (ER) BRAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

mEMBHERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31 8 ILFE

2. EAFHBERYBEREENREBIT
x (&)

7N 6 B 8 1l 4 R A9 R AT B PR B A 3R X A

effective for the current year (Continued) REERTAR (&)
(i)  IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) () EBRHBEHERZEANEIHEHE
(%)
The following adjustments were made to AR A% R2019F1B1H MG S
the amounts recognised in the consolidated B RRRPERNSEMELD
statement of financial position at 1 January 2019. HE - RXEFHTENEBHI T
Line items that were not affected by the changes FEEA o
have not been included.
Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts
reported at under IFRS
31 December 16 at 1 January
2018 Reclassification 2019
BIBR B A SR
KAIR2018F BRIZ165T
12A31H #2019
BENEREE EFSE 1A1AMEREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARET T ARET T
Non-current Assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1i7% « BB K& 88,330 18,406 106,736
Current Assets REBEE
Other receivable H A U IR 375 (375) =
- rental deposit paid - EBfNHEE%S
Current Liabilities nBaE
Lease liabilities HEAE - (8,960) (8,960)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities MEGE = (9,071) (9,071)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEMBHERME (F])

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

240 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a
business and provide additional guidance with
the objective of assisting entities to determine
whether a transaction should be accounted for as
a business combination or an asset acquisition.
Furthermore, an optional concentration test is
introduced to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The Group has early adopted
the amendments for its acquisition transactions
completed on or after 1 January 2019. The Group
has performed the concentration test for the
acquisition transaction during the current year
and considered it is an acquisition of assets and
accounted for such.

V& PR 37 BT B0 B Bt 3 3R o R R R ELAB R
x (&)

7N 6 B 8 1l 4 R A9 R AT B PR B A 3R X A

REBTA ()
(i) BRI E BRI EIW KB E

FEEFRAE (ER) BRAF
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ZIER] AR E E R E &I A1 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) ;.'-';"j

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not adopted the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current*

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material®

and IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Reform?®

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a

date to be determined

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2022

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments,
the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards, will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

mEMBHERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

V& PR 37 BT B0 B Bt 3 3R o R R R ELAB R
x (&)

& 98 5 {8 i 7R 45 3 B 37 R BB PR Bt S 3R o5 2
B R HAERT A

AEE W ERALAT B EMAE R RERD
AT BBR B 75 i 5 R B S BB AT K

BERFBREER  Ria 4"

BT

BRI SR 2R IR EEFME S N A
E105% R EIRR HEEREH
25T 4R BEHESFE?
285 (IEFIA)

BURR & 52 R) BaESEARE
F15 (BT A) BRIk a

EIFR &5 2R BFEMER®

=R e

25T 4A

858 (B3] 4)
BIPR B s s e B IR E A
o5 - B R
AERI 283955 &
I PR B 75 e 5 E B
E79 (BFTA)

L 20211 A1 2 BRABAIFE R
i AE

g B R HETE B HASH 14 R A A S 12 HARS
EVY

e 20209F1 A18 2 & FABAFE S
HE

g 202291 A1 k2 BRABAIFEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ma

MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
(“Directors”) anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition
of material by including additional guidance and
explanations in making materiality judgments. In
particular, the amendments:

° include the concept of “obscuring” material
information in which the effect is similar to
omitting or misstating the information;

° replace threshold for materiality influencing users
from “could influence” to “could reasonably be
expected to influence”; and

° include the use of the phrase “primary users”

“

rather than simply referring to “users” which
was considered too broad when deciding
what information to disclose in the financial

statements.

The amendments also align the definition across
all IFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2020.
The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group but may affect the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “New Framework”) and the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards

The New Framework:

° reintroduces the terms stewardship and
prudence;
° introduces a new asset definition that focuses on

rights and a new liability definition that is likely
to be broader than the definition it replaces,
but does not change the distinction between a
liability and an equity instrument;

o discusses historical cost and current value
measures, and provides additional guidance
on how to select a measurement basis for a
particular asset or liability;

° states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an asset or liability; and

° discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of
account, the reporting entity and combined
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “New Framework”) and the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards (Continued)

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain IFRSs have been updated to the
New Framework, whilst some IFRSs are still referred
to the previous versions of the framework. These
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020, with earlier application
permitted. Other than specific standards which still refer
to the previous versions of the framework, the Group
will rely on the New Framework on its effective date
in determining the accounting policies especially for
transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise
dealt with under the accounting standards.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-
based payment, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or IAS
7 (before application of IFRS 16), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories
or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvements with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Company
gains control until the date when the Company ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to financial assets at the respective fair values,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities
on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Groups
performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an

asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, including certain succession agreements
that include “Build-Operate-Transfer” (*“BOT”) and
“Transfer-Operate-Transfer” (“TOT”) contracts,
the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation
is determined at contract inception. It represents
the price at which the Group would sell a promised
good or service separately to a customer. If a stand-
alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised goods or
services to the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects
of the time value of money if the timing of payments
agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the
customer or the Group with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether
the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by
the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the Group transferred the
construction services before payments from customers
in which the Group adjusts for the promised amount of
consideration for significant financing components, the
Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. The Group
recognises interest income during the period between
the payment from customers and the transfer of the
associated services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Existence of significant financing component
(Continued)

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEMBHERME (F])

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

252 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
(Continued)

The Group also applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease component,
and instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liability.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment”, the same line item within
which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever the lease term has changed, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax. The tax currently
payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated. Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation
of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
supply of services, or held for administrative purposes
other than construction in progress as described below,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “property, plant and
equipment” (upon application of IFRS 16) or “prepaid
lease payments” (before application of IFRS 16) in the
consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when
the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held
for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Appropriate adjustments have been
made to conform the associate’s accounting policies
to those of the Group. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives, other than
service concession arrangements as set out in “Service
concession arrangements” below, that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
which is regarded as their cost.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at revalued amounts, being their fair
value at the date of the revaluation less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately. Intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

When the Group has a right to charge for usage of
service concession infrastructure (as a consideration for
providing construction services in a service concession
arrangement), it recognises an intangible asset at fair
value upon initial recognition. The Group’s intangible
assets represent operating concessions and are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Operating concessions are
amortised over the tenure of the service concession
arrangements and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using straight-line method.
The residual value is estimated by the Directors for
the amount that could be recovered when the relevant
PRC governmental bureau is obliged to pay the Group
for the transfer of infrastructure (which is built by the
Group for obtaining the operating concession) at a
price appraised by valuer upon the expiry of the service
concession arrangements (if not extendable by the
relevant PRC governmental bureau) in accordance
with the relevant service concession agreements. The
estimated useful life, residual value and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Further
details of operating concessions are set out in “Service
concession arrangements” below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

When no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service
concession arrangements with certain owners of the
power plants (the “Grantors”).

Under these service concession arrangements:

o the Grantors control or regulate the services the
Group must provide with the infrastructure, to
whom it must provide them, and at what price;
and

° the Grantors control, through ownership,
beneficial entitlement or otherwise, any
significant residual interest in the infrastructure
at the end of the term of the arrangements, or
the infrastructure is used for its entire useful life
under the arrangements, or both the Group’s
practical ability to sell or pledge the infrastructure
is restricted and continuing right of use of the
infrastructure is given to the Grantors throughout
the period of the arrangements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Service concession arrangements (Continued)
Consideration given to the Grantor

During construction stage, a contract asset is
recognised to the extent that the Group has a future
unconditional right to receive cash or another financial
asset from the Grantors for the consideration paid and
payable by the Group to the Grantors upon completion
of the construction of the relevant infrastructure, that
is a condition for granting such unconditional right.
The contract asset is transferred to financial asset
(receivable under a service concession arrangement)
when the construction of the relevant infrastructure
is completed. The Group has unconditional right to
receive cash if the Grantors contractually guarantee to
pay the Group specified or determinable amounts or
the shortfall (the “Guarantee”), if any, between amounts
received from the users of the public service and
specified or determinable amounts.

The financial assets (receivables under service
concession arrangements) are accounted for in
accordance with the policy set out for financial assets
at amortised cost below. An intangible asset (operating
concession) is recognised to the extent that the Group
receives a right to charge users of public service, which
is not an unconditional right to receive cash because
the amounts are contingent on the extent that the public
use, and is accounted for in accordance with the policy
set out for “Intangible assets” above.

If the Group is paid for the consideration partly by a
financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then
each component of the consideration is accounted for
separately and is recognised initially at the fair value of
the consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories mainly include supplies and spare parts in
relation to the Group’s environment protection facility
and operation and maintenance services are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
of inventories are calculated using first-in-first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS
3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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38 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)
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Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts
for debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI
as a result of interest income calculated using
the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss. All other changes in the
carrying amount of these debt instruments are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of FVTOCI
reserve. Impairment allowances are recognised
in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment
to other comprehensive income without reducing
the carrying amounts of these debt instruments.
When these debt instruments are derecognised,
the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments designated
as at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in OCI and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained
profits. Dividends from these investments in
equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends, if any are included in the
other income and other gains and losses line
item in profit or loss, if any.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the
“other gains and losses” line item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets,
which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9 (including
trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due from
related parties, debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, receivables under service
concession arrangement, bank balances and cash,
and pledged bank deposits) and contract assets. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets without significant
financing component. Except for debtors including
which is credit-impaired is assessed for impairment
individually, the trade receivables and contract assets
are grouped under a provision matrix into internal
credit rating buckets based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to repayment histories for
recurring customers and current past due exposure for
the new customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. SIGNIFIC
(Continued)

ANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment o

f financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken

into a
risk h

ccount when assessing whether credit
as increased significantly since initial

recognition:
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an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, or the length
of time or the extent to which the fair value
of a financial asset has been less than its
amortised cost;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting
an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience
indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

o when there is a breach of covenants by
the counterparty; or

° information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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38 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iif)
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Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when the
contractual payment is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

° it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures. Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
To measure the ECL, contract assets and trade
receivables and other receivables are grouped
based on shared common risk characteristics.
The Group believes that most of the customers
of trade receivable are the same in nature, who
are power plants, and treats all customers as one
single group. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by the Directors to ensure the constituents of
the group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments/receivables
that are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade receivables, contract assets and
other receivables where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI upon application of IFRS 9, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by a group entity are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL. The Group’s financial liabilities are classified as
financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
including trade and notes payables, other payables,
amounts due to related parties and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
Details regarding the determination of the fair value of
equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in
note 41.

The fair value determined at the grand date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest.

The impact of the version of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share premium.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where
that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the entity
obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the
service.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the Directors
are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Progress of completion of performance obligations

The Group’s revenue from construction contracts is
recognised over time based on the stage of completion
of the contract, which is determined as the proportion of
the costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs
to complete the contract. The Directors estimate both
of the profit margin and contract cost at the beginning
for each contract, revise the estimation of both profit
margin and contract cost through regular review
when the Directors consider there are changes in the
assumptions throughout the contract period. The actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue and
costs may be higher or lower than the estimates and
this will affect the revenue and profit recognised.

In addition, the Group makes provision for expected
loss on construction contracts based on the estimation
of the outcome of the ongoing construction projects by
the Directors’ prior experience and industry averages
for similar projects. The Group assesses periodically
the expected return of construction contracts and if
the expectation differs from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the expected return in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.

4,
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and contract
assets

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
lifetime ECL of trade receivables and contract assets
based on provision matrix through grouping of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns, after considering
ageing, internal credit ratings of trade debtors,
repayment history and/or past due status of respective
trade receivables. Estimated loss rates are based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information. In addition, trade receivables and contract
assets that are credit-impaired are assessed for ECL
individually. The loss allowance amount of the trade
receivables and contract assets is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows with
the consideration of expected future credit losses. The
provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECL and the Group’s
trade receivables and contract assets are disclosed in
notes 24, 23 and 37 respectively.

Provision for customer claims

The Directors estimate the results of relevant events
based on the information available upon 31 December,
2019 and recognise accrued liabilities at a most
probable amount. Actual results may be different
depending on the future progress. Details refer to note
30.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue recognition

Revenue is mainly generated from the flue gas
desulfurisation and denitrification services through
three different models, namely EPC, operation and
maintenance and concession operation. In addition, the
Group also provides sales of by-products, which are
recorded in others.

Disaggregation of revenue
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration

specified in a contract with customer and excluded

amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group

principally earns revenue from provision of construction,

operation and management services including:

288 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

Environmental protection facility engineering
services, mainly include engineering,
procurement and construction (“EPC”)

Operation and management (“O&M”) services

BOT & TOT

Others

EPC services

EPC business primarily involves project
engineering and design, procurement of
equipment and materials, project construction,
equipment installation and commissioning
services in relation to desulfurisation and
denitrification and dust removal for coal-fired
power plants.

The Directors have assessed that the Group’s
performance creates and/or enhances an asset
that the customers control as the Group performs.
Therefore, the Directors have satisfied that there
is only one single performance obligation and the
services are satisfied over time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) EPC services (Continued)

Accordingly, revenue from EPC services, which
are generally under project based development
contracts, is recognised based on the progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation which is determined as the proportion
of the costs incurred for the works (i.e.
subcontracting costs, material costs and direct
staff costs incurred) performed to date relative
to the estimated total costs to complete the
satisfaction of these services and the margin
of each project, to the extent that the amount
can be measured reliably and its recovery is
considered probable.

The Group’s construction contracts include
payment schedules which require stage
payments over the construction period once
certain specified milestones are reached. The
Group requires certain customers to provide
upfront payments range from 10% to 30% of total
contract sum, when the Group receives a deposit
before construction commences, this will give
rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract,
until the revenue recognised on the specific
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)
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EPC services (Continued)

About 5%-10% of the contract price is withheld
by the customers and will be released upon
completion of the warranty period (normally 1-2
years after the date of the practical completion
of the construction). The services to be provided
during the warranty period is considered as an
assurance-type warranty in order to ensure the
construction services performed comply with
agreed-upon specifications and is accounted for
in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets. Retention
receivables, prior to expiration of warranty
period, are classified as contract assets and
is reclassified to trade receivables when the
warranty period expires. The management of
the Group has assessed the effects of financing
component is not significant at contract level and
therefore revenue is not adjusted for the effects
of time value of money.

O&M services

O&M services mainly include the provision of
operation service and regular maintenance
service for desulfurisation and denitrification
facilities and dust removal facilities owned by
their customers, where the Group’s work scope
includes the full operation, testing and repairing,
upgrading and maintenance of flue gas treatment
system/facilities owned by these coal-fired power
plants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(ii) O&M services (Continued)

Pursuant to certain contracts of rendering related
O&M services, the transaction price is the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring O&M
services to customers. Additionally, the O&M
services typically meet the criterion where
customers simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits of the Group’s performance as the
Group performs. Therefore the Directors have
satisfied that the performance obligation of
rendering O&M services are satisfied over time
which is recognised over the service period.

For certain O&M services and the O&M service
under service concession arrangements, the
Group applies the practical expedient by
recognising revenue in the amount to which the
Group has right to invoice. The transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed as permitted by IFRS 15.

(iii) BOT & TOT services

In a typical BOT & TOT project, the Group
is responsible for the financing, investment,
construction and operation of the project
according to the concession contract with
their customer. After the completion of the
constructions, the Group operates and maintains
the project for a pre-defined period, which is
typically 15 to 20 years, when they are entitled to
collecting revenues generated from the project
during the term of the contract.

mEMBHERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Wk o EER (&)

W TR ()

(ii)

(iii)

ERRE (E)

REEEEBEERTNGHN - X
FERNAREBERRFTFRHE
HRFFESNRE B - BHER
BRENAEFPRAEESRERAX
SERBEAOMSN S ZER - B -
EERRRNEERBNENELE
BB REERK - W RS R

BhE T8 S B RS R RIS AT RT
REZHNBLREERTME -
AEBBBAERANEEAERNLE
ENERZREEAATEES
% o WERP ISR E ERIF 1558 &
i PRERFRBITANNRZ S
BRI ARMEE

BOTRTOTHR#

HE—HRBOTRTOTHE F - N&E
BEREBEERPIIVANEEER
FARBEREEES KRE ER
BE o RTR  AKRBETRESLR
EHHR GBE R15E209F) AE
Bl EENERIERE  ARERE
EAAHAWEIUR B 5K -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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292 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. W#HKEIBER (&)
(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued) WA (&)
(iii) BOT & TOT services (Continued) (iii) BOTRTOTHR# ()
The Directors have assessed that BOT & TOT ZFREE BOTRTOTRS &4
services comprise two separate performance WIBERI MBS - BIRIEEE
obligations, the construction of the facilities and TR BRI RERER B REER
the operating and maintenance service upon % HHEREPCHRIE KB REH
the completion of the construction of facilities, BEE o BERANEANKRERER
equivalent as a combination of EPC service and () R (i) BB A AT bL B A9 98 3L AR
O&M service. Revenue recognition for each %o
performance obligation follows the comparable
stand-alone services specified above in (i) and (ii).
(iv) Other revenues from sales of by-products and (iv) HEIEREEMHKEEERD
others are recognised at the point of time when THIEEBE R P RER o
the control of goods is passed to the customer
Transaction price allocated to the remaining BEEANP TG BRI ZE
performance obligations for contracts with %
customers
For the EPC services and construction services under AR R & & 2 B N HEPCRR 5 R 2 iE
service concession arrangements, the transaction price M s » 20194 K2018F12A31H
allocated to the remaining performance obligations PEREFGBEHNEE (KnEIBrmE)
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December HR ZERNTEHRERRENT ¢
2019 and the expected timing of recognising revenue
are as follows:
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Within one year —FRN 415,116 433,756
More than one year but not more —F AL ETBBERE
than two years 431,950 305,988
More than two years BB F 47,920 469,221
894,986 1,208,965

FEEFRAE (ER) BRAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. W#@koHER (&)
(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued) WA (&)
Transaction price allocated to the remaining EFEHNF T EZFGBHIELTHKEZE
performance obligations for contracts with % (&)
customers (Continued)
For the O&M services with fixed total contract amounts, MEEEHNEHMNELHEERBEMS
the transaction price allocated to the remaining R2019%F %2018 12 831H o I & F #4
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially BAEME CRRRXEBAME) IR FHE
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 and the B RTFEHRERKEINT
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Within one year —&FR 59,424 151,976
More than one year but not more —F LA BT HIBMRE
than two years 5,618 37,363
More than two years 1B 38 PR - 102,813
65,042 292,152
Segment information 2 ERE B
For the purposes of resources allocation and BETERST R D IBEEST(E  Hi7E

assessment of segment performance, the executive
Directors, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), regularly review types of goods or services
delivered or provided by focusing on different business
models. No operating segments have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

F(HESELREE (EBBLYRT
%)) BBEIRTREHEATHES
S 5 W AR RS ORI - AR
AEET 2 HH B EE TR -
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mEMBHERME (F])

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment information (Continued)

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under

IFRS 8 are as follows:

EPC

0&M

BOT & TOT

Others

294 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

project design, procurement of equipment and
materials, project construction and equipment
installment and testing services

operation service and regular maintenance
service for desulfurisation and denitrification
facilities and dust removal facilities

construction of infrastructure or acquisition of
existing infrastructure from grantor, operation
and maintenance of flue gas treatment project
for a pre-defined period according to the
concession contract and transferring the
ownership of the infrastructure to the grantor
at the end of the period

sales of by-products and others

Wk o EER (&)

DEER (&)

BfEmE - RIZEEMGE RS ERES
5 AREERAI 2O T

EPC TH B RRE - B RV R
B THERERNRERER
BIE AR 75

B R 7 e A B 2% e, B [k BE 2% it

H 2B RS B AR A AR

BOTRTOT MIBFI&EEANTEEH
FMETERREERIBR
FTAKBEIR B ERRE - &
FORIRIA BB A E LA
REAREEEMBRIENTA
BTETA

Hit $HE B M M A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 'ﬁ
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WERDHER (&)

(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) AEER ()
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and TXAREEERIZEMO HE DN AEE
results by operating and reportable segment: Wes MBS
Segment revenue Segment profit
2 U = 2 EBE R
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20185 20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT NS AR%Tn EEUNHS
EPC EPC 730,628 722,117 29,344 56,523
O&M B4 380,317 415,113 81,659 124,556
Concession operation Rt 700,489 580,051 172,257 114,042
Others HAith 25,062 27,717 23,262 22,737
Total st 1,836,496 1,744,998 306,522 317,858

Unallocated other income and &R OB E AU A LT

expense and other gains VA B B Yz RN S 48

and losses 25,436 117,456
Unallocated selling and AOEREERDHEMAS

distribution expenses (29,295) (26,170)
Unallocated administrative RABRITHAX

expenses (88,776) (98,485)
Unallocated research and RO

development expenses (24,256) (10,618)
Unallocated allowance of Ao EMEENMELD

impairment losses BERNREREEE

on financial assets and

contract assets (10,928) (3,816)
Unallocated share of profit R BC PR B

of associates NSIbT 34,541 27,963
Unallocated finance costs RO BLHE R AR (4,177) (5,900)
Unallocated change in fair R Be A I E A

value of convertible AR BEEZE

ordinary shares = 133,541
Unallocated listing expenses A&7 B FHF X - (3,319)
Profit before tax B A& A 209,067 448,510
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

296 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment information (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 3.

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: Nil).

Segment profit represents the gross profit of each
segment. This is the measure reported to the CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the
CODM does not regularly review segment assets and
liabilities.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers during the year contributing
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as

follows:
Segment
o
Customer A O&M
BEA BHE

Wk o EER (&)

DEER (&)

BENAERDBOHETHREAKER
K FESRUR M &R BUERAER -

EXERNDERESIERBINE R F AU
& B E2019F 128318 I FE M E D
EREIEEE (20184 : ) o

DEHNIER D HMOER o kR EIRD
Ry MBEETARMETEZELSARARERS
E}‘Jﬁ/{i ©

MREBEELRRELRENEMOBLE
ENBE FHit BIEZINOHLEERE

& o

FEEFEH

RAFE  REERMASEEAREE10% A
EEPHMREMT

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
& 255,575

Revenue from the customer was less than 10% in 2019.

Geographical information

The Group primarily operates in the PRC. Substantially
all non-current assets and revenue of the Group are
located in and generated from the PRC.

* KB ZEL A2 R2019F T/E10% °

HEEF
REBEBNABEKCEER - AEBET
FrBEERBEERREHURFEKLEF
BlEL -

FEEFRAE (ER) BRAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE AND OTHER
GAINS AND LOSSES

Included in other income and expense and other
gains and losses are government grants amounting to
RMB23,358,000 (2018: RMB26,968,000), dividend from
financial assets at FVTPL amounting to RMB4,186,000
(2018: nil), provision for claims from customer
amounting to RMB15,000,00 (2018: nil) , gains from
extinguishment of liabilities amounting to RMB1,964,000
(2018: RMB8,786,000), and foreign exchange gains
amounting to RMB1,786,000 (2018: RMB35,445,000).

ALLOWANCE OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND CONTRACT ASSETS

mEMBHERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

HMW AR X UK 2tz M EE

T AE AL UL A B B A R At Uiz 25 A S
BHMIE R A BT AL A R 23,358,000
70 (20184 : A R #26,968,0007T) * K
BRAABEFABENEREEZRE
A R #4,186,0007T (20184 : &) « &
F RE ## A R 15,000,000t (2018
F:\) DEEEEENKREARYE
1,964,0007T (20184 : A R #:8,786,000
J0) MIE H ek AR 1,786,0007T (2018
F : AR#35,445,0007T) °

ERMEERGNEENREBERE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBETIT
Allowance for trade receivables Z 5 e W SR I (4,882) (324)
Allowance for other receivables A B U FRIB B (1,423) (125)
Reversal (allowance) of BREERBRE (BH)
contract assets 3,003 (1,278)
Allowance for amounts due from JE UL 838 5 SRR B
related parties (7,427) (2,244)
(Allowance) reversal of receivables  RISIFITACE L HEIE T ) FEUGRIA
under service concession (BB) BERD
arrangement (199) 155
(10,928) (3,816)
FINANCE COSTS S 35 B AN
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Interest on borrowings BERAE 3,131 5,900
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 1,046 =
Total FE 4,177 5,900
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEMBHERME (F])

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

9.

FRr8BIAX

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T

Current income tax — PRC BIERPTSHH — 31,538 48,239
Deferred income tax (note 21) EIEREIE (KiF21) (5,085) 7,452
Total BEr 26,453 55,691

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT
Law”) effective on 1 January 2008, Beijing Boqi Electric
Power SCI-TECH Co., Ltd. tREFEARHEEBERAR])
(“Beijing Bogqi”) obtained a “High and New Technology
Enterprise” (the “HNTE”) in 2008 which Beijing Bogi
was entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2008
to 2010 and could be re-applied every three years; the
current active HNTE certificate has an effective date
until December 2020.

In October 2015, Shanxi Hejin Boqgi Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. (WEZEHRABEBRAF)
(“Hejin Boqi”) obtained the approval for being eligible
as the HNTE for the year ended 31 December 2015
which Hejin Bogi was entitled to a preferential tax rate
of 15% from 2015 to 2017 and could be re-applied
every three years; the current active HNTE certificate
has an effective date until December 2021.

In November 2016, Jiangxi Jinggangshan Boqi
Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. (T 753 [ WL 1L 1#
ZBEREBRAT) (“Jinggangshan Bogqi”) obtained
the approval for being eligible as the HNTE for the year
ended 31 December 2016 which Jinggangshan Boqi
was entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2016
to 2018 and could be re-applied every three years, and
the current active HNTE certificate has an effective date
until September 2022.

RIER2008F1 A1 BB EMSH
E(TREMBHZE]  EREFENREK
ERAF (TLRBEHF]) R2008F &L &
[EF ezl ((EHEMdE]) bR
18 & 1% 1t 720084 220106 Al = B 15%
WEBEHRERBASR=-FEFHAE BA
AR = BRI E R E A B E2020F
12H o

MR20155F107 - WP E BT RERBHK
ERATF (CTEREF]) RS- RE
FE2015F12A31B L FEAER AR
Ktz Bt M EEH B2015F 2
2017F =B 15%MEBEEREXANBR=F
BHEGE BAIAEBNS RN EERE
AHMHEIE20214612A -

2016511 A » TAHMLBFRER K
BRAA ([HELESRT]) REHEX - R®
HZE2016F12A31ALFEAER AR
R - Bt - HRELIEER20165
FE2018FZHB15%MEEHEXAAIGR=
FEHBE  BAERNRIBMTEER
BHMEAE2022F9A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

In December 2017, Shanxi Puzhou Bogi Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. (LUFEEMNETREREHEBR A A)
(“Puzhou Boqi”) obtained the approval, by which the
desulfurisation program in Puzhou Boqi was entitled to
a preferential income tax of three-years free from 2017,
followed by a three-year preferential rate of 12.5%.

In January 2019, Huainan Bogi Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. CEm BT R ARE K FR A 7))
(“Huainan Boqi”) obtained the approval, by which the
desulfurisation program was entitled to a preferential
income tax of three-years free from 2019, followed by a
three-year preferential rate of 12.5%.

In May 2019, Laibin Bogi Environmental Technology
Co., Ltd. CREEFRRBTABMRAF]) (“Laibin Bogi”)
obtained the approval, by which the desulfurisation
program was entitled to a preferential income tax of
three-years free from 2019, followed by a three-year
preferential rate of 12.5%.

Changzhi Bogi Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. (&
AB T RAERIRER A F) (“Changzhi Boqi”) obtained
the approval, by which the sewage treatment program
was entitled to a preferential income tax of three-years
free from 2018, followed by a three-year preferential
rate of 12.5%.

In January 2019, Changjizhou Bogi Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. (EFMEFRER X ER A A)
(“Changjizhou Bogqi”) obtained the approval, by which
was entitled to a preferential income tax of 15% from
2019 to 2021.

The applicable tax rate of other PRC subsidiaries of the
Company was 25% for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: 25%).

mEMBHERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

FrEHimx (&)

20175128 + IWEESEMNE T RERIEA
BRAR ([EMNEST]) BN HEMNEST
BRI B8l B2017F =B M =FFERA
BE  HE=FAIZH125%KEBHE -

M20195F1 H - EEBEHFREBEERA
B ([EEEF]) ERXRERBITOHR
¥ EB2019F ZEBRB=FMEHA
BE HEBEZFAIZHE125%MEBRRE -

2019558  REEFRRBZARA
Al ([REBF]) EHRREETHOHR
B EIB2019F EBRB =FFBHH
BE EB=FrZH125%MEEHEX -

RABHFRARBZBER AT ([RAEF])
BHRRABINSKEEXERKTE B
018FZHRB=FFSHMESR - Hik
ZFAIEH125%MBERE o

R2019F 1A ETMNETEREEA
RAE ((EEMEF]) Bt A2019F %
2021 FZH15%MATERERFRE -

HE2019F12A31B I FE » A AR E
ftb R B BT B8 A B MO 8 FB B R 525% (2018
£ 25%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEMBHERME (F])

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries in China are eligible for certain
tax credits of 175% deduction rate (“Super Deduction”)
on certain research and development expenses for
2019 (2018: 75%). The
Directors have made their best estimate for the Super

the year ended December 31,

Deduction to be claimed for the entities in ascertaining

9. FBHAX (&)

(rBgEEM) -

fEH R EME

their assessable profits during the reporting period.

Income tax expense for the year is reconciled to the
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit

Yo as R AT RER

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

EEHEHTE

FRMBHRAX A EEEE
BRELADG A BRI T

REBHFEREBAREBERHEE2019
F12A3IBIEFEMNSE THERIH
175% (2018%F : 75%) {E B Al 0 Fi f &
HEHRA fE
REREAE B ERRRNEEEND

mkEMEE

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR¥ET T
Profit before tax Bk 5 A 209,067 448,510
Tax at applicable income tax REARMEEHRE25% T EHTIA 52,267 112,128
rate of 25%
Tax deduction due to preferential BEL 8 =B T 2 1 HUR A I8 (28,746) (38,705)
tax rate
Tax effect of share of profit FEMREE RN E R FIM T2 (5,134) (4,194)
of associates
Tax effect of research and BRI M E (1,532) (836)
development expenses super
deduction
Tax effect of income not taxable BARMIRA 2 MG E = (37,142)
for tax purpose
Tax effect of expenses that are not  NA[ 1G22 Tl 75 52 25 6,651 14,053
deductible for tax purpose
Utilisation of tax losses previously — EA LRI AR 2 FHIEEE (67) (113)
not recognised
Tax effect of tax losses not RERTIAEE 2 M E 159 2,482
recognised
Withholding income tax on earnings & FITBINATSR (H17F21) 2,855 8,018
(note 21)
Tax charge for the year FRBMBZ T 26,453 55,691
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31 B IEFE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

10. FREA

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Profit for the year has been arrived FRmMTEMER (GTA)
at after charging (crediting): AT EIBRZEFE
Staff costs, including directors’ EIRA (BIEEEEHMH)
remuneration set out in note 13 IR FE13
Salaries and other benefits HEREMER 204,297 155,927
Contributions to retirement RIRAEFET B R
benefits scheme 20,958 18,758
Share-based payment LARR 15 B E R B 3R 2
expenses (note 41) (Kat41) 3,317 8,442
Total staff costs B IR 228,572 183,127
Gross rental income from REYHEBRSWABRE
investment properties (2,989) (2,160)
Less: Direct operating expense B FREERESRANKRE
(including depreciation) incurred VEEENEEREEER
for investment properties that T (BEFE) GTAXE
generated rental income during fib WA B 58 32 DA B Ay
the year (included in other Weas M E1E )
income and expense and
other gains and losses) 634 634
(2,355) (1,526)
Cost of inventories recognised HRARZMFEKAE
as expenses (included in cost of (GTASHE RIRFAA)
sales and services) 496,908 541,325
Minimum lease payments in BRAGEHENRERENK
respect of operating leases - 10,503
Depreciation of property, Y BELRZETE
plant and equipment 23,314 11,153
Depreciation of investment properties WEMETE 634 634
Amortisation of intangible assets | A ERE
(included in cost of sales and services)  (EF AS5E RRISAHKAS) 54,358 36,851
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR % B 2,600 2,340
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mEMBHERME (F])

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

11. DIVIDENDS

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of
the Company recognised as
distribution during the year:

2018 Final — HK9 cents
(2018: no dividend) per share

11.

BRE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T

FABRSD KA RTR]
ERRR RS

2018 F RHARR B — B%
9781l (20184 : EJRB)

79,766 -

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2019 of HK3.15 cents per ordinary share, in an
aggregate amount of HK$31,724,000 (approximately
RMB28,907,000), has been proposed by the directors
of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting. Final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2018 of HK9 cents per ordinary share, in an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$90,756,000 (approximately
RMB79,766,000), had been paid during the current
year.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is
based on the following data:

12.

RBmEBHKRE ARARESTEHERESR
2019F 12A31B L FEIRF KRR B =
% 38 AR 3. 1578l (48 € %8 A31,724,000
BT (9 AR #28,007,0007T)) @ HEARK
BRENGRITHREAS L E - BHE
2018F12A31B L FE 2 KRR BEFEK
T @R (L (42 FA 4 A90,756,00078
7T (K9 AR #79,766,0007T)) ERAFE
AR e

BRER

ARBFEANEBIEBRERNREERNTS
ERUATEIEE -

2019 2018
2019% 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT
Earnings: ZF
Earnings for the purpose of calculating FtE&SRAEFINEF]
earnings per share (profit for the year (KRR GIEHE AFEL
attributable to owners of the Company) FEREF) — EAR
— basic 182,537 394,359
Effect of dilutive potential BeBTETEaRmTE
ordinary shares:
Change in fair value of AIEHRE R
convertible ordinary shares AR EEZE - (133,541)
Earnings for the purpose of calculating FtE&SREFNEF]
earnings per share (profit for the year (AR THHEHE AFENL
attributable to owners of the Company) FR&EF])
— diluted —#E 182,537 260,818
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

Number of shares:

12.

mEMBHERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

BRER (&)
BHER

2019 2018
20195 20184
Number of Number of
shares shares
RO E &m &R
Weighted average number of ordinary  stEERERETH
shares for the purpose of calculating T A N RE S5 8
basic earnings per share 1,008,248,547 899,546,295
Effects of dilutive potential BEEgE T RRMTEE
ordinary share:
Convertible ordinary shares AT 8EIR TR AR - 64,750,277
Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme BIRARABEERRG EEE & 3,881,941 3,613,585
Weighted average number of ordinary & G # & EFIH
shares for the purpose of calculating TS A N RE S 15 85
diluted earnings per share 1,012,130,488 967,910,157

The weighted average number of ordinary shares shown

above has been arrived at after deducting the treasury

shares.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the

year ended 31 December 2018 does not assume the

exercise of the over-allotment option granted upon

Listing since the exercise price of the option is higher

than the average market price during the exercisable

period.

ERARE BRI B
BDEBS -

HZE2018F12A31AILFEBREER
FIEETE I R R AT 89 8 B A AR
REWENITE  BRAERENTEES
RITEBRARFIIHE o
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mEMBHERME (F])

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

13.

304 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 13. EE FETHAEBREEM:

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors and chief executives ESRFTETHAER

Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors and RBEFE TN TARAESRITHAL
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company during the HOMESFRET

years reported are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019: HZE2019F12A31BILFE -

Retirement

Salaries benefit

Directors’ and other scheme
fee allowances contributions Total

FER BAER
Ese Htr= R AR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARMTR ARBTR

Executive directors: WITES -
Mr. Cheng Liguan Richard BE2EE - 850 51 901
Mr. Zeng Zhijun L7 REE

(Chief Executive) (1TBE%) - 850 51 901
Sub-total Net - 1,700 102 1,802

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

EXIIMTESNME IR EBAR R RARBEBMIRMRR
B -

Non-executive directors: ERTESE

Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo BAEE - - = =
Mr. Zhu Weihang KEMEE - - - -
Mr. Chen Xue fREf L = - - _
Sub-total NEt = - - -

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries, if applicable.

EXFIBFRTEZNMEIREEA AR REMB LR (1@
) MEZMIRERB M A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 13.
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors and chief executives (Continued)

Directors’
fee

EEHe
RMB’000
ARET T

mEMBHERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

EE FETHAEBREEME (&)

ESREFRITHAR ()

Retirement

Salaries benefit

and other scheme
allowances contributions Total

FER BIEA
Htr= R AR EH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®TR ARETR

Independent non-executive BUFRITES:

directors:
Mr. Liu Gengyu 2R L E 100 - - 100
Mr. Xie Guozhong Bt 100 - - 100
Mr. Lu Zhifang LB 100 - - 100
Sub-total gt 300 - - 300

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the

Company.

Total

Bt

EXMFIBLERITESOME DR EEARRAESMIRHRS

M ft e

2,102
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEMBHERME (F])

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 13. EX  FETHRAEBREEME (&)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors and chief executives (Continued) ESRFETHRAR (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018: HZE2018F12A31HIEFE -
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other scheme
fee allowances contributions Total
ek BIRER
2ok Hh28h SRR st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARETE ARBTR

Executive directors: HITEE:

Mr. Cheng Liguan Richard BEREE - 850 58 908
Mr. Zeng Zhijun PR - 850 58 908
Sub-total PN = 1,700 116 1816

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were EXFATESNMe IR EEA AR RAEBEB MR ER
for their services in connection with the management of Bz o
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

Non-executive directors: FHITEE

Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo BhrE = - - -
Mr. Zhu Weihang KEMEE - _ _ _
Mr. Chen Xue ekt - - _ _
Sub-total et - _ _ _

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above EXFABERTEENME DR EARARRENBAR (1E
were for their services as directors of the Company and R) MESARERBE M o
its subsidiaries, if applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEMBHERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 13. EX  FETHRAEREEME (&)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors and chief executives (Continued) ESRFETHRAR (&)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other scheme
fee allowances contributions Total
Fek RIKEM
o idkn Hfth 2 Bh AT st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARBTL  ARETT ARBTER

Independent non-executive BUFNTES

directors:
Mr. Liu Gengyu 2R L% 100 = = 100
Mr. Xie Guozhong HEBREE 100 = = 100
Mr. Lu Zhifang BEESTE 100 = = 100
Sub-total /et 300 - - 300

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments  EXEFIBMFERTEENHE DR EFRRAESFMIRERS
shown above were for their services as directors of the Mt e

Company.

Total st 2,116
The emoluments of the Directors and chief executives NEMREEREBZTBRABNMEER
shown above were mainly for their management MRS RE T AR R RAKE N E R
services rendered to the Company and the Group and Mt YHFHRE LT REARS
were determined by the remuneration committee having M5 BHEET -

regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEMBHERME (F])

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

13.

308 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
two (2018: two) directors for the year ended 31
December 2019, whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2018: three) individuals for the years ended 31
December 2019 are as follows:

13.

EEx FETHRAEBREEMSE (&)

3=

H E20198F12A31B IEEE - A& E
MAZEEFMALTREMREES (2018
F ML) HSFIR EXHESE - &
Z2019F12A31BILEFE 8T =8 A
+ (2018%F : =) WENE W T -

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ET AREFIT

Salaries and other benefits e REMER] 1,560 1,560
Retirement benefit scheme contributions E{REF| 52|k 51 58
Equity-settled share-based expense W2 48 B DARR (9 R AT B 11T R 403 1,025
2,014 2,643

The five highest paid individuals, including two
directors, whose emoluments were within the following
bands:

hERSFMAL (BEMBES) &M
ENRATEHE -

Number of employees

EEAE
2019 2018
20195 20184
Nil to HKD 1,000,000 T % 1,000,000/ 7T 3 3
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T & 1,500,000/ 7T 2 2
5 5

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group
to the Directors or the top five highest paid employees
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2018: nil). None of
the Directors has waived any remuneration during the
year (2018: nil).

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note
41 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

RAFE  ARBEVEATANEZLRSE
BEaFMEE X NEHEMERSEMARK
RINAZ & B B 2 5B S B B 2 R
(2018%F : &) - RAFE - BIEEENE
I HEN (20184 - £) -

BRETFBINANEEGRATHHRE
BisE4t o

TEEFRE (ER) ARAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEMBHERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BEERRXE
Owned  Leasehold Leased Motor Fixtures and Construction
properties lands  properties vehicles  equipment in progress Total

BENZ  HELH  BENR RE  KERRH  HRIR it
RMBOOO ~ RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O

ARETRL  ARBTTL  ARBTR ARMTR ARETL ARETT ARETR

C0sT Bk
At 1 January 2018 R2018%F181R 32,716 = - 16,307 47,741 57 96,821
Additions e 5,567 = - 2,646 8,193 16,135 32,541
Disposals L& - - - (852) (752) = (1,604)
At 31 December 2018 R2018E 125318 38,283 = = 18,101 55,182 16,192 127,758
Adjustments upon application RERBIRE LR

of IFRS 16 Z165E A% - = 18,406 = = = 18,406
At 1 January 2019 (restated) 2019461718 (£5) 38,283 5 18,406 18,101 55,182 16,192 146,164
Additions hE 108,793 17,050 = 931 168,760 86 295,600
Transfer b - - - - 16,192 (16,192) -
Disposals e - = s (1,031) (2,254) (66) (3.351)
At 31 December 2019 R2019E12831R 147,076 17,050 18,406 18,001 237,880 - 438413

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  Z3fif&

At 1 January 2018 201851 A 18 (7.716) = = (11,175)  (10,909) = (29,800)
Charge for the year ERgi (1,073) - - (159)  (10212) = (12,880)
Elimination on disposals HEBHH = = = 833 2419 = 3,252
At 31 December 2018 20185128318 (8,789) = = (11937)  (18,702) = (39,428)
Charge for the year ERgi (2,042) (28) (9.472) (1573)  (10,199) = (23,314)
Elimination on disposals HERHE - - - 976 1,106 - 2,082
At 31 December 2019 R2019512431R (10,831) (28) (0472)  (12534) (27,79 - (60,660)
CARRYING VALUES GHfE

At 31 December 2019 R2019%12831R 136,245 17,022 8,034 5467 210,085 - 31,753
At 31 December 2018 20185125318 29,494 = = 6,164 36,480 16,192 88,330
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEMBHERME (F])

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31ALFE

14.

310 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

During the current year, the Group has completed
the acquisition of a sewage treatment center from
an independent third party with a consideration of
RMB300,000,000 (RMB269,329,000 after deduction
of value added tax borne by the seller). The Group
is also obliged to pay the land premium to the local
government of RMB17,050,000.

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, after taking into
account their estimated residual value of 5% of the
cost, are depreciated on a straight-line basis with the
following expected useful lives:

Leasehold land and building 30 - 50 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Fixtures and equipment 2 — 20 years

14.

M - BERRE (&)

RAFE A"EBETKA—EBBILE
=HWEESKERBPL REAARE
300,000,0007T (£ 0B BB & 77 75 ¥& /Y 18
BEFR % B AR 269,329,0007T) ° A&
BN ERE BN A T HEEARK
17,050,0007T °

BRaERTRI  EdYWE - BEERER
B & R E K A%l 5t RIR B ERIZ
AT TR A] S A B ARORITE -

AELHRET 30E50%
RE 5%
HENEE 2% 204

TEEFRE (ER) ARAF



14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets (included “leasehold lands”

14.

mEMBHERME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31A L FE

M - BERRE (&)

EREEE (BEWX BERRKEBEAN

and “leased properties” in Property, plant and [HELH | R [HEWE]D
equipment)
Leasehold Leased
lands  properties Total
HEL i HEYE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREBTT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 7R2019F1A1H
Carrying amount REE = 18,406 18,406
At 31 December 2019 K2019%F12A31H
Carrying amount BREE 17,050 8,934 25,984
For the year ended #HZ=2019F12A31H
31 December 2019 IEFE
Depreciation charge IEMX (28) (9,472) (9,500)
Expense relating to short-term AR A SRR
leases 284
Total cash outflow for leases HERRS R EE 24,641
Additions to right-of-use assets  {FF#E & EE N 17,050

For both years, the Group leases various offices for
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of